CONTRA

COSTA

COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association
AGENDA

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING

FIRST MONTHLY MEETING Retirement Board Conference Room
April 8, 2015 The Willows Office Park
9:00 a.m. 1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, California

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING:
1.  Pledge of Allegiance.
2. Accept comments from the public.
3. Approve minutes from the January 28 and February 11, 2015 Board meeting.
4. Routine items for April 8, 2015.
Approve certifications of membership.
Approve service and disability allowances.
Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required.

Approve death benefits.
Accept Asset Allocation Report.

P00 o

CLOSED SESSION

5. The Board will go into closed session under Govt. Code Section 54957 to consider
recommendations from the Medical Advisor and/or staff regarding the following
disability retirement applications:

Member Type Sought Recommendation
Mark Thompson Service Connected Service Connected
Brian Givins Service Connected Service Connected

6.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section
54956.9(d)(2) to confer with legal counsel regarding anticipated litigation (one case).

OPEN SESSION

7. Consider and take possible action to change the Board’s policy and include more than
base pay in pensionable compensation for PEPRA members.

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Consider and take possible action regarding the retiree lookback project: review of
past incidents of unusual compensation increases at the end of employment.

Consider and take possible action regarding non-service connected disability
retirement allowance of deceased member Elizabeth Maaske.

Consider and take possible action regarding the next steps pertaining to call back pay
erroneously reported as pensionable which resulted in overpayments of benefits to
retirees.

Consider and take possible action to establish an audit committee and adopt an audit
committee charter.

Presentation of the Byron-Brentwood-Knightsen Union Cemetery District employer
audit report.

Presentation of the Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District employer audit
report.

Presentation of the Central Contra Costa Sanitary District employer audit report.
Presentation of cash flow report for the period ending December 31, 2014.
Consider and take possible action regarding scheduling of May 28, 2015 meeting.
Consider authorizing the attendance of Board and/or staff:

a. 2015 Milken Institute Global Conference, Milken Institute, April 26 — 29,

2015, Los Angeles, CA. (Note: Staff Only)

b. SACRS Spring Conference, SACRS, May 12 — 15, 2015, Anaheim, CA
Miscellaneous

a. Staff Report

b. Outside Professionals’ Report
c. Trustees’ comments

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting.




Meeting Date

CONTRA . 04/08/15
gggg%{ ) Agenda Item

Employees' Retirement Association #3

MINUTES

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES

SECOND MONTHLY MEETING Retirement Board Conference Room
9:00 a.m. The Willows Office Park
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
January 28, 2015 Concord, California
Present: Debora Allen, Scott Gordon, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Karen Mitchoff,
John Phillips, Gabe Rodrigues, Todd Smithey, Jerry Telles and Russell Watts

Absent: William Pigeon

Staff: Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer; Kurt Schneider, Deputy Retirement

Chief Executive Officer; Timothy Price, Retirement Chief Investment Officer; Karen

Levy, Retirement General Counsel; Wrally Dutkiewicz, Retirement Compliance Officer;

Vickie Kaplan, Retirement Accounting Manager; Karen Davis, Retirement Benefits
~ Manager; and Christina Dunn, Retirement Administration Manager

Outside Professional Support: Representing:
Harvey Leiderman Reed Smith LLP
Paul Angelo Segal Consulting
John Monroe Segal Consulting
Joe Wiley Wiley, Price & Radulovich LLP

1. Pledge of Allegiance

Hast led all in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public

No members of the public offered comment.

3. Staff presentation on survey of 1937 Act systems regarding pay items included in “Pensionable
Compensation”

Schneider reviewed the results of the survey requested by the Board pertaining to what elements of
pay beyond base pay other 1937 Act systems include in “pensionable compensation." He noted that
the CalPERS regulation includes 99 pay items beyond base pay in "pensionable compensation" for
PEPRA members.

There was a discussion on including pay items beyond base pay in "pensionable compensation" for
PEPRA members and the previous Board decisions to limit “pensionable compensation” to base pay
and exclude items of compensation beyond base pay. There was a lengthy discussion on employers
including differentials in base pay. It was noted that Stanislaus County recently included FLSA pay
in base pay.



Page 2
January 28, 2015

Telles requested that the item of changing the Board's policy and including more than base pay in
pensionable compensation be placed on a future agenda. Chairperson Hast so directed. Leiderman
noted that the Board may consider whether to change its policy and this is not a motion for
reconsideration under Roberts Rules of Order.

In public comment, Jared Palant, Local 1230, spoke in regards to employers including the
differentials into base pay. He noted during the last contract negotiation between Local 1230 and the
Contra Costa County Fire Protection District they requested the differentials be included in base pay
and the County denied the request. He feels that members are paying more for retirement and are
receiving lower benefits then what CalPERS is providing their members. This difference in
contribution rates has created a retention and recruitment problem for the Contra Costa County Fire
Protection District.

Levy noted that none of CCCERA's stakeholders including employers have expressed an official
position on this issue. The only exception is the letter from the Deputy Sheriffs Association (DSA),
which is included in the agenda materials. Gordon noted that the matter has been on the Board's
publicly noticed agendas but employers have not appeared to speak to the issue.

Ken Westermann, DSA Board member, thanked the board for considering the letter he wrote to the
Board in September. He feels this issue really transcends DSA. They have lost 50 deputy sheriffs
within the last year to competing agencies. At competing agencies the salaries and retirement
benefits are higher at a lower cost to the employee. He feels that employers should be concerned
with this due to the high cost of recruitment and training.

Jim Bickert, Rains Lucia Stern representing the DSA, noted when PEPRA was introduced in late
2012 it was not clear what pay items should be included in “pensionable compensation”. Since that
time other retirement systems, CalPERS and the Governor have determined certain differentials
should be included “pensionable compensation”. With this additional information he encourages the
Board to reconsider their previous determination to limit “pensionable compensation” to base pay.

Mark Williams, Contra Costa County Assistant Sheriff, noted he is speaking on behalf of Sheriff
Livingston, and that they are in full support of reconsideration of this issue. He stated the Sheriff’s
Office is struggling with retention and recruitment.

Mike Mohun, Local 3546, noted the Local 3546 and San Ramon Valley Fire contract does not end
until 2018. There are requirements of the position that are compensated through a differential so it
should be included in “pensionable compensation”. When the Board made the decision to limit
“pensionable compensation” some of the Board members cited it was due to the decision that
CalPERS originally made. He will be negotiating to have these differentials included in base pay
when the contract is negotiated in 2018 but feels it would be prudent for the Board to take action
now to collect the necessary retirement contributions on the differentials paid to PEPRA members.
He believes that these incentives will be ultimately included in base pay in his district.

Mitchoff noted that it is not clear whether CalPERS is in fact implementing its policy of including
more than base pay in pensionable compensation and requested staff to research the item.

Consider and take possible action on leave cashout assumption for Tier Safety C

Angelo provided an overview of the leave cashout assumptions used in the annual actuarial
valuation. He noted at the August 13, 2014 meeting there was significant discussion regarding the
adopted Safety Tier C leave cashout assumption of .25%. After researching the actual experience
during the period from January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2012 and the benefits provided to



Page 3
January 28, 2015

members in this Tier he recommended that the leave cashout assumption be reduced from .25% to
0%.

It was M/S/C to reduce the Safety Tier C leave cashout assumption from 0.25% to 0% effective with
the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues,
Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Consider and take possible action regarding employer/member cost sharing of leave cashout
assumption

Angelo discussed the items included in the leave cashout assumption and provided a background on
how the leave cashout assumption is funded. He noted at the August 13, 2014 meeting the Board
took action to also include the leave cashout assumptions in the development of the Basic member
contribution rates effective with the December 31, 2014 valuation. However, no action was taken
regarding which option would be used in the implementation. He reviewed the two options noting
they differ in how the leave cashout assumptions are pooled across different cost groups with the
same tier. Option A (more pooling and is less reflective of individual member experience) pools by
tier while Option B (less pooling and is more reflective of individual member experience) pools by
cost group.

In public comment, Ken Westermann, DSA Board member, noted that Option B increases the rates
for members and decreases the rates for employers. Most members do not receive terminal pay but
they are now paying more to not receive the benefit because there may be others in their cost group
that do receive terminal pay.

Dan Borenstein, Contra Costa Times, questioned if differentials were included in “pensionable
compensation” would this discussion need to be had for PEPRA members.

Levy noted that leave cashouts are specifically excluded from “pensionable compensation” for
PEPRA members by statute.

Angelo noted the differentials are throughout the member’s career so it would not be included in the
leave cashout assumption.

It was M/S/C to adopt Option B as recommended by Segal Consulting and apply the leave cashout
assumptions for each cost group in developing separate Basic member rates for members in each
cost group. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Allen and Rodrigues were not present for subsequent discussion and voting,.

6.

Consider and take possible action on emplover contribution rates effective July 1, 2015 for
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Schneider reported Central Contra Costa Sanitary District (District) made a $5 million prepayment
towards the District’s Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL). He noted with the reduction
in the UAAL, the prepayment reduces the District’s required UAAL contribution rate. The effect of
the prepayment is a reduction of the District’s UAAL contribution rate of 1.27% of payroll.

It was M/S/C to adopt the contribution rates for Central Contra Costa Sanitary District as
recommended by Segal Consulting effective July 1, 2015. (Yes: Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Mitchoff,
Phillips, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Consider and take possible action on contribution rates effective January 1, 2015 and July 1,
2015 for Contra Costa County Fire Protection District




Page 4
January 28, 2015

Schneider reported the Board of Directors of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District
approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with IAFF, Local 1230, which grants employees
who become new Safety members of CCCERA, on or after January 1, 2015, a post retirement cost-
of-living adjustment limited to 2% per year. Segal Consulting has calculated member and employer
rates for the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District for Safety Tier E.

It was M/S/C to adopt the employer contribution rates as shown in the Segal Consulting letter for
members employed by Contra Costa County Fire Protection District in PEPRA Safety Tier E. (Yes:
Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Mitchoff, Phillips, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

In public comment, Bob Campbell, Contra Costa County Auditor-Controller, asked when this would
be provided to the Board of Supervisors for adoption.

Allen and Rodrigues were present for subsequent discussion and voting.

8.

10.

Consider and take possible action on renewal of contract with Segal Consulting for actuarial
services

Strohl reported the current agreement between CCCERA and Segal Consulting expired on December
31,2014.

It was M/S/C to approve the renewal of the contract with Segal Consulting as presented. (Yes:
Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Consider and take possible action to adopt Resolution 2015-1 providing for salary and benefits
for unrepresented employees of CCCERA effective January 1, 2015

It was M/S to adopt Resolution 2015-1 providing for salary and benefits for unrepresented
employees of CCCERA effective January 1, 2015.

In public comment, Kurt Schneider, Deputy Retirement Chief Executive Officer, expressed concerns
that the draft CCCERA unrepresented employees resolution does not include a differential for the
CEBS designation. He encouraged the Board to consider continuing to offer a differential for the
designation for unrepresented employees at CCCERA.

The Board discussed the CEBS designation and whether the knowledge gained from the designation
provides a benefit to CCCERA.

Dunn reviewed the changes in the CCCERA Unrepresented Employees Resolution from the Contra
Costa County Management Resolution noting staff are working on streamlining the documents that
currently govern positions at CCCERA.

A substitute motion was M/S to adopt Resolution 2015-1 providing for salary and benefits for
unrepresented employees of CCCERA effective January 1, 2015 including a 2.5% differential for the
CEBS designation. (Yes: Hast, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles; No: Allen, Gordon, Mitchoff, Phillips
and Watts) motion failed.

The original motion was M/S/C to adopt Resolution 2015-1 providing for salary and benefits for
unrepresented employees of CCCERA effective January 1, 2015. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast,
Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts; No: Telles)

Consider and take possible action to adopt the pay schedules for all CCCERA classifications
effective January 1, 2015.




Page 5
January 28, 2015

It was M/S/C to adopt the pay schedules for all CCCERA classifications effective January 1, 2015
as presented. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

It was M/S/C to add an item to consider and take possible action to adopt Resolution 2015-2 to
continue the tax deferred status of retirement contributions for CCCERA employees pursuant to
Govt. Code Section 54954.2(b)(2) because there is a need for the board to take immediate action and
the need for action came to the attention of CCCERA subsequent to the agenda being posted. Levy
discussed the immediate need for action noting that CCCERA was just notified by the County
Auditor-Controller that the Resolution must be adopted prior to the first payroll of 2015 in order to
be in compliance. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and
Watts)

Consider and take possible action to adopt Resolution 2015-2 to continue the tax deferred status of
retirement contributions for CCCERA emplovees

11.

12.

13.

Hast stated this is a housekeeping item to comply with requirements from the IRS. Prior to January
1, 2015 CCCERA staff were covered under the Contra Costa County Internal Revenue Code (L.R.C.)
Section 414(h)(2) resolution, which provides that employee retirement contributions are not included
in the employee's gross income in the year in which such amounts are contributed, but instead, such
contributions are includable in the gross income of the employee in the taxable year in which such
amounts are distributed. In order to preserve status quo, the Board of Retirement, as the governing
board of the CCCERA District, must take formal action and adopt its own LR.C. Section 414(h)(2)
resolution covering District employees.

It was M/S/C to adopt Resolution 2015-2 to continue the tax deferred status of retirement
contributions for CCCERA employees. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues,
Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Consider and take possible action to approve the proposed CCCERA CEO employment
agreement and authorize Board Chairperson to execute on behalf of the Board

It was M/S/C to approve the proposed CCCERA CEO employment agreement and authorize the
Board Chairperson to execute on behalf of the Board. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips,
Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Consider _and take possible action to revise investment guidelines for Adelante Capital
Management

Price noted that investment managers understand that if they have concerns with the investment
guidelines they should provide these requests to the staff and Board. Adelante Capital Management
has requested two changes to the investment guidelines for the US REIT portfolio that they manage
on behalf of CCCERA.

Price noted he believes both requests are reasonable updates and would align the CCCERA portfolio
with the firm’s recommendation for other Total Return Strategy institutional clients.

It was M/S/C to revise the investment guidelines for Adelante Capital Management and authorize
the CEO to execute and amend the investment guideline appendix of the existing Adelante contract.
(Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Consider_and take possible action regarding recommendation from Investment Consultant
Search Committee regarding finalist candidates

Phillips noted there were 13 responses to the Investment Consultant request for proposal.



14.

15.

Page 6
January 28, 2015

Price reviewed the process the Investment Consultant Search committee and staff used to review all
of the responses. He noted the Board committee and staff completed due diligence and interviewed
the eight qualified firms.

Phillips discussed the Committee’s recommendation to the Board noting the current investment
consultant is not the recommended firm. The Committee members discussed the reasons for the
recommendation noting that Wurts and Associates appears to provide services that can meet the
needs of CCCERA.

It was M/S/C to accept the Investment Consultant Search Committee’s recommendation and
interview Wurts and Associates. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey,
Telles and Watts)

Conference Seminar Attendance

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of up to 4 Board members and 1 staff member at the
RFK Compass Conference, West Coast, Sausalito, CA, March 4-5, 2015. (Yes: Allen, Gordon,
Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

b. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 staff member at the PIMCO Client Conference,
INSIGHT 2015, Newport Beach, CA, March 15-18, 2015. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff,
Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Miscellaneous

(a) Staff Report —
Strohl noted CCCERA recently received a public records request for the current Board’s Form
700 from pension360.org; the bid responses for the exterior construction project for the

Willows building have been received from contractors and are currently being evaluated.

Schneider reported the December 2014 CPI was published and the retiree COLA will be based
on a 2.5% increase in CPI from the prior December.

Levy reported Leiderman and she are not able to attend the next meeting. Attorney Jeff Rieger
from Reed Smith LLP will be at the meeting to provide legal guidance.

Dunn noted there is a new mileage reimbursement form effective January 1, 2015 and it has
been placed in the dropbox.com folder.

Davis recognized staff for their hard work during her absence.

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -
Leiderman suggested placing on a future agenda a discussion on fiduciary insurance.

(¢) Trustees’ comments —
Mitchoff asked when the discussion on pay items included in “pensionable compensation” will
return to the Board. Strohl reported the item will be on an agenda for discussion within a month
or two.
Telles reported he understood that the Board directed staff to only review the 188 past

retirements that had an increase of 30% or more but recently discovered that staff were
reviewing every retirement in the last ten years. Dutkiewicz noted that he has reviewed all



Page 7
January 28, 2015

retirements that had a 30% or more increase in their pension amount compared to their salary
and then used that parameter on the other retirees to determine how much that particular pay
item increased their pension. Telles sought clarification about the Board's direction, noting that
he thinks the Board should focus only on the 30% or more cases. He requested this item be
placed on a future agenda.

Allen reported there have been changes in the affiliate board members on the SACRS board.

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues,
Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Brian Hast, Chairman Jerry Telles, Secretary



Meeting Date

CONTRA #~
GLCCCERA | sl
COUNTY =1 Agenda Item

Employees’ Retirement Association #3

MINUTES

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES

FIRST MONTHLY MEETING Retirement Board Conference Room
9:00 a.m. The Willows Office Park
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

February 11, 2015 Concord, California
Present: Debora Allen, Scott Gordon, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Karen Mitchoff,

John Phillips, William Pigeon, Todd Smithey, Jerry Telles and Russell Watts
Absent: Gabe Rodrigues
Staff: Gail Strohl, Retirement Chief Executive Officer; Kurt Schneider, Deputy Retirement

Chief Executive Officer; Timothy Price, Retirement Chief Investment Officer; Wrally
Dutkiewicz, Retirement Compliance Officer; Karen Davis, Retirement Benefits Manager
and Christina Dunn, Retirement Administration Manager

Outside Professional Support: Representing:
Jeffrey Rieger Reed Smith LLP

1. Pledge of Allegiance
Hast led all in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Recognition of Luz Winkler for 15 vears of service

Hast recognized and congratulated Winkler for her 15 years of service.
It was the consensus of the Board to move to Item 4.

4. Approval of Minutes

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the December 10, 2014 meeting. (Yes: Gordon, Hast,
Holcombe, Pigeon, Phillips, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the December 17, 2014 meeting. (Yes: Gordon, Hast,
Holcombe, Pigeon, Phillips, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the January 14, 2015 meeting. (Yes: Gordon, Hast,
Holcombe, Pigeon, Phillips, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the January 21, 2015 meeting. (Yes: Gordon, Hast,
Holcombe, Pigeon, Phillips, Smithey, Telles and Watts)



5.

Page 2
February 11, 2015

Routine Items

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the February 11, 2015 meeting. (Yes: Gordon, Hast,
Holcombe, Pigeon, Phillips, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Mitchoff was present for subsequent discussion and voting.

CLOSED SESSION

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 and 54956.9(d)(2).

The Board moved into open session.

6.

It was M/S/C to accept the Medical Advisor’s recommendation and grant the following disability
benefits:

James Lee — Non-service Connected (Yes: Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Mitchoff, Pigeon, Phillips,
Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Allen was present for subsequent discussion and voting.

Pigeon was not present for subsequent discussion and voting.

7.

It was M/S/C to accept the Hearing Officer’s recommendation and deny the service-connected
disability retirement for Kenneth Robb. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Smithey,
Telles and Watts)

Pigeon was present for subsequent discussion and voting.

8.

There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(2).

It was the consensus of the Board to move to Item 3.

3.

Public Comment

Chris Wenzel, retiree, discussed the mistake CCCERA made in the calculation of his retirement
benefit and how it affects his life. He noted that he was originally told he would not need to pay
interest on the over payment but later received a letter stating he would need to pay the overpayment
with 7.25% interest. He noted he found other retirees that received overpayments and were not
required to pay. He feels this is disparate treatment and he does not feel that it is fair.

Call Back Pay Erroneously Reported As Pensionable Resulting in Overpayments of Benefits to
Retirees and Overpayment of Retirement Contributions

a. Schneider provided an update on call back pay noting that as directed by the Board on December
10, 2014 letters were sent to 43 members whose allowances are expected to be impacted by this
issue. He noted staff have identified that there is one issue that may require further analysis.

The issue that may require further analysis is regarding pay that physicians receive for scheduled
work on a weekend referred to as “weekend rounds”. He noted some physicians have explained
that the “Physician Call Back Pay” pay code was used by some physicians to report both call
back pay and weekend rounds. He stated in 2013 CCCERA was advised that active physicians
now report scheduled work on a weekend as weekend rounds as opposed to call back pay.

He noted there are 13 retired physicians who may claim that some of their time reported as call
back was actually for weekend rounds and that time should have been reported as such.



Page 3
February 11, 2015

Rieger added the scope of the discussion was regarding prospective adjustments to retirement
allowances that included call back pay. He noted the Board previously decided that call back pay
should not be included in retirement allowances and the Board will now have the opportunity to
decide if there are individual cases that should be examined further.

b. In public comment, the following discussed the nature of the work completed, the purpose of
weekend rounds, the letter sent to the 43 affected retirees, how the time was reported on time
cards and the circumstances which lead to their understanding of the pay item being pensionable:

Mark Wille, retired physician
Roger Barrow, retired physician
Sharon Hiner on behalf of Steve Tremain, retired physician

Charles Nicholson, retired hazmat

David Stone, retired physician
Hye Kim, retired physician
Sharon Hiner, retired physician
Jack Funk, retired public defender

William Walker, retired physician and Director of Health Services

Sergio Urcuyo, Health Services physician
Eric Jonsson, retired hazmat

Charles Berletti, retired physician

Rieger discussed past legal rulings with similar situations and the options the Board has for
discussion. The Board discussed the next steps including the type of letter to be sent to the affected
members and possible hearing request response forms.

The Board discussed the additional research needed noting it may not be able to implement the
reduction in the retirement benefit on the March 2™ benefit payment.

It was M/S to change the March 2™ date to indefinitely for the retirement benefit reduction of the 43
affected members.

The Board discussed the amount of time that should be provided to members that would like to
appeal the benefit payment reduction.

A substitute motion was M/S to extend the March 2™ date for the retirement benefit reduction and to
mail a signed letter with an appeal form, which has been reviewed by Counsel, notifying the affected
members whom are not physicians to appeal by April 1*.

The Board discussed which members should receive the letter and what information should be
included in the letter.

The substitute motion was amended to include an appeal deadline of April 1% for all 43 affected
members with an implementation of the retirement benefit payment reduction on May 1% for
members that did not request an appeal. For members that request an appeal the retirement benefit
payment reduction would be stayed until after the hearing process is complete.



Page 4
February 11, 2015

The amended motion was M/S/C to send a second written notice to all 43 affected members advising
them that if they wish to present further information for the Board to consider regarding the call back
pay, they must deliver to CCCERA by April 1, 2015 their written request to do so. CCCERA is to
call the affected members who do not respond by April 1, 2015 and verify whether they wish to seek
the further hearing. CCCERA is to implement the pension benefit reductions as to all affected
members who do not request an appeal in writing, effective with the May 2015 payroll. The pension
benefit reductions for those who request a further opportunity to provide additional information
about the pay at issue will not be implemented until after the further hearing process is complete and
a determination has been made by the Board. As a next phase, the Board will discuss the next steps
in this process. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Smithey and Watts. No: Pigeon and
Telles)

The Board directed staff to mail the letter by the end of February and to provide a telephone call to
any members that did not respond to the letter by mid-March.

Gordon and Pigeon were not present for subsequent discussion and voting.

10. Adopt the cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) for retirees as of April 1, 2015

Schneider reviewed his memo noting the increase in the consumer price index values from
December 2013 to December 2014 was 2.67%. In accordance with the statute this is rounded to
2.5%.

It was M/S/C to adopt the 2015 COLA and bank adjustments as outlined in the Segal Consulting
January 27, 2015 letter. (Yes: Allen, Hast, Holcombe, Mitchoff, Phillips, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Pigeon was present for subsequent discussion and voting.

11. Revise Attachment A to the CCCERA Unrepresented Employees Resolution (2015-1) due to
Local 21’s notice of withdrawal

Dunn noted on January 30, 2015 IFPTE Local 21 informed CCCERA that effective January 1, 2015
they will no longer be able to provide ongoing representation of the staff members at CCCERA.

The Board discussed the benefit changes that would affect the CCCERA staff members that were
represented by IFPTE, Local 21 prior to January 1, 2015.

The Board directed staff to research what benefits should be provided to the affected staff members.

It was M/S/C to recognize the non-representation of CCCERA staff members in IFPTE, Local 21.
(Yes: Allen, Hast, Holcombe, Mitchoff, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

12. Revise CCCERA pay schedules to reflect Local 21°s notice of withdrawal from representation
of CCCERA employees

This item was tabled for a future meeting.
Phillips was not present for subsequent discussion and voting.

13. Conference Seminar Attendance

a. No action was taken on the 17% Annual Client Conference, Klausner Kaufman Jensen &
Levinson, March 15 — 18, 2015, Ft. Lauderdale, FL



Page 5
February 11, 2015

b. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 Board member at the Portfolio Concepts
and Management, IFEBP, April 27 -30, 2015, Philadelphia, PA (Yes: Allen, Hast,
Holcombe, Mitchoff, Pigeon, Smithey, Telles and Watts)

14.  Miscellaneous

(a) Staff Report —
Strohl reported information technology measures have been updated to update the network.
There will be a full policy review of all CCCERA policies. There has been a new benefit
statement design.
Dutkiewicz reported the Contra Costa County Fire Department audit will begin at the end of the
month. He is working through the internal CCCERA process regarding correspondence.
Corrected 1099Rs have been completed and are in the mail.

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -
None

(¢) Trustees’ comments —

Telles reported the SACRS nominating committee is working on approving a slate for approval
by the *37 Act Counties. He provided an update on the SACRS affiliate board.

Watts reported Rodrigues, Kroll and himself attended the CALAPRS trustee’s roundtable and
felt it was interesting.

Allen clarified a comment she made at the January 28™ meeting in trustee comments noting that
she spoke of the SACRS affiliate board and not the SACRS board.

Holcombe noted there was an interesting editorial on the Stockton bankruptcy.
Mitchoff reported she is resigning from the Board of Retirement at the end of the month

because she will be serving on the Bay Area Air Quality Management District. Supervisor
Candace Andersen will be serving the remainder of her term on the Retirement Board.

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting. (Yes: Allen, Hast, Holcombe, Mitchoff, Pigeon, Smithey, Telles
and Watts)

Brian Hast, Chairman Jerry Telles, Secretary



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

BOARD OF RETIREMENT

Page 1 April 8, 2015
Items requiring Board Action Meeting Date
A. Certifications of Membership — see list and classification forms. 04/ 0 8/ 15
Agenda Item
B. Service and Disability Retirement Allowances: #4
Effective  Option
Name Number Date Type  Group Selected
Bermudez, Greicy 66351 01/02/15 SR III Unmod
Craver, Nathan D9500 01/21/15 SR IT & III Unmod
Finney, Donald 61515 0218/15 SR IT & ITI Unmod
Gary, Brenda 46029 01/01/15 SR II & III Unmod
Grassano, Lynn 65998 01/31/15 SR III Unmod
Gross, Melissa D9990 12/27/14 SR I Unmod
Kolin, Jeffrey D9991 02/02/15 SR I Unmod
Macaulay, Oludolapo 62559 01/02/15 SR IT & III Unmod
Matthey, Glenda 33406 01/31/15 SR L II&III Unmod
McCurley, Lisa 51080 12/27/14 SR II Unmod
Phommavong, Maly 65639 07/27/12 NSCD  Safety Unmod
Sagar, Pradeep 68758 11/18/14 SR IT1 Unmod
Saum, Paulette 52157 02/20/15 SR IT & ITI Unmod
Stewart-Terry, Lisa 33298 01/13/15 SR IT & III Option 1
Todd, Michael 39549 11/09/06 SR II Unmod
C. Disability Retirement Applications: The Board’s Hearing Officer is hereby authorized to
issue subpoenas in the following cases involving disability applications:
Name Number Filed Type
Farley, Charles 71963 3/13/2015 SCD
D. Deaths:
Name Date of Death Employer
Archambault, Thomas 03/08/15 Contra Costa County
Dillon, Duayne 03/08/15 Contra Costa County & Beneficiary
Flynn, Cynthia 02/07/15 Contra Costa County
Hudson, Roger 02/17/15 Contra Costa County
Jemme, Frieda 02/23/15 Contra Costa County
Kendall, Nellie 03/04/15 Contra Costa County
Lee, James E 03/14/15 San Ramon Valley Fire Protection District
Martinez, Phyllis 01/10/15 Contra Costa County
Russel, Rau 01/30/15 Beneficiary
Schmidt, Frank 03/15/15 Beneficiary
Trevisano, John 03/18/15 Contra Costa County
Warburton, Anne 02/24/15 Contra Costa County
KEY: Group Option Type
I=TierI * = County Advance NSP = Non-Specified
II = Tier II Selected w/option SCD = Service Disability
III = Tier III SR = Service Retirement
S/A = Safety Tier A NSD = Non-Service Disability

S/C = Safety Tier C



Meeting Date
04/08/15
CERTIFICATION OF MEMBERSHIPS| , qeﬁ da/ltem
#4a.
Employee

Name Number Tier |Membership Date Employer
Aguilar, Yesenia 80637 S/D 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Agustin, Jennifer 81165 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Allured, Jesse 81211 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Anderson, Joseph 81303 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Ary, Gwenette D9500 P5.3 02/01/15 Superior Court

Bates, Aaron 81305 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Belarde, Alina 79520 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Bennett, Angelic D9500 P5.3 02/01/15 Superior Court

Bess, Cielita 68634 Il 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Boutros, Shadi 81214 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Bowen, Bradford 80674 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Brenes, Danielle 76367 ] 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Caballero, Ronald 81089 P5.3 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Cao, Tianjun 81156 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Cardona, Luis 81270 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Cienfuegos, Becky 81164 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Coupe, Stephen 81301 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Cruz, Michelle 81225 P5.3 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Dabandan-Cid, Bessie 69437 [ 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Davis, Daniel 81205 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Delgado, Ari 81304 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Dyer, Courtney 80672 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Emmanuel, Jean 78581 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Favis, Gina 81088 P5.3 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Gibson, Laniece 81291 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Godinez, Oscar 79750 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Gonzalez, Melbourne 81215 P5.3 02/01/15 Contra Costa County

Key:
1 =Tierl P4.2 = PEPRA Tier 4 (2% COLA) 8/A = Safety Tier A
11 = Tier 11 P4.3 = PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) S/C = Safety Tier C

111 = Tier I11

P5.2 = PEPRA Tier 5 2% COLA)

S/D = Safety Tier D

P5.3 = PEPRA Tier 5 (3% COLA)

S/E = Safety Tier E

Page 1




CERTIFICATION OF MEMBERSHIPS

Employee

Name Number Tier |Membership Date Employer
Hanson, Brandyn 81160 P5.2 01/01/15 Contra Costa County
Harris, Nache D9500 P5.3 02/01/15 Superior Court

Hax, Andrew 81308 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Him, Azimah 77317 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Hofsass, Pamela 81289 S/E 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Hoy, Kristen 78830 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Jackson, Lakresha 81306 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Jewett, Kathryn 80683 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Johnson, Shirlee 75094 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Jose, Edvigail 81212 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Julian, Maycheal 81213 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Kahan, Kyle 80666 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Kranzthor, Matthew 80679 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Lee, Tomikka 81186 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Malana, Mark 81255 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Mann, Gary 81246 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Martinez, Vincent 81262 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
McCollin, Kyle 81307 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
McLeod, Anne 80383 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Mitchell, Surjit 81249 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Mizzi, Michelle 81269 P52 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Muikearns, David 81298 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Myovich, Julie 68475 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Ndubuigi, Chinyeake 78583 P5.3 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Nguyen, Uyenthu 81256 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Nnodim, Okechukwu 81184 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Ochoa, Fernando 81272 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Parra, Yecenia 81259 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County

Key:
1= Tierl P4.2 = PEPRA Tier 4 (2% COLA) S/A = Safety Tier A
11 = Tier 11 P4.3 = PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) S/C = Safety Tier C

111 = Tier 111

P5.2 = PEPRA Tier 5 (2% COLA)

S/D = Safety Tier D

P5.3 = PEPRA Tier 5 (3% COLA)

S/E = Safety Tier E

Page 2




CERTIFICATION OF MEMBERSHIPS

Employee

Name Number Tier |Membership Date Employer
Pasic, Elvina 81251 P52 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Patricio, Corinne 79686 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Patrick, Zakiya 81194 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Perazzo, Samantha 74195 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Peterson-Fisher, Gretchen D9500 P5.3 02/01/15 Superior Court

Poe, Shelly 81147 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Ribeiro, Fabiola 81151 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Rogers, Robert 81243 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Sanders, Randolf 81158 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Smith, Bridget 78334 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
St. Onge, Putita 81196 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Stevens, Christina 78283 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Sullivan, Justin 81204 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Veliz, Adrian 81207 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Ward, Matthew 81202 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Watson, Nicole 81187 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Whalen, Lauren 79204 P5.2 02/01/15 Contra Costa County
Zambrano, Rosa 78737 P53 02/01/15 Contra Costa County

Key:
I1="Tierl P4.2 = PEPRA Tier 4 (2% COLA) S/A = Safety Tier A
11 = Tier 1l P4.3 = PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) S/C = Safety Tier C

111 = Tier 111

P5.2 = PEPRA Tier 5 (2% COLA)

S/D = Safety Tier D

P5.3 = PEPRA Tier 5 (3% COLA)

S/E = Safety Tier E

Page 3




TIER CHANGES

Employee New Effective
Name Number |Old Tier| Tier Date Employer Reason for Change
Smith, Miriam 80034 S/E P52 2/1/2015 |Contra Costa County Position Change
Tittle, Ryan 76783 il S/A 2/1/2015 [Contra Costa County Position Change
Key:
I = Tier] P4.2 = PEPRA Tier 4 (2% COLA) S/A = Safety Tier A

11 = Tier 11 P4.3 = PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) S/C = Safety Tier C
111 = Tier 111 [P5.2 = PEPRA Tier 5 (2% COLA) S/D = Safety Tier D
P5.3 = PEPRA Tier 5 (3% COLA) S/E = Safety Tier E

Page 4




PI/cT/c uonpy preoq ‘[ouuosisg 23 uoneziuesio - ODNWIL
€T/02/0T UOTPY preog ‘[SUU0SIJ - H3qJV PI0]
80/87/S0 UOTPY PIeoy ‘9dUrULIOI] - S103saAU] sa[eSoN

$T027/6/L UOTPY preog ‘[PUu0sIag 7 TeuoneziuesiO - 190
SMATATY JAANN

SLISSYV TV.LO.L

sonjrunjroddQ 393 IeN [€10L
600Z 221130

sjuateainbyg % ysed rejo],
Jued 3}3213§ 33jels
IaInseal], £3unod

SJUOUIISIAU] SAIJRUIIV [eIOL

ajejsd [edy [ejoL
19SSy [e9Y [ejoL
J9SSY [e3 93eArid
19SSV IIV OONId
uIn}ay [ejol [edy uoISuHPM
owroou] PoxXIq PIAIA YSIH [ejo]
(o3e8o1ddy sejoyoIN ©Yj) S103S9AU] [qO[H ZUBI[[Y
awodu] poxiy Teqord [eloL
juswaSeury }9SSY pieze]
2UWI0OU] POXI] OI3sowo( [elo],
spung £jrunyzoddQ 199d 1YSUY210L
139qqV piog
jyuswoSeue\ }9SSY SYOBS UBWP[OD
orjojyod ,jied, WVSD
wInjoy 1e3ol OOWId
IsSni], jusawisaau] SuIsnoy OI1D-TdV
£ymbg 1ej0
£ymbg 1eqord [el0L
(£&31113E[0A MO'T TEQO[D) YOIIUI
ssnrunjzoddo 1eqorH uesnay
s[Seq jsirg
sanyrunjzoddQ feqory uesSioNdr
£ymbyg Teuorjeusslu] 1O
Irerq wernm

(omd) proyidg

i £Lymmb
Wizl Dpuaby JImMby dr3sowio [ejoL
S1/80/v0 opeeed

win}oy 2IN[0SqY +SY003§ OONId

210q DUlleoN
a1b{ bullaopN (9100) yooyujg

%0 (o} %00T 000°TLE‘TBI L 000°‘TLE‘TST L %0°00T
%S OL %0 (%S0°0) (ss8‘z98‘e) %S0 000°6v0°CE SS8‘116°SE %S°0
(%S0°0) (558°298°¢) %S0 000°6t0°CE GG8T16°GE %S0
%T OL %0 %90°0 ShI‘6be‘d %9S°0 000°‘19Z‘0F SSS8‘II6°SE %S"0
%9S°0 000°192°0%
%000 -
%ZT OL %S %0%°0 0€0°C10°6T %0%"L 000‘8LL‘IES 0L6°S9L‘TOS %0°L
%9T O %O0T (%80°0) (sL£°166°S) %ZH TT 000°‘S08‘168 SLE‘96LL6S %S°T1
%01 OL %0 (%80°0) (oss‘esps) %T6' Y 000°s99‘€SE 0SS‘8T1‘6SE %0°S
(%60°2) (GLT°L86°61T) %I+'0 000°TLS‘6C GLT'6SS6LT %S'T
(%€0°0) (c6vcv8 1) %TL1 000°8H8°€CT €6+°1696C1 %8'T
%%0°C 81T LLE DT %6.L°C 000°SH2‘00T €8/°198°€S %380
%6 OL %ZT (%61°0) (0SS‘206°ET) %18'b 000°91Z‘SHe 0SS‘8TI‘6SE %0°S
(%6T1°0) (0SS5°206°CT) %18t 000°912°SHE 0SS‘8TT65E %0°S
%0€ OL %0T (%%9°0) (obo‘stziob) %9€°ET 000‘bTS‘LLO‘T 0P0‘69L‘E€TL T %0°"bT
(%L1°0) (ov¥8vT1°CI) %€E8]'E 000°0L1°SLT 0v8'v62°L8C %0t
(%8+°0) (00oz‘0z1vE) %CS 61 000‘tSETOH T 002 LP 9EH T %0°0C
(%12°0) (6¥0¥00°ST) %69°'T 000°19+°1C1 6+0°G9t°9€T %6°'T
(2690°0) (990°299'v) %bSv 000°CTL‘STE 990°68€°0€€ %9t
(%20°0) (990°‘CL1S) %ES 000°L1T‘SCTE 990‘68£°0€€E %9t
%00°0 000t %00°0 000t 0 %00
(2680°0) (92L966°S) %¢CS’S 000912'96€ 9LLC1T‘Tc0b %9°S
(%S0°0) (evT'v8T°E) %ST € 000°tELEET SHT‘8T0LET %¢€'€
%SS OL %0 %6S'0 S6I‘v60°TH %60°9 000°€L0‘0TE‘E S08°‘8L6°LIT ‘S %S°SH
%810 L9€°600°€T %8¢l | 000 TP+ 968 €€9°TEL'E88 %E€°T1
%T10°0 188006 %TIE0 000°8+vCT CIT LbS1IC %€ 0
%TI1°0 091°S68°L %IT b 000°061°G6T 0b8‘v62°L8T %0
%%0°0 091°29.°C %0t 000°C90°06C 0v8‘v67°L8T %0t
%¢0°0 091°9bH°T %T0't 000°T+.‘88¢T 0v8‘v67°L8T %0'v
%S0 +29°0v6° L1 %S8°0T | 000°CTLT 6LL 9Z£TEE 194 %9°01
%Z1°0 LEETELS %Tt’S 000°L6£°68¢€ €99°G99°08¢ %€’
%€ET1°0 LE€'60T°6 %EP'S 000°GL8°68¢€ £99'699°08¢ %€’'S
%9T1°0 PSTPPITT %9.°2¢ | 000°09€+€9°‘T 948°GTZ'€C9‘T %9°CT
(%T11°0) (0€1°220°9) %68'C 000v6€°L0CT 0€T‘ILb'STT %0°€
%€0°0 091°68t‘C %E0"t 000+8.L°68¢C 0v8‘t6C°L8T %0t
%L0°0 091°G96‘t %L0t 000°092°C6T 0v8‘v62°L8T %0t
%b1°0 0.8°CS0°01 %b1°e 000‘t2S‘STT 0T TLYP'STT %0°€
%200 LY0‘TLT‘S %LE b 000¥TO‘b1E £56°T1H8°80E %E't
(%S0°0) (€56°LSt'€) %ST v 000+8€°S0€ €S6°1+8°80¢ %E' b
a3uey (xopun) (xzapun) sj)assy anrep S)ossy 3jo31e],
I2A0 1280 Tenjoy JoNIe]N jad1e], Jo o
v-a a0 a o) a A4

SIOSIAPY pleiowq
(axemeraq eyj) sidulred arenbg uosyoepr
009q0Yy
nyd WO-Yy) :Ag paredaig
ST0T ‘8T Arenaqa  :puf ypuojA sunaoday
000°TLEC8T LS
(An[BA IN[IBIA)) $IISSY JULIND)
NOILLVOOTIV .LHSSVY



00040966 T

Tejol

000‘ShT 8L sjusurjrIuIo) SUIpuEIsIng
000°EHT‘8L %69° 1 000°T9¥° 12T 000°000°8EE
000°000°S. %00°0 0 000°000°S2 Z2Z/L1/60 bI/L1/60 A pung Lyunjroddo 392q WIIY2I0L
000'€r1‘e %0L°0 00086508 000°000°09 o0z/oe/80 Z1/10/80 Al pung A3runjzodd 3990 IYSHYSI0L,
%81°0 000°296'T1 000°000°S2 91/0€/60 80/0€/60 1II pung &runjioddQ 39aQ IYSHYoI10]
%18'0 000°968'LS 000°000'8%1 +1/0€/60 90/82/60 11 pung ArunjroddQ 3qaQ IYSIyd10],
jusuwrjruIuoy) | 39Ssy rejor, snrep JUSUIWUWOD) | WONRUTWID], | I'T/dD Aq | worsuayxy | uonjeurwuia], ayeq
Surpuelsing Jo % 33 Tel Surpunyg josre] maN |uonjarosiq 3o # 3osrey uopydaouy SLNAWLSTANI LA A LVATYd
000°8Z8°Z0ET 00068789 Tejor
000°€20°T1H sjusurjruIuzoy) Surpue)smng
000°€20°I1H %Th T 000°S08°168 000°0SZ°9€€‘T ‘001 ‘L 1$ S99} pue 3503 uonsboe snid 000 00901 9911d 3SLYIINT ks
%10 000°000°01 0 xxx 00TPLLIOTS 90O SMOIIIM
%E0°'1 000°621‘vL 0 LIFY [euoneuIaju] OOSAANI
%082 000°28€°6L1 0 (LIFY) 3usuradeuey rejrde) juePpy
000°9b6°¢ %80'1 000682 LL 000°000°S2 61/1€/10 zr/1e/10 IA PUnJ YImoxH x Swodu] ese]
000°000°59 %00°0 0 000°000°59 zz/01/01 v1/01/01 XI puny £)esy uopion opsuy
000°SH1°81 %1670 000°642°59 000°000°08 8I/1e/21 11/1€/21 IIIA pung 431edy uopiod op3uy
000°008°‘S %1T0 000°0SLP1T 000°000°0T 0Z/01/11 eT/01/1T II punyg ajeisy [eoy uosined
000°004°€9 %9¢°0 000°004°ST 000°000°0L 0z/1¢/80 £1/1€/80  {iI pung *ddQ 23e3sH [edy PISSIIISIA Pnd Mg
000‘81S'61 %66'0 000°€68°0L 000°000°S 2 91/1€/21 11/1€/21 pung ‘ddQ sjeisy [esy passalisiq Jyno 1omdrg
000°000°59 %00°0 0 000°000°59 £2/82/20 S1/82/20 IIA pung sopjiunjroddQ a3ejsg [edy 33133e0
00028962 %80 000°001°6S 000°000°08 0c/0e/60 €1/0€/60 IA pung sanruniioddQ ajesy [esay 9913e0
%290 000°L+S' vt 000°000°08 91/1e/21 11/81/21 A pung sepiunizoddQ ajeisy [esy 92134e0
000°6£9°S %ET 0 000°08+°91 000°000°SZ 12/08/60 €1/¥1/80 Al DAY Jreym Sworg
%9€°0 000°€T6'ST 000°000°S2 ST/0€/21 Lo/og/€0 111 HAYA Jreym Suog
%10°0 000‘v6.4 000°000°08 v1oz/18/21 a1 J4dd LON Z1/82/20 €0/81/.0 II HAYL Jreym suoy
000°000°S€ %00°0 0 000°000°SE 12/10/21 +1/10/21 Al IAH] 00sd4U]
000°8$6'TT %SE0 000'ese‘eT 000°000°6e 0Z/10/80 e1/10/80 IIT JFAI 02s3aU]
%TS'0 000°v69°LE 000°000°S8 s1/1e/et Lo/og/so 11 AT 00saaU]
%b1°0 000°69.'6 000°000°08 vroz/oe/v an AX T Pag 11/08/%0 €0/22/01 1 JAYL oosaau]
2000 000Te) 000°087‘9 60/18/21 86/L1/90 1l SIdUYIRg SUOISYIILIFL
000°10Z‘8% %EE'0 000°858°CT 000°000°SL zelie/et e1/1e/L0 A "d”] ‘sIvulred rejrde) ajeysy [edy 1A
000°9.+°61 %011 000°922°6L 000000001 91/0e/60 Lo/t1e/et Al "d"] ‘s1dujred fejrde) ajeisy fesy 01d
000°88681 %.19°0 000°TH8‘ Lt 000°000°S2 910zZ/08/9 a9 UX TIST v1/0€/90 s0/0€/90 111 "d"1 ‘s1aujred fejrde) ajelsy [esy rd
%S00 000°8¢8°C 000°000°0% S10Z/08/9 a1 ¥A T PIg 60/1€/L0 66/1€/L0 II "d"] ‘siduired rejrde) sjersy [esy 1d
jusurururo)) | jessy rejol onfep jusunnuwo) | uoryeutwiaa], | &7I/d0 Aq | worsuayxyg | wonjeurmxiay, ajyeq
Surpueising 3o % JoqIel surpung 3o8IR] MON | UOIIRIISIQ Jo ¢ JosIe], uorydasuy SLNANLSTANI ALV.LSH TVIA

G102 ‘8¢ Areniqaq Jo sy
SJUIUIISIAU] SAIJRUIINY dJe)sH [edy 9yealld



*SI894 92113 10 0] [BUORIPPE UE 10J PIPUIIXI 9¢ ABW SPUNJ SWOS ‘I0AIMOY ‘PuUnj 943 Jo uorepmbi jo Suruudaq U ST UIN[ED UOHBUTULIY], 10818, 21,
-1932enb Burpus ou3 19ye sired resrded reuonippe Aue snid 1sirenb Surpus 1s$9)e[ 947 ST UWNIOD SN[BA JOHIBN

000°8%Z°9ZT TejoL
000°9.9°96 sjusurjruIuro) Surpue)sng
000°929°96 %Ib0 000°TLS°62 000°000°SZ¥
000°92+°6S %330 000°¢S8°ST 000°000°S2 oz/og/1t €1/0e/11 sniding III % III 9439V
000°08T'2E %6170 000°6TLCT 000°000°0S 0Z/08/90 £1/0€/90 X1 S90inosay TeinjeN ferde) punjuomruro)
usuwrnuuIo) | 39ssy rejor, anfeA jusunrmwo) | wopjeuruuis], | J1/dD Aq ISUS)XH | UONBUIULIS, ayedq
Furpuejsng 3O % joyrel Surpung jodIe], Ma) | UOI}AIdSIq Jo # 3o8IeL uorjdaouy SINAWISAANI LASSV TVEA
“000°TITLE reox
000°€91°s sjusujIIIoy) SUIpueIsIng
000°€91°S %S0 000°'6+0°CE 000°000°0t L1/1E/10 01/82/20 6007 pun,j JUsuI}saAU] 9)eAlld 92110
juswjruiuweoy) | jessvy rejo], anreA jusunIuImwo) | uonjeurid], | 471/49 Aq | worsuaixy | worjeurway, ajeq
durpueising 3O % Joqrely Furpung jodie] maN | uoljaIasi(q 3o # josIeL uonydasug SALLINALIOJIO LAMIVIN
~000°669°820°T reloL
000°1Z6°06V sjusunIuuIo) Furpuelsing
000°‘1Z6°961 %9Z°9 000°8LL°1ES 000°‘000°0£0°T
000°8¢°61 %ET1°0 000°269°6 000°000°0¢ +Z/1e/90 +1/11/90 II PUng SNUdAY Ue3dQ
000°2€0°9 %ES0 000°60+°8¢ 000°000°08 91/1¢/10 80/1€/10 pungoueqg Ajjunwuwro) rajusdied
0 %1E°0 000‘st1°Ce 000°000°ST L1/1e/21 zo/og/1t 111 urpered
000091 %8170 0004501 000000°01 Ly/reley 60/62/2 II pung Aynbyg ea1y Leg
0 %TE0 000°99Z°cT 000°000°01 sT102/8T/T a1 YA Z3IST |e1/ST/10 +0/¥1/90 pung £Ly3mby eory Aeg
000°1€9°1 %S0°0 000°ze‘e 000°000°S1 OIT TLLNA v1/S1/20 +0/S1/20 JuUSW}SIAU] SI[eTON
000'6.6°8C %¥E°0 000°€Lb'¥T 000°000°08 0Z/82/90 01/82/90 Al 4dSQ0 A1F
0 %69°0 000°6£8‘6Y 000°000°59 L1/82/20 20/82/20 III 3dSn a1
0 %9570 000°090°0F 000°000°08 ST/ST/90 S0/S1/90 II 4dSn 13
0 %10°0 000°S€8 000°000°0€ ST/80/11 a1 ¥AT prg  |2ZT/80/T1 Z0/80/11 I.4dsn A4
000°T+8°T81 %00°0 000°6ST LT 000°000°00T sz/1€/50 +1/€0/90 senuniioddo VIFOOD Hnd 1msis
000°S20°LS %0070 000‘vL8°TT 000°000°0L 82/L0/20 €1/40/20 L Aemyjeq
000‘8LL°CT %00°0 000°428‘81 000°000°0t 9z/vz/so 11/¥2/so 9 Aemyyed
000°2£4'8 %00°0 000°L96'CT 000°000°0€ £2/92/21 80/92/71 80027 Aemyjeq
000‘6b2‘81 %T0'1 000°bTH'SL 000°000°SZ1 1z/1e/%0 86/60/11 Aemyyed
000°8£5°9% %6170 000°2€9°€1 000°000°0t zz/1e/01 Z1/1e/01 A AIepuodag 3321)§ SwWepy
000°€8Z°C1 %0t0 000°Z16°8T 000°000°0¢ oz/1e/zt 80/1€/21 11 Arepuooag 39913§ sSwepy
000°028°801 %89°1 000°84£'0C1 000000081 FLINIJZANI |s6/zz/T1 siaujred 3s9313§ swepy
juswruawoe)) | 39ssy rejol snreA juaun o) | uoryeurwia], | 41/49 Aq | uorsuayxyg | wonjeurusiag, ayeda
Furpuesng 30 % Joxxei Furpung Jo8e], MaN | worjaIosia Jo # jogIe], uorjdasuy SLNANLSTANI AALLVNIALTY

S10T ‘8T Areniqag jo sy
SIUDWISIAU] SAIRUIIY 9)e)ISH [edy drealid



CONTRA 77\ ™\

SSSTA Meeting Date
Employees' Retirement Association 04/08/15
Agenda Item
#7
MEMORANDUM
Date: April 8,2015
To: Board of Retirement
From: Karen Levy, General Counsel
Subject: Consider and Take Possible Action to Change the Board's Policy and Include

More Than Base Pay In Pensionable Compensation For PEPRA Members

Summary

On January 28, 2015, after reviewing a survey of the types of pay items beyond base pay that
other CERL systems are including in "pensionable compensation" for PEPRA members, it was
directed that this item be placed on a future CCCERA Board agenda in order to allow the Board
to consider whether to change its policy and include more than base pay in pensionable
compensation for PEPRA Members. This memorandum summarizes the background pertaining
to this issue and proposes possible next steps for the Board's consideration.

Background

In 2012, the California Legislature enacted and the Governor signed into law Assembly Bill 340,
which included the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 ("PEPRA.")
PEPRA changed the terms, conditions and calculation of retirement allowances for "new
members," i.e., those members of CCCERA who become "new members" of the retirement
system, as defined in PEPRA, Gov. Code Section 7522.04(f), on or after January 1, 2013.

On December 12, 2012, the CCCERA Retirement Board voted to notify all CCCERA employers
that "pensionable compensation" for PEPRA members would be limited to "base pay only" until
the statute is further clarified. CCCERA employers were therefore notified to report as
pensionable and collect retirement contributions on base pay only for PEPRA members. On
September 4, 2013, after consideration and analysis of all pay items beyond base pay for all
participating employers, the CCCERA Board determined that no special compensation pay items
beyond base pay would be used in the calculation of the PEPRA members' retirement benefit,
and reaffirmed its December 2012 directive that all participating employers should continue to
report to CCCERA as pensionable, and collect contributions on, base pay only.

On September 10, 2014, the Board adopted its Policy On Determining "Pensionable
Compensation" Under PEPRA For Purposes of Calculating Retirement Benefits ("PEPRA
Pensionable Compensation Policy"), which reflects PEPRA provisions as well as the Board's

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



CCCERA Board of Retirement
April 8,2015
Page 4

prior determination that "Pensionable Compensation" includes "base pay" and excludes any pay
other than base pay, in accordance with Govt. Code Sections 7522.34(c)(11) and (12). The
Policy also defines "publicly available pay schedules" and requires that the schedules be adopted
by the governing board of the employer at a public meeting, be available for public inspection,
ete.

Consistent with CalPERS' initial direction to its participating employers to continue to collect
contributions on special compensation pay items beyond base pay, CalPERS ultimately adopted
regulations that include some 99 types of pay other than base pay that CalPERS is treating as
"pensionable compensation” and on which it is requesting employers to pay contributions.
(C.C.R. § 571.1.) The special pay items beyond base pay that CalPERS includes in pensionable
compensation are summarized as follows:

1. Incentive Pay: Longevity pay, marksmanship pay, etc.

2. Education Pay: CPA incentive, educational pay for course, certificates and
degrees which enhance ability to do the job, Peace Officer Standard Training (POST)
Certificate Pay, etc.

3. Premium Pay: Temporary upgrade pay.

4. Special Assignment Pay: Accountant premium, administrative secretary premium,
bilingual premium, canine officer/animal premium pay, confidential premium, hazard
premium, lead worker/supervisor premium, motorcycle patrol premium, narcotics
division premium, patrol premium, shift differential, etc.

5. Additional pay items:
. Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) pay (compensation paid for normal full-time
work schedule including premium pay required by FLSA); and

. Holiday pay (additional compensation for employees who are normally required
to work on an approved holiday because they work in positions that require scheduled
staffing without regard to holidays).

On January 28, 2015, as requested by the Board, CCCERA staff provided the results of a survey
of the type of pay items beyond base pay that other CERL systems are including in "pensionable
compensation”" for PEPRA members. It was directed that this item be placed on a future Board
agenda in order to allow the Board to consider changing the Board's policy and including more
than base pay in pensionable compensation for PEPRA Members.

1355 WillowWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



CCCERA Board of Retirement
April 8, 2015
Page 4

In order to assist the Board in considering this item, included with this memorandum are the
following attachments:

Attachment 1

Attachment 2

Attachment 3

Attachment 4

Attachment 5

Attachment 6

Attachment 7

Attachment 8

Recommendation

Policy On Determining "Pensionable Compensation" Under PEPRA For
Purposes of Calculating Retirement Benefits

California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013, Government
Code Section 7522.34

Minutes of CCCERA public Board meeting, December 12, 2012, Agenda
Item 9.

Memorandum dated December 21, 2012 from CCCERA to all CCCERA
employers notifying that the Board determined that "Pensionable
Compensation" under PEPRA is limited to base pay only, and that if
CalPERS takes a position that differs, the Board will revisit the issue.

Minutes of CCCERA public Board meeting, September 4, 2013, Agenda
Item 8.

Memorandum dated September 6, 2013 from CCCERA to all CCCERA
employers notifying that the Board, after consideration and analysis of all
pay items beyond base pay, determined that no pay items beyond base pay
will be used in the calculation of the retirement benefit for members
covered by the PEPRA benefit formulas.

Results of survey of pay items beyond base pay included in pensionable
compensation by other CERL systems, presented to the CCCERA Board
on January 28, 2015.

CalPERS Regulation 571.1.

Due to the complexity of this matter, a multiple step approach is recommended, as follows:

Step One — Consider whether to change the Board's policy for the purpose of including
any elements of pay other than base pay in pensionable compensation for PEPRA Members.

Step Two — If the Board decides to change its policy to include pay items beyond base
pay, the next step would be to determine the parameters governing the inclusion of additional
pay items and to direct staff to compile and analyze all current pay differentials for all CCCERA
employers based on those parameters. In the previously compiled pay differentials analysis,
CCCERA utilized the following parameters to further define what is the "normal monthly rate of

1355Wi||owWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



CCCERA Board of Retirement
April 8,2015
Page 4

pay" paid to "similarly situated members of the same group of class of employment" beyond

base pay:

Is the differential paid on an ongoing and recurring basis?

Is the differential permanent rather than temporary?

Is it paid for work or skill required of all employees in the job classification rather
than a select few?

Is it paid for work or skill that is required rather than voluntary?

Is it paid for an essential skill or service of the job classification?

Is the pay posted on a publicly available pay schedule?

It will be important to consider and set these parameters before proceeding with a review of all
current differentials for all CCCERA employers.

Step Three — For any pay differentials determined to be includable, analyze and
determine prospective and retroactive reporting and collection of employer and employee
retirement contributions.

Step Four — Draft an amended pensionable compensation policy that reflects the Board's
determinations pertaining to the items set forth above.

1355Wi||owWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



Attachment
#1



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION
BOARD OF RETIREMENT

POLICY ON DETERMINING "PENSIONABLE COMPENSATION"
UNDER PEPRA |
FOR PURPOSES OF CALCULATING RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Adopted: 9/10/2014

L INTRODUCTION

In 2012, the Legislature enacted and the Governor signed into law Assembly Bill 340, which
included the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 ("PEPRA.") PEPRA
changes the terms, conditions and calculation of retirement allowances for new CCCERA
members from those previously in place for "Legacy Members" of CCCERA. This Policy is
effective as to the calculation and amount of retirement allowances for those members of
CCCERA who become "new members" of the retirement system, as defined in PEPRA, Gov.
Code Section 7522.04(f), on or after January 1, 2013.

IL PURPOSE

The purpose of this Policy is to implement provisions of PEPRA relating to member
compensation included in pensionable compensation in accordance with G.C. Section 7522.34.
Pursuant to PEPRA, "pensionable compensation" is used to calculate members' retirement
allowances. (Note: "Pensionable compensation" under PEPRA is comparable to "compensation
earnable” under the County Employees' Retirement Law of 1937, which is used to calculate the
retirement allowances of Legacy Members.)

1. POLICY

Applicable Law: PEPRA defines "pensionable compensation" as follows:

"Pensionable compensation” of a new member of any public retirement system means the
normal monthly rate of pay or base pay of the member paid in cash to similarly situated
members of the same group or class of employment for services rendered on a full-time
basis during normal working hours, pursuant to publicly available pay schedules.

Compensation that has been deferred shall be deemed pensionable compensation when
earned rather than when paid. '

(Gov. Code Section 7522.34(a) and (b).)



PEPRA excludes from "pensionable compensation" the following:

(1) Any compensation determined by the board to have been paid to increase a member's
retirement benefit under that system.

(2) Compensation that had previously been provided in kind to the member by the employer
or paid directly by the employer to a third party other than the retirement system for the
benefit of the member and which was converted to and received by the member in the
form of a cash payment.

(3) Any one-time or ad hoc payments made to a member.

(4) Severance or any other payment that is granted or awarded to a member in connection
with or in anticipation of a separation from employment, but is received by the member
while employed.

(5) Payments for unused vacation, annual leave, personal leave, sick leave, or compensatory
time off, however denominated, whether paid in a lump sum or otherwise, regardless of
when reported or paid.

(6) Payments for additional services rendered outside of normal working hours, whether
paid in a lump sum or otherwise.

(7) Any employer-provided allowance, reimbursement, or payment, including, but not limited
to, one made for housing, vehicle, or uniforms.

(8) Compensation for overtime work, other than as defined in Section 207(k) of Title 29 of
the United States Code [FLSA].

(9) Employer contributions to deferred compensation or defined contribution plans.

(10) Any bonus paid in addition to the compensation described in subdivision (a) [of G.C. §
7522.34].

(11) Any other form of compensation a public retirement board determines is inconsistent
with the requirements of subdivision (a) [of G.C. § 7522.34].

(12) Any other form of compensation a public retirement board determines should not be
pensionable compensation.

(Gov. Code Section 7522.34(a) and (b).)

CCCERA Policies and Practices. The CCCERA Board has determined that "Pensionable

Compensation” includes "base pay." Pensionable compensation does not include any pay other
than base pay, in accordance with Govt. Code Sections 7522.34(c)(11) and (12).

For purposes of determining the amount of "pensionable compensation,” pensionable
compensation shall be limited to the amount listed on "publicly available pay schedules." A
"publicly available pay schedule” must meet all of the following requirements:

1. Has been duly approved and adopted by the employer's governing body in accordance
with requirements of applicable public meetings laws;

2. Identifies the position title for every employee position;

3. Shows the pay rate for each identified position, which may be stated as a single
amount or as multiple amounts within a range;



4. Indicates the time base, including, but not limited to, whether the time base is hourly,
daily, bi-weekly, monthly, bi-monthly, or annually;

5. 1Is posted at the office of the employer or immediately accessible and available for
public review from the employer during normal business hours or posted on the
employer's internet website;

6. Indicates an effective date and date of any revisions;

7. Is retained by the employer and available for public inspection for not less than five
years; and

8. Does not reference another document in lieu of disclosing the pay rate.

Whenever an employer fails to meet all of the foregoing requirements, the Retirement Board, in
its sole discretion, may determine an amount that will be considered to be "pensionable
compensation," taking into consideration all information it deems relevant including, but not
limited to:
(a) Documents approved by the employer's governing body in accordance with
requirements of public meetings laws and maintained by the employer; and
(b) Pensionable compensation earned by the member that last met the foregoing
requirements.

This policy was adopted by the Board of Retirement on September 10, 2014 and supersedes
the predecessor ''Second Addendum to Policy for Determining Which Pay Items are
'Compensation’ for Retirement Purposes."



Attachment
#2



California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013

California Government Code Section 7522.34. Pensionable compensation

(a) “Pensionable compensation” of a new member of any public retirement system means the normal monthly
rate of pay or base pay of the member paid in cash to similarly situated members of the same group or class of
employment for services rendered on a fulltime basis during normal working hours, pursuant to publicly
available pay schedules, subject to the limitations of subdivision (c).

(b) Compensation that has been deferred shall be deemed pensionable compensation when earned rather than
when paid.

(¢) Notwithstanding any other law, “pensionable compensation” of a new member does not include the

following:

(1)  Any compensation determined by the board to have been paid to increase a member’s retirement benefit
under that system.

2) Compensation that had previously been provided in kind to the member by the employer or paid directly
by the employer to a third party other than the retirement system for the benefit of the member and
which was converted to and received by the member in the form of a cash payment.

(3)  Any one-time or ad hoc payments made to a member.

4 Severance or any other payment that is granted or awarded to a member in connection with or in
anticipation of a separation from employment, but is received by the member while employed.

(5)  Payments for unused vacation, annual leave, personal leave, sick leave, or compensatory time off,
however denominated, whether paid in a lump sum or otherwise, regardless of when reported or paid.

(6) Payments for additional services rendered outside of normal working hours, whether paid in a lump sum
or otherwise. :

(7)  Any employer-provided allowance, reimbursement, or payment, including, but not limited to, one made
for housing, vehicle, or uniforms.

®) Compensation for overtime work, other than as defined in Section 207(k) of Title 29 of the United States
Code.

9) Employer contributions to deferred compensation or defined contribution plans.

(10)  Any bonus paid in addition to the compensation described in subdivision (a).

(11)  Any other form of compensation a public retirement board determines is inconsistent with the
requirements of subdivision (a).

(12)  Any other form of compensation a public retirement board determines should not be pensionable
compensation.

(13)  (A) Any form of compensation identified that has been agreed to be nonpensionable pursuant to a

memorandum of understanding for state employees bound by the memorandum of understanding. The
state employer subject to the memorandum of understanding shall inform the retirement system of the
excluded compensation and provide a copy of the memorandum of understanding.

(B) The state employer may determine if excluded compensation identified in subparagraph (A) shall
apply to nonrepresented state employees who are aligned with state employees subject to the
memorandum of understanding described in subparagraph (A). The state employer shall inform the
retirement system of the exclusion of this compensation and provide a copy of the public pay schedule
detailing the exclusion.



Attachment
#3



Page 1

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

December 12, 2012

The Board of Retirement met in regular session at 9:00 a.m. on Wednesday, December 12, 2012 in the
Conference Room of the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association, 1355 Willow Way, Suite
221, Concord, CA.

Present:

Absent:

Staff:

Debora Allen, Terry Buck, Richard Cabral, John Gioia, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Sharon
Naramore, John Phillips, Gabe Rodrigues, Jerry Telles, Maria Theresa Viramontes and Russell

Watts

None

Marilyn Leedom, Retirement Chief Executive Officer; Kurt Séhneider‘, Retirement Deputy
Chief Executive Officer; Timothy Price, Retirement Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy,
General Counsel; and Vickie Kaplan, Retirement Accounting Manager

Outside Professional Support:

Harvey Leiderman

Other Attendees:

Luz Casas

Karen Davis
Christina Dunn
Jessica Huffman
Tracy Kroll
Joelle Luhn
Justine Rossini
Liz Walker

Mike Sloan

Kris Hunt

Peter Cheung
Jim Bickert

Ken Westermann
Michelle Johnston
Teji O'Malley
Lucy Fogarty
Brandy Sandborn
Lisa Driscoll
Vincent Wells
Todd Smithey
Rollie Katz

Mike Mohun

1. Pledge of Allegiance

Representing:
Reed Smith LLP

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association (CCCERA) Staff
CCCERA Staff

CCCERA Staff

CCCERA Staff

CCCERA Staff

CCCERA Staff

CCCERA Staff

CCCERA Staff

Contra Costa County Retired Employees Association
Contra Costa County Taxpayers Association
Paladin

Deputy Sheriff's Association (DSA)

DSA

Auditor-Controller

Central Contra Costa Sanitary District (CCCSD)
Superior Court

Superior Court

County Administrators Office

Contra Costa County Fire Protection District
CCCsSD

Local One

San Ramon Valley Fire

Viramontes led all in the Pledge of Allegiance.




CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

Page 2 December 12, 2012

2. Recognition of Liz Walker for 15 years of service

Viramontes recoghized and congratulated Liz Walker for her 15 years of service.

Viramontes reported Item 8 will be discussed at 11:00 a.m. Paul Angelo from The Segal Company is unable
to attend and will call at that time.

. Public Comment
Kris Hunt, Contra Costa Taxpayers Association, expressed her disappointment that audio recording of
the Board meetings and changing the schedule for the closed session portion of the Board meetings has

not been placed on the agenda for discussion,

Approval of Minutes

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the October 24, 2012 Board meeting. (Yes: Allen, Buck, Cabral,
Gioia, Hast, Phillips, Telles, Viramontes and Watts)

. ' Routine Items

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the December 12, 2012 meeting. (Yes: Allen, Buck, Cabral,
Gioia, Hast, Phillips, Telles, Viramontes and Watts)

It was the consensus of the board to move to item 9,

9. Addendum to “Compensation for Retirement Purposes” policy for new members on or after January

1, 2013 (PEPRA)

Levy reported the proposed second addendum to this policy is another step in implementing the California
Public Employees Pension Reform Act of 2013, or PEPRA. She noted this addendum applies to new
members only, not "legacy” members. She noted PEPRA uses the term, “pensionable compensation" to
define the compensation used for retirement purposes.

Levy reviewed the statutory definition of "pensionable compensation” and the pay items that are
excluded from “pensionable compensation” as defined by Government Code Section 7522.34. There was

discussion on the definitions of "normal working hours" and "base pay."

Discussion followed on whether o adopt the proposed policy and amend at a later date if more
information becomes available as to the definition of "base pay". Leiderman noted that it was his
understanding that the CalPERS Chief Counsel felt that "base pay" does not include any pay items other
than base pay.

Levy also reviewed implementation approaches taken by other CERL Systems noting that CalPERS, who is
also subject to this new statute, has not published a position on whether it will be implementing
"pensionable compensation” to include base pay only or base play plus special items of compensation. She




CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

Page 3 ' December 12, 2012

recommended that the pensionable compensation implementation approach selected for CCCERA should
be subject to further clarification of the law, including legislative and decisional law, as well as
clarification from CalPERS on how they intend to implement "pensionable compensation."

Lisa Driscoll, County Administrators Office, requested clarification on whether it would create an
unfunded liability if the "base pay only" approach was adopted and then later amended causing employers
to under-collect contributions.

Jim Bickert, DSA, stated Sonoma County has recently gone through pay codes one by one and determined
a vast majority of the pay codes will remain in "pensionable compensation”. He feels that since other
CERL systems are taking a different approach than the "base pay only" approach, the law does not appear
to be clear on the definition of "pensionable compensation.”

Discussion followed regarding the timeframe the decision needs o be made within and which decision
would have the least amount of impact on members and employers if it later needs to be amended.

It was M/S to adopt the second amended policy as presented with the understanding the policy can be
amended.

A substitute motion was M/S to notify employers the definition of "pensionable compensation” is limited
to "base pay only" and o adopt the second amended policy excluding Item 3(h) until January when it can
be clarified.

Levy noted by excluding Item 3(h), a portion of the statute defining "pensionable compensation” is being
removed from the policy.

After discussion on the substitute motion, the question was called.

It was M/ to call for the question, The motion was lost.

The substitute motion was M/S/C to notify employers that "pensionable compensation” for PEPRA
members is limited to "base pay only" until January or as soon as it can be clarified and to adopt the
second addendum to the board's compensation policy excluding Item 3(h). (Yes: Allen, Gioia, Hast,
Phillips, Telles, Viramontes and Watts. No: Buck. Abs.: Cabral)

Tt was the consensus of the Board to move to item 8.

8. Implementation of rate methodology for new members on or after January 1, 2013 (PEPRA)

Schneider noted the Board began discussion at the November 28, 2012 Board meeting whether member
contribution rates for PEPRA members should be calculated using a flat rate method or an age at entry
method. At the November meeting the Board requested input from the employers to determine the
employer's preference. Schneider distributed a letter from the County which stated the preference of
the County was to use the age at entry methodology for calculating contribution rates for PEPRA
members. He noted the other employers that responded to his inquiry either expressed a preference for



Attachment
#4



MEMO

Date: December 21, 2012
To: CCCERA Employers
From: Kurt Schneider, Retirement Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Subject: Pensionable Compensation for PEPRA Tiers Effective January 1, 2013

Introduction:

The California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) created a new definition
of “Pensionable Compensation” that applies to new CCCERA members that are covered under the
PEPRA benefit formulas. At the December 12, 2012 CCCERA Board meeting, the Retirement
Board adopted a policy regarding which pay items are included as Pensionable Compensation.

CCCERA Pensionable Compensation:

Since PEPRA uses language identical to that in regulations that cover CalPERS, the Board has
relied on language in those regulations to help interpret the meaning of the PEPRA statute. Based
on the advice of legal counsel and a Board vote of 7 to 2 in favor of the motion, the Board has
determined that “pensionable compensation” under PEPRA is limited to base pay only, since
PEPRA requires that pensionable compensation be limited to:

1. the normal monthly rate of pay or base pay of the member,

2. amounts paid in cash to similarly situated members in the same grade or class of employment,
3. payments for services rendered on a full-time basis during normal working hours, and

4. compensation pursuant to publicly available pay schedules.

With the understanding that CalPERS has not issued a formal position on how they will interpret
the PEPRA statute, the Board has decided that if CalPERS takes a position that differs from the one
our Board has adopted, our Board will revisit this issue.

Flat Member Contribution Rate for PEPRA Tiers:

Also at the Board meeting on December 12, the Board decided that new members covered under the
PEPRA benefit formulas will have a flat contribution rate. This means that every member in a given
PEPRA tier will have the same member contribution rate. This is consistent with most defined
benefit plans including CalPERS and the surrounding county and city retirement systems. The
member and employer contribution rates for the CCCERA PEPRA tiers will be presented to the
Board for adoption at the January 9, 2013 Board meeting.



Pensionable Compensation Limit for 2013:

PEPRA also places an annual dollar limit on Pensionable Compensation. The dollar limit for 2013
is $113,700 for members enrolled in Social Security and $136,440 for members who are not
enrolled in Social Security. These limits will be adjusted in future years based on changes in the
Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers.

Annual compensation of a plan member which exceeds the pensionable compensation limit may not
be taken into account in determining benefits or contributions due for any plan year.

Employees who are covered under the CERL benefit formulas (e.g. 2% at 55 or 3% at 50) are not
subject to the pensionable compensation limit. See the 401(a)(17) Compensation Limit memo for
the dollar limits that apply to these members.

Employees who are covered under the PEPRA benefit formulas (e.g. 2% at 62 or 2.7% at 57) are
subject to the pensionable compensation limit.

Administrative Procedures for PEPRA Members:

1. It is the obligation of each agency payroll department to ensure compliance with the
pensionable compensation limit for affected CCCERA members.

2. The agency payroll department must stop both member and employer contributions to
CCCERA when the pensionable compensation limit is met. The agency must resume the
required contributions with the first payroll check dated in the next calendar year.

3. CCCERA can assist the agency in determining which limit applies to which members upon
request. It is the responsibility of each agency to request assistance from CCCERA if

necessary.

Please contact me with any questions regarding this memorandum.



Attachment
#5



“*CCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES

REGULAR BOARD MEETING Retirement Board Conference Room
9:00 a.m. The Willows Office Park
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

September 4, 2013 Concord, California
Present: Debora Allen, Richard Cabral, Scott Gordon, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll,

Karen Mitchoff, John Phillips, Gabe Rodrigues, Jerry Telles, and Rusty Waits
Absent: None
Staff: Marilyn Leedom, Retirement Chief Executive Officer; Kurt Schneider, Retirement

Deputy Chief Executive Officer; Timothy Price, Retirement Chief Investment Officer;
Karen Levy, Retirement General Counsel; Vickie Kaplan, Retirement Accounting
Manager; and Christina Dunn, Retirement Administration Manager

Outside Professional Support: Representing:
Harvey Leiderman Reed Smith LLP

1. Pledge of Allegiance
Hast led all in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public

No members of the public offered comment.

3. Approval of Minutes

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the June 26, 2013 meeting. (Yes: Cabral, Hast, Holcombe
Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Telles and Watts. Abs.: Gordon)

Allen was present for subsequent discussion and voting.
It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the July 10, 2013 meeting with an amendment to add
Rebecca Bymes, County Counsel, as an Outside Professional in attendance., (Yes: Allen, Cabral,
Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Telles and Watts)

4., Routine Items

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the September 4, 2013 Board meeting. (Yes: Allen,
Cabral, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues, Telles and Watts)

CLOSED SESSION

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957, 54956.9(a) and 54956.9(b).



Page 2
September 4, 2013

The Board moved into open session.

5.

It was M/S/C to accept the Medical Advisor’s recommendation and grant the service connected
disability retirement for Julie Raner. (Yes: Allen, Cabral, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips,
Rodrigues, Telles and Watts)

There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(a).

There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(b).

Consider and take possible action to direct staff regarding pay items beyond base pay for
PEPRA tiers

Levy gave an update regarding possible legislation and CalPERS’ current implementation of
“pensionable compensation” under the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 ("PEPRA")
statute.

Levy reported that, as directed by the Board, CCCERA staff met with employers and interested
parties to discuss specific pay items beyond base pay and is recommending some modifications to
the preliminary analysis and pay item spreadsheets presented to the Board in April based on
information obtained through this process.

After a lengthy discussion, it was M/S to exclude bilingual pay differential from pensionable
compensation.

In public comment, Rollie Katz, Local 1, urged the Board to continue to include bilingual pay as
pensionable compensation.

In public comment, Joe Young, member of the public, asked the Board to be conservative and
include only base pay in pensionable compensation.

In public comment, Bill Cullen, retiree, stated that bilingual pay differential should be included in
base pay. He also stated that everyone who is eligible to receive any differentials beyond base pay
should have the differentials included in pensionable compensation and not be penalized.

After discussion, a substitute motion was M/S to use base pay only for pensionable compensation for
PEPRA members and to exclude all other special pay items.

The original motion and second were withdrawn.
After a lengthy discussion, the question was called.

It was M/S/C to call for the question. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Telles and
Watts. No: Cabral and Rodrigues)

Tt was M/S/C to use base pay only for purposes of pensionable compensation for PEPRA members
and to exclude all other special compensation. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Mitchoff, Phillips and Watts.
No: Cabral, Rodrigues and Telles. Abs.: Hast). Hast noted that his reason for abstaining is that he
agrees with making it more simplistic for employers and employees, but he feels it provides a
deterrent to employees and the services they provide and would hope in the future they would
eliminate differentials and create different classifications which would include the differentials in the
employee’s base salaries.

Hast announced that the vote would be taken and recorded again after Public Comment.



Page 3
September 4, 2013

In public comment, Vince Wells, President Local 1230, urged the Board to consider the reason why
the differentials were put into place and wanted to remind the Board that differentials benefit the
employer by saving the employer money.

In public comment, Joe Young, member of the public, expressed his desire for getting back to base
pay only since that is what the public wants and what they voted for.

In public comment, Rollie Katz, Local 1, stated he doesn’t remember the public voting on this
matter. He doesn’t feel employers are going to agree to pay all employees in a classification an extra
10% because some of the employees deserve it. He also stated he thinks it’s a mistake to think that
the base salary matter will be resolved in negotiations.

In public comment, Steve Anderson, board member of a special district in the County but speaking
as a private citizen, stated that since we are talking about new employees he does not think there is
anything being taken away. He stated that the survival of many special districts is predicated on
what the Board decides since including additional pay items in pensionable compensation could
make the difference between closing a fire station or not,

In public comment, Alex Aliferis, Contra Costa Taxpayers Association, urged the Board to continue
with pension reform. He feels people are leaving California due to the high cost of living. Continued
reform will help the state.

It was M/S/C to use base pay only for purposes of pensionable compensation for PEPRA members
and to exclude all other special compensation beyond base pay. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Mitchoff,
Phillips and Watts. No: Cabral, Rodrigues and Telles. Abs.: Hast).

Levy asked for clarification on two pay items for the Moraga-Orinda Fire District. The Board
clarified that FLSA Pay and Fire Retirement Allotment would be excluded from pensionable
compensation because they are beyond base pay and directed staff to notify the Moraga Orinda Fire
District and all employers of the Board's determination.

9. Consider and take possible action to direct staff regarding pay items used to enhance the final
retirement benefit

Schneider reported the Board had requested information regarding certain pay items which were the
focus of recent media reports, including on-call pay reportedly paid to members who volunteered to
work additional on-call hours during their final compensation period and additional on-call pay
reportedly paid to physicians who did not provide on-call services for the time paid. He reviewed
his memo on the compensation policy, pay items and compensation enhancements,

Schneider reviewed an example of a compensation enhancement using on-call pay. Leiderman
stated it would not be known whether these types of enhancements to compensation can be revisited
by the Board until we know the outcome of the AB 197 litigation.

Mitchoff was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting,.
There was a lengthy discussion on on-call pay, call-back pay and spiking.

It was M/S/C to direct staff to calculate this member's retirement benefit without on-call pay and
send a letter to the member explaining that CCCERA is reviewing the on-call pay further. (Yes:
Allen, Cabral, Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Phillips, Telles and Watts. Abs.: Rodrigues)

In public comment, Rollie Katz, Local 1, stated that on-call pay has always been compensable and
now it is an item of concern. He doesn’t think the Board should deny the on-call pay as pensionable
to the member used in the example,



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 4
September 4, 2013

There was further discussion regarding voluntary and mandatory on-call pay.

In public comment, Rollie Katz, Local 1, asked the Board to be careful comparing what they
consider voluntary to what the employers and the unions consider as voluntary.

Consider and take possible action to cause an election to be held to fill the vacancy in the
seventh member seat

Leedom reported the Board has the authority to call an election to fill the vacancy of the seventh
(Safety) member seat. The nomination period would be from September 30 through October 25,
2013. The ballots will be mailed on December 23 with an election on January 21, 2014.

It was M/S/C to hold an election at the earliest possible date in order to fill the vacancy in the
seventh safety member seat. (Yes: Allen, Cabral, Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Phillips, Rodrigues,
Telles and Watts)

Consider and take possible action regarding the investment consultant for CCCERA

Price reported the Board Chair requested that staff prepare a memo with options for the Board to
consider regarding how to respond to personnel changes recently announced by Milliman.

The Board discussed different options including implementing a policy to review investment
consultants, the possibility of having a separate investment consultant and a separate real estate
consultant, and the amount of time needed to issue an RFP.

The Board directed staff to conduct an on-site visit to the Milliman office.

Presentation of Administrative expenses: Budget vs. Actual as of June 30, 2013

Leedom distributed a detailed report of the budget, noting we are currently at 75% of budget. She
will present the 2014 budget for approval at a meeting in November or December.

It was M/S/C to accept the Budget vs. Actual Report as of June 30, 2013. (Yes: Allen, Cabral,
Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Phillips, Rodrigues, Telles and Watts).

SACRS Voting Proxy

It was M/S/C to appoint Jerry Telles as CCCERA’s Voting Delegate and Gabe Rodrigues as the
Alternate Voting Delegate at the upcoming SACRS Conference. (Yes: Allen, Cabral, Gordon, Hast,
Holcombe, Phillips, Rodrigues, Telles and Watts).

Telles was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting.

14.

15.

Consider and take possible action to reschedule the October 9, 2013 Board meeting

It was M/S/C to reschedule the October 9, 2013 meeting to Wednesday, October 2, 2013. (Yes:
Allen, Cabral, Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Phillips, Rodrigues, and Watts)

Conference Seminar Attendance

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 2 Board members at the Investment Fundamentals,
PIMCO, September 19-20, 2013, Newport Beach, CA. (Yes: Allen, Cabral, Gordon, Hast,
Holcombe, Xroll, Phillips, Rodrigues and Watts)



Page 5
September 4, 2013

b. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 Board member at the Fall Conference, CRCEA,
October 21-23, 2013, Fresno, CA. (Yes: Allen, Cabral, Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Phillips,
Rodrigues and Watts)

¢. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of all Board members and all appropriate staff members
at the Fall Conference, SACRS, November 12-15, 2013, Indian Wells, CA. (Yes: Allen, Cabral,
Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Phillips, Rodrigues and Watts)

16. Miscellaneous
(a) Staff Report—

Leedom reported the agenda packets including the quarterly information for the September 11,
2013 meeting have been distributed to Board members.

She noted a dry rot problem with The Willows Office building. The property manager will
present information to the Board at a future meeting.

Leedom reported Brown Armstrong will begin training the accounting staff on the new GASB
reporting requirements.

Schneider reported progress has been made on the transition from the old retirement software
system to the new retirement software system.

Price reported Long Whar is selling a number of properties in Fund III so there will be some
returns coming in soon.

He reported at the next meeting Paulson will be presenting on a possible real estate investment
opportunity.

He reported he will be attending an on-site at Aether in“Denver on October 28 and 29, 2013.
(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -

None
© Trustees’ comfnents -

Phillips reported he attended the Harvard course.

Cabral corrected a comment from the previous meeting noting Rebecca Byrnes has never been
a County employee and does not collect a CCCERA pension.

Rodrigues reported some DSA members feel the Board is a pro-employer board and not
supportive of employees. He questioned if there was a way to get information to members
informing them why decisions are made by the Board.

Tt was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting. (Yes: Allen, Cabral, Gordon, Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Phillips,
Rodrigues, and Watts) e

%&hl R {f A /v //

N

Brian Hast, Chairman J-“”erry/ﬁl‘eH , Sectetary
/ N

|



Attachment
#6



CONTRA
COSTA ) =
CoU NTY =l

Employees” Retirement Assocnatlon

MEMORANDUM

Date: September 6, 2013

To: CCCERA Employers
From: Kurt Schneider, Retirement Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Subject: Pensionable Compensation for PEPRA Tiers

This is an update regarding pensionable compensation for PEPRA Tiers. On December 21, 2012,
CCCERA advised all employers to report as pensionable and collect contributions only on
PEPRA members’ base pay. After consideration and analysis of all pay items beyond base pay
("differentials"), the CCCERA Board determined on September 4, 2013 that no additional
differentials will be included in pensionable compensation. All employers should continue to
report to CCCERA as pensionable, and collect contributions on, base pay only. No pay items
beyond base pay will be used in the calculation of the retirement benefit for members covered by
the PEPRA benefit formulas.

Please contact me with any questions regarding this memorandum.

1355Wi|l0wWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



Attachment
#7



MEETING paTE

2 OO0
COL}NTYCC - ERA JAN 3@ 2015

Employees’ Retirement Association AGEND
Al
- TEM

MEMORANDUM 3

Date: January 28, 2015
To: CCCERA Board of Retirement
From: Kurt Schneider, Deputy Retirement Chief Executive Officer

Subject:  Survey of CERL Systems Regarding Pensionable Compensation

Background

On September 12, 2012, PEPRA was enacted and created a new definition of “pensionable
compensation” which applies to new members entering CCCERA on or after January 1, 2013.

At the December 12, 2012 CCCERA Board meeting, the Retirement Board determined that
"pensionable compensation" under Government Code §7522.34 is limited to base pay but that
the determination is subject to being revisited based on future developments in the law, and also
on any future positions taken by CalPERS.

On December 27, 2012, CalPERS published a Circular Letter to its participating employers with
information regarding PEPRA. CalPERS' circular stated that CalPERS intends to promulgate
regulations to, among other things, include a list of these additional pay items as "pensionable
compensation" which CalPERS' participating employers would be reporting as pensionable.
CalPERS statutes and regulations refer to these pay items as "special compensation,”" which
includes certification pay, special shift or assignment pay, longevity and bilingual bonuses, etc.

In light of this development, the Board directed CCCERA staff to conduct an analysis of all pay
items beyond base pay for all participating employers in order to determine whether they meet
the definition of "pensionable compensation." On April 10, 2013 and September 4, 2013, staff
presented analyses which included detailed spreadsheets for all pay items under consideration.
At the September 4, 2013 meeting the Board determined that “pensionable compensation” would
be limited to base pay. This decision is reflected in the Board’s Policy on “pensionable
compensation” adopted September 10, 2014. (Copy enclosed.)

On August 20, 2014, CalPERS adopted its final regulation defining “pensionable compensation”
for CalPERS members. The CalPERS regulation includes 99 pay items beyond base pay in
“pensionable compensation” for CalPERS members. In light of this action, the Board directed
CCCERA staff to survey other 1937 Act systems to determine what pay items beyond base pay
are included in “pensionable compensation” in other counties.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



Survey of CERL Systems Regarding Pensionable Compensation

Page 2

Survey Results

The results of the survey are below.

Aside from CCCERA, there are 19 other 1937 Act systems. All 19 systems were surveyed and
were able to provide information on included pay items. A sample of pay items included by the

other 1937 Act systems are shown below.

Included Pay Items by Type

20
15

15
o
£
3 1
2
£

10

£ 10
& 8
k3
E 7
€ 6 6
S
2

5 -

3
0 a T T T T T l
FLSA Shift Holiday Pay  Longevity Special Education  Lead Duties On-Call
Differential Duty/skill Incentive

Two other CERL systems, Stanislaus and Sacramento, like CCCERA, include only base pay in
pensionable compensation. Marin and Ventura, meanwhile, currently include only one pay item
in addition to base pay, FLSA pay.

Issues to consider

e As directed by the Board, no retirement contributions have been collected on any items of
pay beyond base pay for CCCERA PEPRA members.

e CCCERA stakeholders have not officially weighed in on this matter. The Board has
received correspondence from the DSA requesting a re-evaluation of the policy. (Copy
enclosed.)

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



Al14-3

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION
BOARD OF RETIREMENT

POLICY ON DETERMINING "PENSIONABLE COMPENSATION"
UNDER PEPRA
FOR PURPOSES OF CALCULATING RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Adopted: 9/10/2014

L INTRODUCTION

In 2012, the Legislature enacted and the Governor signed into law Assembly Bill 340, which
included the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 ("PEPRA.") PEPRA
changes the terms, conditions and calculation of retirement allowances for new CCCERA
members from those previously in place for "Legacy Members" of CCCERA. This Policy is
effective as to the calculation and amount of retirement allowances for those members of
CCCERA who become "new members" of the retirement system, as defined in PEPRA, Gov.
Code Section 7522.04(f), on or after January 1, 2013.

IL PURPOSE

The purpose of this Policy is to implement provisions of PEPRA relating to member
compensation included in pensionable compensation in accordance with G.C. Section 7522.34.
Pursuant to PEPRA, "pensionable compensation” is used to calculate members' retirement
allowances. (Note: "Pensionable compensation" under PEPRA is comparable to "compensation
earnable" under the County Employees' Retirement Law of 1937, which is used to calculate the
retirement allowances of Legacy Members.)

III. POLICY

Applicable Law: PEPRA defines "pensionable compensation" as follows:

"Pensionable compensation” of a new member of any public retirement system means the
normal monthly rate of pay or base pay of the member paid in cash to similarly situated
members of the same group or class of employment for services rendered on a full-time
basis during normal working hours, pursuant to publicly available pay schedules.

Compensation that has been deferred shall be deemed pensionable compensation when
earned rather than when paid.

(Gov. Code Section 7522.34(a) and (b).)



PEPRA excludes from "pensionable compensation" the following:

(1) Any compensation determined by the board to have been paid to increase a member's
retirement benefit under that system.

(2) Compensation that had previously been provided in kind to the member by the employer
or paid directly by the employer to a third party other than the retirement system for the
benefit of the member and which was converted to and received by the member in the
form of a cash payment.

(3) Any one-time or ad hoc payments made to a member.

(4) Severance or any other payment that is granted or awarded to a member in connection
with or in anticipation of a separation from employment, but is received by the member
while employed.

(5) Payments for unused vacation, annual leave, personal leave, sick leave, or compensatory
time off, however denominated, whether paid in a lump sum or otherwise, regardless of
when reported or paid.

(6) Payments for additional services rendered outside of normal working hours, whether
paid in a lump sum or otherwise.

(7) Any employer-provided allowance, reimbursement, or payment, including, but not limited
to, one made for housing, vehicle, or uniforms.

(8) Compensation for overtime work, other than as defined in Section 207(k) of Title 29 of
the United States Code [FLSA].

(9) Employer contributions to deferred compensation or defined contribution plans.

(10) Any bonus paid in addition to the compensation described in subdivision (a) [of G.C. §
7522.34].

(11) Any other form of compensation a public retirement board determines is inconsistent
with the requirements of subdivision (a) [of G.C. § 7522.34].

(12) Any other form of compensation a public retirement board determines should not be
pensionable compensation.

(Gov. Code Section 7522.34(a) and (b).)

CCCERA Policies and Practices. The CCCERA Board has determined that "Pensionable

Compensation" includes "base pay." Pensionable compensation does not include any pay other

than base pay, in accordance with Govt. Code Sections 7522.34(c)(11) and (12).

For purposes of determining the amount of "pensionable compensation,” pensionable
compensation shall be limited to the amount listed on "publicly available pay schedules.” A
"publicly available pay schedule" must meet all of the following requirements:

1. Has been duly approved and adopted by the employer's governing body in accordance
with requirements of applicable public meetings laws;

2. Identifies the position title for every employee position;

3. Shows the pay rate for each identified position, which may be stated as a single
amount or as multiple amounts within a range;



4. Indicates the time base, including, but not limited to, whether the time base is hourly,
daily, bi-weekly, monthly, bi-monthly, or annually;

5. Is posted at the office of the employer or immediately accessible and available for
public review from the employer during normal business hours or posted on the
employer's internet website;

6. Indicates an effective date and date of any revisions;

7. Is retained by the employer and available for public inspection for not less than five
years; and

8. Does not reference another document in lieu of disclosing the pay rate.

Whenever an employer fails to meet all of the foregoing requirements, the Retirement Board, in
its sole discretion, may determine an amount that will be considered to be "pensionable
compensation,” taking into consideration all information it deems relevant including, but not
limited to:
(a) Documents approved by the employer's governing body in accordance with
requirements of public meetings laws and maintained by the employer; and
(b) Pensionable compensation earned by the member that last met the foregoing
requirements.

This policy was adopted by the Board of Retirement on September 10, 2014 and supersedes
the predecessor ""Second Addendum to Policy for Determining Which Pay Items are
'Compensation’ for Retirement Purposes."



PErN SEP 9
Contra Qosta County 4 2014

Beputy Sheriffs Association

September 23, 2014

CCCERA
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

Subject: Determining pensionable compensation for PEPRA members
Board of Trustees:

In October 2012, Governor Brown signed AB 340 (PEPRA) changing the future of public employee pensions in the
State of California. This new law, intended to affect “new members”, went into effect on January 1, 2013, and was
designed to bring greater transparency and consistency to California’s pension systems operating under PERL and
CERL; these include CalPERS, CalSTRS, and the 20 “1937-Act” Counties.

As a result, the various governing bodies of these pension systems set out to interpret and apply this new law. On
December 12, 2012, agenda item number 9: Addendum to “Compensation for Retirement Purposes” policy for new
members on or after January [, 2013 (PEPRA)”, was discussed. During the Board’s conversation of this item, there
appeas to have been considerable discussion about how other 37-Act systems and CalPERS were viewing and
defining terms within the new statute, CCCERA Council, Karen Levy, recommended that the pensionable
compensation implementation approach selected by CCCERA should be subject to further claritication of the law,
including legislative and decisional law, as well as clarification from CalPERS on how they intend to implement
“pensionable compensation.”

Between December 2012 and April 2013, CCCERA underwent an analysis of determining which employer pay
codes met the statutory requirements for pensionable compensation under PEPRA, Government Code Section
7522.34. The analysis required the individual pay code items meet four statutory requirements in order to be
considered as pensionable compensation. The analysis concluded that there were existing employer pay codes which
did, and not, meet the requirements to be included in pensionable compensation for PEPRA members. At the April
10, 2013 CCCERA Board meeting, and despite the above mentioned extensive efforts to clarify legislative intent,
the Board remained divided about whether or not items beyond base pay were intended by the legislature to be
included in final compensation,

During the September 4, 2013, CCCERA Board meeting, a divided board voted to take the position that base pay
ONLY would be included when calculating a new PEPRA members final average salary. This decision was voted
on despite available information that other 37 Act systems, and CalPERS, were still including items above base pay
and had yet to amend their respective final compensation polices for PEPRA members.

Nearly one year later, CaIPERS finally decided to formally adopt their final compensation policy for PEPRA
Members. Prior to formally adopting their new policy, CalPERS published a circular letter outlining which pay
items beyond “base pay” would be used in calculating final average salary for PEPRA members. Similarly, other 37
Act systems like ACERA (Alameda County) and LACERA (Los Angeles County) have adopted policies which
reasonably include pay items beyond that of base pay. In a letter from Gov. Brown, dated August 15,2014
(attached), to the Director of CalPERS, Governor Brown states the following:

While the proposed regulations are largely consistent witl the purposes of our Pension Reform Act
(emphasis added), they would improperly allow temporary pay resulting fiom short-term promotions to count
towards workers’ pensions, This disregards the rule that pensions will be based on normal monthly pay and not on
short term, ad hoc pay increases.

1780 Muiv Road, Martiver, CA 94553 (925) 228-9710 Fax (925) 228-1637



This paragraph in Governor Brown’s letter, finally makes very clear the intent of the PEPRA legislation, and
supports the DSA’s long-held position that using base-pay only to determine a PEPRA members final average salaty
was notthe intent of the Goverior or the Legislature. What is equally clear is that the viewpoint and analysis held by
retirement associations representing the majority of public employees statewide is inconsistent with those of

CCCERA.

From the beginiing, the DSA has stated that theré is a differerice between “base pay” and “normal monthly rate of
pay”. Thiese words do not mean the same thing; nor should they. be an “option™ for retirement boards to select
according to which definition better suits their political taste.

The fact is, some classifications are truly base pay only, while other classifications have built in, institutionally
recognized, permanent or semi-permanent pay premiums which make up the normal monthly rate of pay for
similarly situated members within the classification, Consistency on this issue statewide is extremely important for
Contra Costa County to recruit and retain quality employees for its workforce.

With this new light being shed on the California pension landscape, the Deputy Sheriff*s Association is requesting
CCCERA reevaluate its pensionable compensation policy for PEPRA members. Additionally, we respectfully
request the topic be placed on the next available Board of Trustees agenda for apen discussion/take possible action,
and that notification be sent to all stakeholders.

Sincerely,

(2
AN /
Ken 3

Prcsidént
Contra Costa DSA




Attachment
#8



Title 2. California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CALPERS)

Proposed Adoption of Article 4, Section 571.1 of Chapter 2 of Division 1 of Title 2
of the California Code of Regulations

(a) For purposes of determining “pensionable compensation” pursuant to
Government Code section 7522.34 for new members under 7522.04(f), it must
meet all the following four criteria:
(1) “Pensionable compensation” means the normal monthly rate of pay or
base pay and;

(A) Must be for normally required duties.

(B) Must be historically consistent with prior payments for the job
classification.

(C)Must be reported periodically as earned.

(2) “Pensionable compensation” is paid in cash to similarly situated
members of the same group or class of employment;

(A) As used in this part, “group or class of employment” means a
number of employees considered together because they share
similarities in job duties, work location, collective bargaining unit, or
other logical work-related grouping. One employee may not be
considered a group or class.

(B) Increases in pensionable compensation granted to an employee
shall be limited during the final compensation period applicable to
the employee, as well as the two years immediately preceding the
final compensation period, to the average increase in pensionable
compensation during the same period reported by the employer for
all employees who are in the closest related group or class.

(3) “Pensionable compensation” is for services rendered on a full-time
basis during normal working hours; and

(4) “Pensionable compensation” is paid pursuant to a publicly available
pay schedule which meets all the following criteria;

(A)Has been duly approved and adopted by the employer’s
governing body in accordance with requirements of applicable
public meetings laws;

(B) Identifies the position title for every employee position used by
the agency;

(C) Specifies the pensionable compensation amount of each
identified position, which may be stated as a single amount or
as multiple amounts within a range;

(D) Indicates the conditions for payment of the item of pensionable
compensation, including, but not limited to, eligibility for, and
amount of each component of pay;

(E)Is posted at the office of the employer or immediately accessible
and available for public review from the employer during normal
business hours or posted on the employer’s internet website:

(F) Indicates an effective date and date of any revisions;



(G)Is retained by the employer and available for public inspection
for not less than five years; and

(H) Does not reference another document in lieu of disclosing the
item of pensionable compensation other than those outlined in
GCS 20049.

(b) The following list exclusively identifies and defines the types of pay the Board
has determined meet the criteria of “pensionable compensation” for those
individuals that are “new members” as defined by Government Code section
7522.04(f), so long as each of the criteria in subdivision (a) have been met. For
Public Agency and Schools, all items in this subsection must be reported if
contained in a publicly available pay schedule as defined in subsection (a)
above.

(1) INCENTIVE PAY

Dictation/Shorthand/Typing Premium - Compensation to clerical employees
for shorthand, dictation or typing at a specified speed.

Longevity Pay - Additional compensation to employees who have been with an
employer, or in a specified job classification, for a certain minimum period of
time exceeding five years.

Marksmanship Pay - Compensation to local police officers, county peace
officers and school police or security officers who meet an established criterion
such as “certification” as a marksperson.

Master Police Officer - Compensation to local police officers, county peace
officers and school police or security officers who meet specified requirements,
years of employment, performance standards, education, Peace Officer Standard
Training (POST), and perform a specialty assignment.

Physical Fitness Program - Compensation to local safety members, school
security officers and California Highway Patrol officers who meet an established
physical fithess criterion.

(2) EDUCATIONAL PAY

The items of pensionable compensation outlined below shall not include
reimbursement to an employee for the cost of an application or test, books,
tuition or travel.

Applicator’s Differential - Compensation to employees who are required to
maintain a Qualified Pesticide Applicator’s Certificate.

Certified Public Accountant Incentive - Compensation to miscellaneous
employees passing an exam and receiving a license as a Certified Public
Accountant.

Educational Incentive - Compensation to employees for completing educational
courses, certificates and degrees which enhance their ability to do their job. A
program or system must be in place to evaluate and approve acceptable
courses.

The cost of education that is required for the employee’s current job classification
is not included in this item of pensionable compensation.



Emergency Medical Technician Pay - Compensation to safety employees who
obtain and maintain an emergency medical technical (EMT) certification.
Engineering Registration Premium - Compensation to engineers who have
taken and passed a California engineering proficiency exam and are registered
with the State of California.

Government Agency Required Licenses - Compensation to employees
receiving and maintaining a license required by government or regulatory
agencies to perform their duties.

International Conference of Building Officials (ICBO) Certificate -
Compensation to building inspectors who obtain and maintain an International
Conference of Building Officials (ICBO) certificate in one or more certified
areas.

Mechanical Premium (Brake Adjustment License, SMOG Inspector
License) - Compensation to employees who obtain and maintain state-required
mechanical licenses.

National Institute of Automotive Service Excellence (NIASE) Certificate -
Compensation to mechanics who obtain and maintain a National Institute of
Automotive Service Excellence (NIASE) certificate.

Notary Pay - Compensation to clerical employees who obtain and maintain a
notary public certificate from the State of California or are deputized by an
agency’s chief administrative officer to sign legal or financial documents for the
agency.

Paramedic Pay - Compensation to employees who obtain and maintain
certification in auxiliary medical techniques.

Peace Officer Standard Training (POST) Certificate Pay - Compensation to
local police officers, county peace officers, school police or security officers and
State members who obtain Peace Officer Standard Training (POST) certification.
Reading Specialist Premium - Compensation to certificated employees who
have obtained special training and provide literacy instruction as part of their
teaching duties.

Recertification Certificate - Compensation to local firefighters who obtain and
maintain a fire safety and prevention certificate for a specified period of time.
Special Class Driver’s License Pay - Compensation to school bus drivers or
street maintenance employees who are required to obtain and maintain a special
class driver’s license to perform their duties.
Undergraduate/Graduate/Doctoral Credit - Compensation to school district
employees and State members who are required to obtain a specified degree.

(3) PREMIUM PAY

Temporary Upgrade Pay - Compensation to employees who are required by
their employer or governing board or body to work in an upgraded
position/classification of limited duration.

(4) SPECIAL ASSIGNMENT PAY
Accountant Premium - Compensation to rank and file employees who are
routinely and consistently responsible for developing the employer’s budget.



Administrative Secretary Premium - Compensation to an administrative
secretary responsible for coordinating meetings, plans and other specialized
activities for the governing body of the contracting agency or school employer.
Aircraft/Helicopter Pilot Premium - Compensation to safety employees who are
routinely and consistently assigned as aircraft/helicopter pilots.

Asphalt Work Premium - Compensation to miscellaneous employees who are
routinely and consistently assigned to mix, transport and/or apply a tar-like
substance for sidewalks, roads, roofs and/or parking lots.

Audio Visual Premium - Compensation to miscellaneous employees who are
routinely and consistently responsible for operating audio visual equipment.
Auditorium Preparation Premium - Compensation to school employees who
are routinely and consistently assigned to prepare auditorium(s), i.e. setting up
stages, lighting, props and chairs for performing arts purposes.

Bilingual Premium - Compensation to employees who are routinely and
consistently assigned to positions requiring communication skills in languages
other than English.

Branch Assignment Premium - Compensation to employees who are routinely
and consistently assigned to a branch office or work site that is identified as
“‘rural”, “remote”, or “unique”.

Canine Officer/Animal Premium - Compensation to local police officers,
county peace officers, school police or security officers or State members who
are routinely and consistently assigned to handle, train and board a canine or
horse. Pensionable compensation shall not include veterinarian fees, feed or
other reimbursable expenses for upkeep of the animal.

Cement Finisher Premium - Compensation to miscellaneous employees who
are routinely and consistently assigned to finish cement work, e.g. watering,
brushing or surfacing.

Circulation Librarian Premium - Compensation to library staff who are
routinely and consistently assigned to the circulation desk of the library.
Computer Operations Premium - Compensation to employees who have
special knowledge of computer processes and applications.

Confidential Premium - Compensation to rank and file employees who are
routinely and consistently assigned to sensitive positions requiring trust and
discretion.

Contract Administrator Coordinator Premium - Compensation to school
employees who routinely and consistently coordinate administrative contracts for
instruction or facility maintenance.

Crime Scene Investigator Premium - Compensation to local police officers,
county peace officers and school police or security officers who are routinely
and consistently assigned to analyze and explore a crime scene.

Critical Care Differential Premium - Compensation to nursing staff who are
routinely and consistently assigned to critical and intensive medical or
psychological care areas.

D.A.R.E. Premium - Compensation to local police officers, county peace
officers and school police or security officers who routinely and consistently
provide training to students on drug abuse resistance.



Detective Division Premium - Compensation to local police officers, county
peace officers and school police or security officers who are routinely and
consistently assigned to a detective or investigative division or intelligence
duties.

Detention Services Premium - Compensation to employees who are routinely
and consistently assigned to areas where criminally charged persons are
confined and nursing staff who are routinely and consistently assigned to an
adult facility where criminally charged persons are confined.

DUI Traffic Officer Premium - Compensation to local police officers, county
peace officers and school police or security officers who are routinely and
consistently assigned to enforce Driving Under the Influence (DUI) of alcohol or
drug laws.

Extradition Officer Premium - Compensation to local police officers and
county peace officers who are routinely and consistently assigned to return a
person to the custody of another jurisdiction.

Fire Inspector Premium - Compensation to “fire inspector” personnel who are
routinely and consistently assigned to inspect buildings and other permanent
structures for compliance with governmental safety standards.

Fire Investigator Premium - Compensation to “fire investigation” personnel
who are routinely and consistently assigned to investigate causes of destructive
burning.

Fire Prevention Assignment Premium - Compensation to rank and file local
firefighters who are routinely and consistently assigned to specific fire
inspections and investigative work during normal hours of employment that may
differ from the work schedule of fire suppression personnel.

Fire Staff Premium - Compensation to rank and file local firefighters who are
routinely and consistently assigned to administrative work during normal hours
of employment that may differ from the work schedule of fire suppression
personnel.

Flight Time Premium - Compensation to safety employees for time spent as
co-pilot or crew on work related air missions.

Float Differential Premium - Compensation for nurses not specifically
assigned to a specific station.

Front Desk Assignment (Jail) - Compensation to employees staffing a jail who
are routinely and consistently assigned the duty of responding to questions from
the public.

Fugitive Officer Premium - Compensation to local police officers and county
peace officers who are routinely and consistently assigned to pursue persons
who have or are fleeing from justice.

Gang Detail Assignment Premium - Compensation to local police officers,
county peace officers and school police or security officers who are routinely
and consistently assigned to enforce laws relating to a group of individuals
banded together for unlawful activities.

Gas Maintenance Premium - Compensation to maintenance employees who
are routinely and consistently assigned to inspect gas construction, repair
instruments or perform pipeline welder duties.



Grading Assighment Premium - Compensation to employees who are routinely
and consistently assigned to inspect the degree of rise or descent of a sloping
surface.

Hazard Premium - Compensation to employees who are routinely and
consistently exposed to toxic, radioactive, explosive or other hazardous
substances or perform hazardous activities to implement health or safety
procedures.

Heavy/Special Equipment Operator - Compensation to employees who are
routinely and consistently assigned to operate heavy equipment or specialized
equipment.

Height Premium - Compensation to employees who are routinely and
consistently required to work on ladders or mechanical devices at heights over
40 feet.

Housing Specialist Premium - Compensation to city housing specialists who
are routinely and consistently assigned to perform administrative functions of the
housing division.

Juvenile Officer Premium - Compensation to local police officers, county
peace officers and school police or security officers who are routinely and
consistently assigned to enforce laws that restrict the activities of juveniles.
Lead Worker/Supervisor Premium - Compensation to employees who are
routinely and consistently assigned to a lead or supervisory position over other
employees, subordinate classifications, or agency-sponsored program
participants.

Library Reference Desk Premium - Compensation to library staff who are
routinely and consistently assigned to provide direction or resources to library
patrons.

MCO Instructor Premium - Compensation to miscellaneous employees who
are routinely and consistently assigned to train Motor Coach Operators, i.e. bus
drivers.

Motorcycle Patrol Premium - Compensation to local police officers, county
peace officers and California Highway Patrol officers who are routinely and
consistently assigned to operate and/or patrol on motorcycle.

Mounted Patrol Premium - Compensation to local police officers and county
peace officers who are routinely and consistently assigned to patrol on
horseback.

Narcotic Division Premium - Compensation to local police officers, county
peace officers and school police or security officers who are routinely and
consistently assigned to drug enforcement.

Paramedic Coordinator Premium - Compensation to paramedics who are
routinely and consistently assigned to coordinate training activities in auxiliary
medical techniques.

Park Construction Premium - Compensation to groundskeepers who are
routinely and consistently assigned to build park equipment.

Park Maintenance/Equipment Manager Premium - Compensation to park
maintenance employees who are routinely and consistently assigned to
equipment management and other administrative duties.



Parking Citation Premium - Compensation to employees who are routinely
and consistently assigned to read parking meters and cite drivers who have
violated parking laws.

Patrol Premium - Compensation to local police officers, county peace officers
and school police or security officers who are routinely and consistently assigned
to patrol detail. '

Plumber Irrigation System Premium - Compensation to plumbers who are
routinely and consistently assigned as irrigation systems plumbing specialists.
Police Administrative Officer - Compensation to rank and file police officers,
county peace officers and school police or security officers who are routinely
and consistently assigned to police administration to provide support for the
police chief and command staff in the operation of the police department.
Police Investigator Premium - Compensation to rank and file local police
officers, county peace officers and school police or security officers who are
routinely and consistently assigned to analyze crimes or investige accidents.
Police Liaison Premium - Compensation to rank and file local police officers,
county peace officers and school police or security officers who are routinely
and consistently assigned to function as a liaison between special persons,
groups or courts and the police/sheriff department.

Police Polygraph Officer - Compensation to local police officers, county peace
officers and school police or security officers who are routinely and consistently
assigned to administer and interpret polygraph exams.

Police Records Assignment Premium - Compensation to employees who are
routinely and consistently assigned to the police records division.
Rangemaster Premium - Compensation to local police officers, county peace
officers and school police or security officers who are routinely and consistently
assigned to supervise the target range facilities and all related activities.
Refugee Arrival Cleanup Premium - Compensation to employees who are
routinely and consistently assigned to cleanup from activities directly related to
refugee arrival flights.

Refuse Collector Premium - Compensation to maintenance employees who are
routinely and consistently assigned to collect refuse.

Safety Officer Training/Coordinator Premium - Compensation to employees
who are routinely and consistently assigned to instruct personnel in safety
procedures.

Sandblasting Premium - Compensation to miscellaneous employees who are
routinely and consistently assigned to operate sandblasting equipment.

School Yard Premium - Compensation to part-time school district employees
who are routinely and consistently assigned to supervise students during
recreation.

Search Pay Premium - Compensation to employees who are routinely and
consistently assigned to search and process prisoners in the induction area of
jails.

Severely Disabled Premium - Compensation to school instructional aides who
are routinely and consistently assigned to work with severely disabled students.
Sewer Crew Premium - Compensation to laborers who are routinely and
consistently assigned to repair and maintain sewer systems.



Shift Differential - Compensation to employees who are routinely and
consistently scheduled to work other than a standard “daytime” shift, e.g.
graveyard shift, swing shift, shift change, rotating shift, split shift or weekends.
Solo Patrol Premium - Compensation to local police officers, county peace
officers and school police or security officers who are routinely and consistently
assigned to patrol alone in vehicles.

Sprinkler and Backflow Premium - Compensation to groundskeepers who are
routinely and consistently assigned to repair large sprinkler head controllers,
valves and backflow prevention devices.

Street Lamp Replacement Premium - Compensation to maintenance
employees who are routinely and consistently assigned to replace street lamps
from an aerial bucket.

Tiller Premium - Compensation to local firefighters who are routinely and
consistently assigned to operate the tiller on an aerial ladder.

Tire Technician Premium - Compensation to equipment attendants who are
routinely and consistently assigned to work on heavy duty tires, e.g. for buses
and large construction equipment.

Traffic Detail Premium - Compensation to employees who are routinely and
consistently assigned to direct traffic.

Training Premium - Compensation to employees who are routinely and
consistently assigned to train employees.

Tree Crew Premium - Compensation to maintenance workers who are routinely
and consistently assigned to remove, prune, or otherwise care for trees.

Utility Meter Premium - Compensation to miscellaneous employees who are
routinely and consistently assigned to re-read utility meters, repair or set and
install meters.

Utilities Systems Operation Premium - Compensation to maintenance or
carpenter employees who are routinely and consistently assigned to planner
duties in the maintenance division.

Water Certification Premium - Compensation to miscellaneous employees
who are routinely and consistently assigned to test local water quality for
compliance with governmental health standards.

(5) ADDITIONAL ITEMS

Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) - Compensation paid for normal full-time
work schedule including premium pay required by FLSA.

Holiday Pay - Additional compensation for employees who are normally required
to work on an approved holiday because they work in positions that require
scheduled staffing without regard to holidays.

(c) “Pensionable compensation” for all “new members” does not include;
(1) Payments determined to have been paid to increase retirement.
(2) Compensation that had previously been provided in kind to the
member by the employer or paid directly by the employer to a third
party other than the retirement system for the benefit of the member
and which was converted to and received by the member in the
form of a cash payment.



(3) Any one-time or ad hoc payments.

(4) Severance or any other payment that is granted or awarded to a
member in connection with or in anticipation of a separation from
employment.

(5) Payments for unused vacation, annual leave, personal leave, sick
leave, or compensatory time off, however denominated, whether paid
in a lump sum or otherwise, regardless of when reported or paid.

(6) Payments for additional services rendered outside of normal working
hours, whether paid in a lump sum or otherwise.

(7) Any employer-provided allowance, reimbursement, or payment,
including, but not limited to, one made for housing, vehicle, or
uniforms.

(8) Payment for overtime work, other than as defined in Section 207(k) of
Title 29 of the United States Code.

(9) Employer contributions to deferred compensation or defined
contribution plans.

(10)  Any bonus.

(11)  Any other form of compensation inconsistent with the requirements
of subsection (a).

(12)  Any other form of compensation not listed and described in
subsections (b).

(d) The Board reserves the right to add to or delete from the lists provided in
subdivisions (b) and (c).

Authority cited: Sections 20120 - 20124, Government Code.
Reference: Sections 7522.04, 7522.34, Government Code.



Meeting Date
04/08/15

CONTRA Agenda Item
SHCCCERA L™
COUNTY

Emp oyees Retirement Association

MEMORANDUM

Date: March 31, 2015

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement

From: Wrally Dutkiewicz, Retirement Compliance Officer

Copy: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer

Subject: CCCERA Retiree Look Back Project — Compensation Enhancement Study

Further Review of Compensation Items

I. Background

The purpose of this memo is to summarize the findings from a further review of
compensation items performed by CCCERA staff and present a plan for the review other
compensation items that may have contributed to the enhancement of retirees’ final
average salaries of as directed by the Board of Retirement on December 10, 2014.
During that meeting staff presented its findings found in the CCCERA Retiree Lookback
Project — Compensation Enhancement Study which noted that compensation items that
were variable in nature appeared to have high percentage changes in payments to
members when the pre-final average salary (pre-FAS) period was compared to the final
average salary (FAS) period. The Lookback Project identified one hundred and eighty-
eight (188) out of three-thousand eight hundred and eighty-one (3,881) that had a FAS
over pre-FAS increase of thirty percent (30%) or more.

Variable compensation encompasses those compensation differentials that are dependent
on other parameters such as scheduling, varying shift-work, supervisory discretion with
respect to allocating work assignment time, voluntary shift-work performed by members,
and specialized work activity. The Lookback Project noted that there were forty-two (42)
retirees of the one hundred and eighty-eight (188) that were identified as having variable
compensation items included in their final average salary.

The focus of this review was to examine other cbmpensation items, specifically shift-pay
and other FAS differential compensation items in addition to the other on-call and

Page 1 of 8



standby pay items that had been included in retirees’ final average salaries and had
previously been reported on in the December 10, 2014 Board of Retirement Meeting.

II. Observations

This further review looked at the other compensation elements including differential
payments for education, credentialing, longevity, and other occupational specific
compensation components. The data indicated that these differential items did not
display high percentage changes between the pre-FAS and FAS periods due to the
manner in which eligibility to receive the compensation item is determined, and then
once eligibility was established, the member would continue to receive the compensation
element until they were no longer eligible or qualified for another form of differential
compensation which would replace that which they were receiving. It was observed that
percentage increases over time related to new negotiated rates memorialized in MOU for
the compensation items. Any high changes in the differential rates that were noted were
isolated instances and reflected the member having achieved new eligibility criteria such
as a longevity milestone, or additional education or training requirement.

There were thirty-eight (38) earn code items that were variable in nature that were
identified in the Lookback Project. Additional sampling on the remaining thirty-one
variable earn code items were reviewed and the following was found:

Shift Pay:

Generally, to qualify for a shift differential payment a member must have a regularly
assigned daily work schedule that requires a defined number of hours to be worked
over and above the normal actual working time. In addition, shift pay may also be paid
for time that a member works outside of normal daylight working hours such as during
the evening, night or early morning.

There were seven (7) shift-pay differentials that were reviewed:

Differential
Differential Name Earn Code
Shift Pay @ 5% SH2
Shift Pay @ 7.5% SH3
Shift Pay @ 12% SHS
Shift Pay @ 15% SH7
Shift Pay @ 12% SHM
Shift Pay @ 15% SHN
Shift Pay @ 5.25% SHX

There were three shift pay differentials that had marked increases between the
members’ pre-FAS and FAS periods. In two instances, SH2 (Shift Pay @ 5%) and
SH7 (Shift Pay @ 15%) the average monthly amount paid to the member was
negligible during the pre-FAS period and sharply increased during the FAS periods.

Page 2 of 8



$300

$250

$200

$150

$100

$50

S0

SH2 - Shift Pay @ 5%
Average Monthly Amounts

4—""""""""""1—

pre-FAS Average Payment $16 FAS Average Payment $181
24 Months pre-FAS/FAS

$1,600
$1,400
$1,200
$1,000
$800
$600
$400
$200

S0

SH7 - Shift Pay @ 15%
Average Monthly Amounts

A

s ————— e e e

pre-FAS Average Payment $155 FAS Average Payment $998
24 Months pre-FAS/FAS

Page 3 of 8




The third shift pay differential SHX (Shift Pay @ 5.25%) did appear to be paid in a
more consistent fashion with payments starting during the pre-FAS period and then
continuing on through the FAS period with the noted abrupt fall in the average amount
of payments immediately preceding the FAS period.

SHX - Shift Pay @ 5.25%

Average Monthly Payments
$450

$400

$350
$300 r\-W
$250

$200
$150
$100
" '\\~N~.-.-'.-.-l v
$0
e RN

pre-FAS Average Payment $155 FAS Average Payment $291

24 Months pre-FAS/FAS

Page 4 of 8




Other Variable Differentials:

The review also examined another twenty-four (24) variable differentials including
such items as weekend and evening bonus pay, occupational specialization pay, recall
standby pay, and worksite/facility assignment pay. There were two variable
compensation items that appeared to have a marked increase between the pre-FAS and
FAS periods:

Fire Services Emergency Recall and Standby Differential:

In order to be eligible to receive the F67 Fire Recall & Standby @ 5% differential, the
member has to be assigned to standby and emergency recall duty for a minimum of
two (2) weeks each month. Payments of the F67 differential that were observed
indicated that the members had not been paid the differential during their pre-FAS
period.

F67 Fire Recall & Standby @ 5%

$700 Average Monthly Payments

$600
$500
$400
$300
$200
$100

S0

R s e

pre-FAS Average Payment $0 FAS Average Payment $496

24 Months pre-FAS/FAS

Page 5 of 8




Bonus FNP Weekend Assignment:

Family Nurse Practitioners (FNP) are eligible to receive the B31 Bonus FNP Weekend
Assignment differential when working in the hospital and clinic division in the evening
and weekends. FNPs with twenty years of service are not required to work weekend
shifts but may volunteer to do so.

B31 - Bonus FNP Weekend Assignment

- Average Monthly Payment

$200
$150

$100

$50

S0

=

pre-FAS Average Payment $79 FAS Average Payment $138

24 Months pre-FAS/FAS

Page 6 of 8




III. Summary :

The Lookback Project encompassed a population of 3,881 retirees and focused on the 188
retirees that had a FAS over pre-FAS increase of 30% or more. Although the findings
provided insights into the compensation components that led to the high increases in FAS
over pre-FAS, there are potentially members of the retiree population that had increases in
FAS over pre-FAS attributed to the inclusion of variable compensation items that may have
had significant increases in the individual differential payments which translated into
moderate increases in FAS.

This further review of variable compensation items including “Shift Pay” compensation
highlights additional items that the Board may choose to include in a wider and deeper
review of Final Average Salary compensation components across the full study population
during the period. The following list of variable differential compensation components
appeared to have high percentage changes between pre-FAS and FAS periods.

Differential
Differential Name Earn Code
Shift Pay @ 5% SH2
Shift Pay @ 7.5% SH3
Shift Pay @ 12% SH5
Shift Pay @ 15% SH7
Shift Pay @ 12% SHM
Shift Pay @ 15% SHN
Shift Pay @ 5.25% SHX
Fire Recall & Standby F67
Bonus FNP Weekend B31

Page 7 of 8



From the Board of Retirement Meeting 12/10/2014 — Agenda Item #7 — Minutes

ltem (b). If the Board determines that any other compensation increases to variable
compensation items (such as shift differentials, holiday compensation, education/certification
pay, ete.) are types of potential “improper increase” in compensation that the Board would like to
further review for possible exclusion, the next step will also be to proceed with Board hearings
affording the affected retired members the opportunity to appear before the Board, as set forth
above,

-

It was M/S/C to direct staff to move forward with Items a, b & ¢ as outlined on page 4 of
Schneider’s December 10, 2014 memo. (Yes: Allen, Gordon, Hast, Mitchoff, Phillips, Rodrigues,
Smithey, Telles and Watts)

Page 8 of 8



CONTRA '
COSTA CCCERA Meeting Date
COUNTY 04/08/15

Employees’ Retirement Association
poy Agenda Item

#9
MEMORANDUM
Date: April 8, 2015
To: CCCERA Board of Retirement
From: Karen Davis, Retirement Benefits Manager
Subject: Elizabeth Maaske, Application for Non-Service Connected Disability, Tier 3

On January 3, 2015, Elizabeth Maaske, a Contra Costa County employee, and an active
CCCERA member, not in retired status, died as a result of anaphylactic shock. Prior to her
death, Ms. Maaske filed an “active death “ form with CCCERA authorizing CCCERA to apply
for a non-service connected disability retirement on her behalf in the event that she is
permanently incapacitated by reason of injury of other disability leading to her death while in
active membership. Ms. Maaske elected in writing Optional Settlement 2 in the event that the
disability retirement is granted. Ms. Maaske is vested in terms of her eligibility for non-service
connected disability because she had approximately 12 years of service (GC 31720).

CCCERA has filed an application for disability on behalf of the member. The Board is now
called upon to make a determination as to whether the member became permanently unable to
engage in any substantial gainful employment. If so, the member would be entitled to a non-

- service connected disability, effective on the date of death or some earlier date (G31720.1). The
nominated beneficiary, the member’s spouse, would then receive a lifetime monthly allowance
equal to 100% of the Optional Settlement 2 allowance (GC 31760).

The member was a 52-year old Licensed Vocation Nurse in the Health Services Department.
Medical records were analyzed by the Board’s medical advisor, who concluded that the evidence
showed Ms. Maaske was totally disabled form any substantial gainful employment as defined by
GC 31720.1, prior to her death. She became disabled on January 2, 2015 or earlier and remained
totally disabled from any substantial gainful employment for the remainder of her life.
Therefore, she meets the medical requirements of permanent disability for Tier IIl member on a
non-service connected basis.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



Recommendation:

Find that the member was permanently unable to engage in any substantial gainful employment
and grant a non-service connected disability retirement effective January 2, 2015.

Approve payment to the named beneficiary, member’s spouse, of the retirement allowance to
which the deceased member would have been entitled if she had retired by reason of non-
service-connected disability and elected Optional Settlement 2 as of the date of her death.

Notes:

Had the member not filed an active death form, or if the application for disability retirement is
denied, the spouse would be eligible for a monthly continuance under GC 31781.1; or the
standard death benefit, which is a lump sum death benefit under GC 31781 equal to the
member’s accumulated contributions plus 50% of the member’s annual compensation.

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



ReedSmith MEMORANDUM

Reed Smithuwp

401 Second Strest

5 Suite 1800

an Franclsco, CA 84105

From: Harvey L., Lelderman Tal +1 415 643 8700
Diroct Phone: +§ 418 659 6814 Fax +1 416 391 8269
Emalk HLelderman@readsmith.com www.raedsmith.com

To: Boatd of Retirement '
Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Assoclation

Date: December 20, 2010

Subject: Active Death/Disability Applications

As explained in the legal analysis contained in our Confidential Memorandum to the Board of
this same date, we believe that CCCERA’s current practice relating to active death/disability
applications reflects a reasonable interpretation of its governing law. The practice Is also
consistent with the Legislature’s policy to allow active members to maximize their survivors’
benefits in the event of the members® untimely demise, Accordingly, we do not believe that the
Board needs to adopt auy additional written policy in conneotion with its application for a tax
determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service. We understand tax counsel agrees with
this assessment.

Golng forward, we recommend that CCCERA’s practices be revised as follows:

1. The member should make & written eleotion of Optiona! Settlement 2 (effective upon
vesting), obtatn the written consent of his current spouse (if possible) and file the election
form with the Board at some time during active service. The member may change his
election during his final pre-retirement processing with CCCERA staff, if Option 2 is no
longer appropriate for his particular marital, parental, health or economic sltuation,

2. A member who elects Optional Settlement 2 during service should also execute a written
authorization for CCCERA to file on his behalf an application for non-service connected
disability if, immediately prior to his death, he is permanently incapacitated for non-service
contieeted reasons.

3, The Board should proceed to make a forinal determination whethet the member was
permanently incapacitated for the performance of duty at the time it filed the application for
non-service connceted disability.

For members who currently have the active death/disability form on file with CCCERA, we
believe the system may continue to honor those forms, but should still separately file a formal
disability application on behalf of the member if and when appropriate, and make the
determination of disability, as indicated in steps 2 and 3, above, For new applicants, we
recommend that the application form be rovised consistent with steps 1 and 2, above, A
proposed revised form is attached to this Memorandum for the Board’s conslderation.



Memorandum to CCCERA Board of Retirement
December 20, 2010

Finally, we recommend that staff regularly advise active members of their choices in this regard,
through inclusion in the member benefit handbook, informational postings on its website and
discussions in employer and employes meetings and member retirement interviews,




- Form
CONTRA 27 £ Member Election Form for

COSTA CER/  Non-service Connected Disability in the - 104
Employees Retirement Association Event of Death During Active Membership (Rev. 2013)

Full Name Empioyee # Social Security #

To The Board of Retirement:

Election of Optional Settlement

In accordance with the provisions of the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 (CERL), and the by-laws and
regulations governing the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA), | hereby elect an Optional
Settlement, pursuant to CERL Section 31762 or 31764 or successor section.

| choose Optional Settlement 2 (up to 100% continuance to one beneficiary) I:I

| choose Optional Settlement 4 (up to 100% continuance divided among more than one beneficiary) D

| understand that the beneficiary(ies) of the allowance that continues after my death is (are) the beneficiary(ies), having an
insurable interest in my life, on file at CCCERA at the time of my death as were designated by me on a separate form.

| understand that by signing this form 1 elect a monthly allowance for my beneficiary(ies) in lieu of any other death benefit
including the return of accumulated contributions under CERL Section 31781.

| understand that this election is binding on me unless | withdraw this election before the first payment of any retirement
allowance is made to me, and that at retirement | may make another election of an Optional Settlement, or choose to
receive the unmodified allowance, under CERL.

Authorization to File Non-Service Connected Disability Retirement Application

In accordance with the provisions of CERL, | hereby authorize CCCERA to file an application for a non-service connected
disability retirement on my behaif in the event that | am permanently incapacitated by reason of injury or other disability
leading to death while 1 am an active member of CCCERA. | understand that, if granted, this will entitle my survivor(s) to
receive a non-service connected disability retirement survivor continuance under Optional Settlement 2 or 4.

———

Member Sig

Date ~ mm/ddiyyyy
Consenting Spouse Signature {required if married and any beneficiary is not the spouse) Date — mm/ddiyyyy
Adult Witness Signature (required) Date - rﬁnﬂddlyyyy

Aduit Witness Name {please print)

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221, Concord, CA 94520
925-521-3960 « 925-646-5747 Fax ¢ www.cccera.org
Page 1 of 1



SHCCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

Meeting Date

04/08/15
Agenda Item

MEMORANDUM #10

Date: April 8,2015
To: CCCERA Board of Retirement
From: Karen Levy, General Counsel

Subject: Consider and Take Possible Action Regarding the Next Steps Pertaining to Call Back
Pay Erroneously Reported As Pensionable Which Resulted In Overpayments of
Benefits to Retirees

Background

For many years the County has been erroneously reporting call back pay to CCCERA as
"compensation earnable." At the December 10, 2014 meeting, the Board resolved to make
corrections to the prospective retirement allowances of the 43 members whose "final
compensation” had been improperly increased due to the inclusion of call back pay. The Board
provided all affected members with notice and an opportunity to respond. At the February 11,
2015 meeting, after reviewing available information, including hearing responses by some
affected members, the Board decided to provide further opportunity for each retired member
impacted by the call back pay issue to provide additional information regarding their pay. As
directed by the Board, CCCERA sent a second written notice to all 43 retirees affected by the
call back issue advising them that they would need to notify CCCERA in writing by April 1,
2015 if they would like a further opportunity to submit additional information.

The written responses received as of April 1 to the second notice are summarized as follows:
15 of the 43 retirees requested a further opportunity to submit information regarding their pay.
Of the 15, 8 are physicians who received pay reported as "Physician Call Back Pay," one was a
charge nurse, one was a radiology tech, and the remaining five were hazardous materials
specialists.

CCCERA staff also contacted all affected retired members who did not respond in writing by
April 1, as directed by the Board.

The Board further directed on February 11 that CCCERA implement the payroll adjustment
starting with the May 2015 payroll as to those members who do not notify CCCERA by April 1
that they are requesting an opportunity to present further information.

Lastly, the Board resolved on February 11 to discuss the next steps in the process at its April 8,
2015 meeting.



CCCERA Board of Retirement
April 8, 2015
Page 2

Recommendation

Consider and take possible action regarding the next steps pertaining to call back pay
erroneously reported as pensionable which resulting in overpayments of benefits to retirees, as
follows:

1. Proceed with the fact finding phase as to the members who requested a further
opportunity to provide information about their pay.

2. Send a third written notice to those members only, outlining the issues and types of
information needed to make a determination on the pensionablily of the pay at issue. The notice
will provide a period of time by which all written submissions are to be received by CCCERA.
We suggest a 30-day period.

3. After the written submissions and relevant records are gathered and received, the Board
may consider the best approach to resolving the claims of those members, based on all
information before the Board at that time. Possible approaches may include (a) final decisions
by the Board based on the information before the Board at that time; (b) further hearings to
develop additional facts at a public Board meeting; or (c) further hearings before a hearing
officer, as authorized under Government Code Section 31533.

4, The question of collection of retroactive overpayments resulting from the inclusion of
call back pay for all 43 members will continue to be deferred to a final phase and considered
after all final determinations are made by the Board as to the pensionability of the pay at issue.



Meeting Date

CONTRA 7N\ 04/08/15
COSTA ‘ C< ERA Agenda Item
COUNTY o

Employees’ Retirement Association

MEMORANDUM

Date: April 8, 2015

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement

From: Karen Levy, General Counsel

Subject: Consider and Take Possible Action to Establish An Audit Committee
Background

As requested by the Board, CCCERA Board Regulations have been amended to provide that
committees of the Board may be established if deemed necessary to carry out the business of the
Board. (Regulations, Section I1.8.) The Board may now proceed to consider whether it wishes
to establish an audit committee, as previously discussed by the Board.

Analysis

A standing committee, as distinguished from an ad hoc committee, has continuing subject matter
jurisdiction and an indefinite duration. Standing committee meetings would be subject to the
same Brown Act requirements that govern full Board meetings. Committee meeting agendas
must be published and the public must be afforded the opportunity to attend and comment.

Generally, the purpose of an audit committee is to assist the full Board in its oversight
responsibilities of the integrity of the trust fund's finances, financial reports, operations and
internal controls. When establishing a standing committee, it is advisable for the Board to adopt
a committee charter which sets forth the responsibilities given to the committee by the full
Board, the composition of the committee, and the scheduling of committee meetings. Enclosed,
for the Board's consideration, is a draft Audit Committee Charter.

Recommendation

1. Consider and take possible action to establish an audit committee comprised of a
maximum of four trustees to make recommendations to the full Board regarding audit matters.

2. Consider and take possible action to adopt an Audit Committee Charter.

1355 WillowWay Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX:925.646.5747 www.cccera.org



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION
BOARD OF RETIREMENT

AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

Adopted: _/ /2015

L INTRODUCTION

The Board of Retirement ("Board") has established an Audit Committee to assist it in overseeing
the audit function within the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
("CCCERA").

I1. PURPOSE

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to serve as an advisory committee to the full Board on
matters of the integrity of the trust fund's finances, financial reports, operations and internal
controls.

1. MEMBERSHIP

The Audit Committee will consist of four [or three] members of the Board. The Board
Chairperson will appoint members of the Audit Committee as provided in the CCCERA
Regulations and designate one member to serve as the Committee Chairperson and another
member to serve as the Committee Vice-Chairperson.

Ideally, members should have expertise in accounting, auditing, financial reporting, and internal
control. Although these desired traits are not mandatory, members should be sufficiently
knowledgeable about these topics to make informed recommendations with the assistance of a
financial expert.

IV. MEETINGS

The Audit Committee will meet at least quarterly, with authority to convene additional meetings
as circumstances require. All Audit Committee members are expected to attend each meeting.
The Administrator/Chief Executive Officer will appoint appropriate staff to attend the Audit
Committee meetings. Meeting notices will be provided to interested parties in conformance with
applicable laws, regulations, customs, and practices. All meetings are subject to the Ralph M.
Brown Act, Government Code Section 54950 ef seq. Meeting agendas will be prepared and
provided in advance to Audit Committee members, along with appropriate briefing materials.
Minutes of meetings will be prepared. Minutes of the meeting will contain a record of persons
present, decisions taken, and a high level summary of the discussion.



V. RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

The Audit Committee's areas of responsibility are:

1. Reviewing recommendations of CCCERA staff and outside auditor regarding the audited
financial statements, CCCERA internal controls and audit and compliance plans;

2. Reviewing and addressing audit and compliance review findings;

3. Monitoring compliance with policies;

4. Overseeing the appointment of the outside auditor;

5. Ensuring the independence of outside auditor;

6. Ensuring that the outside auditor has all necessary opportunities to share its findings with

the committee or the Board as appropriate;
7. Other specific subject matters that the full Board deems appropriate.

VI. REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION TO THE FULL BOARD

The Audit Committee will report its activities and make recommendations to the full Board. All
formal actions taken at committee meetings must be considered for approval by the full Board at
a scheduled and properly noticed full Board meeting.



BYRON BRENTWOOD
KNIGHTSEN UNION
CEMETERY

DISTRICT

Employer Review

CI_ZME LS

EAU2014100 — BBKUCD

Meeting Date
04/08/15

Agenda Item

#12

Final Findings
Report dated
2/16/2015

Prepared by:




Byron Brentwood Knightsen Union Cemetery District

Table of Contents

SACOGE
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Byron Brentwood Knightsen Union Cemetery District

Background

The Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association is a public employee
retirement system that was established by the County of Contra Costa (County) on July 1,
1945, and is administered by the Board of Retirement (Board) to provide service
retirement, disability, death, and survivor benefits for County employees and 16 other
participating agencies under the California State Government Code, Section 31450, et.
seq. (County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 or CERL) and the California Public
Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA).

CCCERA administers the retirement benefits for the employees of Contra Costa County
and participating District employers. Participating employers within the CCCERA
retirement system transmit payroll information and contributions to fund the benefits
for their employees. CCCERA sets up retirees’ accounts, processes applications,
calculates retirement allowances, prepares monthly retirement benefit payment rolls,
and makes adjustments to retirement benefits when needed.

Retirement allowances are computed in accordance with statute using three factors:
years of service, age at retirement, and final compensation. For Legacy (pre-PEPRA)
members, final compensation is defined as the highest average annual compensation
earnable (as defined in G.C. Section 31461)by a member during the last one or three
consecutive years of employment depending on the member’s Tier, unless the member
elects a different period with a higher average. For PEPRA members, final compensation
is defined as the highest average annual pensionable compensation (as defined in G.C.
Section 7522.34) earned by the member during a period of 36 consecutive months.

The employer’s knowledge of the laws relating to membership and payroll reporting
facilitates the employer in providing CCCERA with appropriate employee information.
Correct enrollment of eligible employees and correct reporting of payroll information are
necessary for the accurate computation of a member’s retirement allowance.

Since 1878 the Byron-Brentwood-Knightsen Union Cemetery Association has been
serving the community by providing scenic grounds and dignified professional services
to the citizens of East Contra Costa County. In 1928 a special district was created under
the Public Cemetery Act of 1909 which transformed the cemetery association into a
government agency and allowed for the public administration of the grounds and
services. The District entered the retirement system in 1988.

. CCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Byron Brentwood Knightsen Union Cemetery District

Scope

The 2013 Pension Reform legislation granted CCCERA the authority under Government
Code Section 31543 for CCCERA to conduct audits of employers to ensure that employee
and payroll information used in the calculation of Retiree pension benefits is correct and
verifiable. The scope of these on-site reviews include:

e Correctness of retirement benefits;

e Reportable compensation;

e Enrollment in, and reinstatement to the system (GC 31543);

* Pensionable compensation (GC 31461 and 7522.34);

o Determine if employees convicted of certain felonies have forfeited benefits
earned or accrued from the commission of the felony (GC 7522.72(g) and GC

7522.74(g));

e Evaluate whether MOUs are being complied with (i.e. EE Contribution Rates,
Vacation Sales etc.);

® Determine if compensation is paid to enhance a member’s retirement benefit (GC
31461(b)(1) and 7522.34(c)(1)).

The on-site review of the District was conducted on October 1st, 2014. The review
period encompassed active employee records for 2013 through 2014 and retired
employees from 2011 through 2014.

. CCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Byron Brentwood Knightsen Union Cemetery District

The following review activities were performed:

>

>

Reviewed the District’s “Employee Handbook”

Interviewed key staff members to obtain an understanding of the District’s
personnel and payroll procedures;

Reviewed the payroll transactions and compared the District’s payroll register
with the data reported to CCCERA to determine whether the district correctly
reported employees’ compensation;

Reviewed the District’s payroll information reported to CCCERA for all employees
to determine whether pay-rates were reported pursuant to public salary
information;

Reviewed the District’s process for reporting payroll to CCCERA to determine
whether the payroll reporting elements were reported correctly;

Reviewed the District’s employer and employee retirement contribution
calculations for accuracy;

Reviewed the District’s enrollment practices pertaining to temporary/part-time
employees, retired annuitants, and independent contractors to determine

whether individuals met CCCERA membership requirements;

Reviewed the District’s tracking and calculation of unused sick leave balances for
retired members;

Reviewed timesheets and payroll data for retired employees.

. CCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Byron Brentwood Knightsen Union Cemetery District

Findings & Observations

Accuracy of Payroll
information provided to
CCCERA

The review included a comparison of payroll data
provided during the on-site field work with the
compensation and contribution reports submitted to
CCCERA for the 2013 - 2014 time periods. The review
included noting the methodology used by the District’s
administrative staff to calculate monthly compensation
amounts and the application of the appropriate
contribution rates pursuant to Government Code Section
§31454.

The District employs a manual physical ledger process to
maintain its financial accounts including payroll and
retirement contributions. Manual ledger entries are
made for bi-weekly payroll and are manually reconciled
on a monthly, quarterly, and annual basis. Ending
account postings are carried forward from period to
period by manually entering period ending account
amounts as opening account balances for the new period.

Review of the contribution reports and remittances to
CCCERA for the period indicated that the contribution
rates applied to the reported base earnings salaries were
appropriate. It was noted that there were two adjusted
contribution reports submitted for April 2013($46.68)
filed in November 2013 and for July 2013 ($10)
submitted in October 2013.

. CCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review




Byron Brentwood Knightsen Union Cemetery District

Salary Reported in
accordance with
published salary
schedules

The District does not publish publicly available salary
schedules pursuant to GC §7522.34(a).

The District has one employee enrolled in a PEPRA Tier
with a hire date of 7/1/2014 and membership date of
8/1/2014. Pursuant to PEPRA requirements, the District
would need to ensure that it makes its salary schedules
publicly available and in accordance with Board of
Retirement policy. (Policy on Determining “Pensionable
Compensation” Under PEPRA [adopted 9/10/2014])

Enrollment of all eligible
employees

The District has four employment categories:

Introductory Employee;

Regular Full Time;

Regular Part-Time;

Temporary, Seasonal and Casual.

Reviewed time card data for the period 2013 - 2014 for
seven (7) employees and all eligible employees were
enrolled pursuant to GC 31543.

Accuracy of employee
sick leave accrual
balances

Reviewed sick leave accrual procedures and balances
and no exception or variance was noted.

" CCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review




Byron Brentwood Knightsen Union Cemetery District

Accuracy of employee
vacation accrual balances

It was observed for one Retiree that vacation accruals for
the period between 8/21/2008 and 1/18/2009 were
converted to its cash equivalent at a rate of 0.6 hours and
in the amount of $25 each month to cover cell phone
charges. In addition, the Retiree had 11.546 hours
converted to its cash value equivalent to reimburse the
District for personal use of a District vehicle.

Review of corresponding salary and contribution reports
submitted by the District to CCCERA for the period
indicated that the vacation accrual conversions were not
included in the reported pensionable salary for the
Retiree, but were reflected in the vacation accrual and
used report detail recorded in the District ledger. It was
noted that under the District’'s Employee Handbook under
the “Vacation, Conversion of Accrued Vacation to Pay” on
p.44 it states that the “...District does not allow the
payment of wages in lieu of accrued vacation time during
employment...”

District accrual and vacation balance tracking were
reconciled on an annual basis. No other variance or
exception found other that which was noted above.

Forfeiture of benefits
earned or accrued from
the commission of a
felony

At the date of this review there were no known retirees
with felony convictions pursuant to GC 7522.72(g) and
GC 7522.74(g).

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review




Byron Brentwood Knightsen Union Cemetery District

Follow- Up Items

The following items were noted during the course of the review and require follow-up by
the District and CCCERA:

> Ensure that District policies are adhered to prohibiting the conversion of vacation
accruals to cash and its equivalent value in lieu of the employee taking vacation
time while in active membership.

» Make salary schedules publicly available per regulations and provide updates and
amendments to CCCERA as the need appears on a timely basis.

CONTRA
. CCCERA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Byron Brentwood Knightsen Union Cemetery District

District’s Response

Items that appear in the “Follow-Up” section of this report require a written response
from the District to acknowledge each of the points indicated that pertain to the District
and provide CCCERA with feedback on how the District may propose to address the items
noted. CCCERA received the District’s response to the follow up items noted in the
Preliminary Report dated 11/14/2014 on 2/13/2015 and is as follows:

o | -
> o = 4
ZUNION CEMETERY |

Mailing: P.O. Box 551
Location: 11545 Brentwood, Blvd.
Brentwood, CA 94513
Phone (925) 634-4748; Fax (925) 634-9783
Email: ucemetery@yahoo.com
Web: unioncemeterydistrict.com

Januvary 22, 2015

CCCERA

1355 Willow Way. Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

Dear Wrally,

Thank you very much for your thorough report of the On-Site review you had here at Union
Cemetery District on October 1, 2014.

I submitted your review to our Board of Trustee's at their December 17, 2014 Board Meeting.
They also found your report very informative and useful.

We will gladly follow through on the couple of items you noted.
Thank you again for your time and efforts with this task.

It was a pleasure meeting you.

Yours truly,

Barbara Fee
District Manager

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Contra Costa
Mosquito & Vector
Control District

Employer Review

EAU2014100 - CCMVCD

B

Meeting Date
04/08/15

Agenda Item
#13

Preliminary
Findings Report
dated 3/31/2015
prepared by:

CONTRA
S CCCERA
COUNTY
Employees’ Retirement Association|




Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District

Table of Contents

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District

Background

The Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association is a public employee
retirement system that was established by the County of Contra Costa (County) on July 1,
1945, and is administered by the Board of Retirement (Board) to provide service
retirement, disability, death, and survivor benefits for County employees and 16 other
participating agencies under the California State Government Code, Section 31450, et.
seq. (County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 or CERL) and the California Public
Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA).

CCCERA administers the retirement benefits for the employees of Contra Costa County
and participating District employers. Participating employers within the CCCERA
retirement system transmit payroll information and contributions to fund the benefits
for their employees. CCCERA sets up retirees’ accounts, processes applications,
calculates retirement allowances, prepares monthly retirement benefit payment rolls,
and makes adjustments to retirement benefits when needed.

Retirement allowances are computed in accordance with statute using three factors:
years of service, age at retirement, and final compensation. For Legacy (pre-PEPRA)
members, final compensation is defined as the highest average annual compensation
earnable (as defined in G.C. Section 31461)by a member during the last one or three
consecutive years of employment depending on the member’s Tier, unless the member
elects a different period with a higher average. For PEPRA members, final compensation
is defined as the highest average annual pensionable compensation (as defined in G.C.
Section 7522.34) earned by the member during a period of 36 consecutive months.

The employer’s knowledge of the laws relating to membership and payroll reporting
facilitates the employer in providing CCCERA with appropriate employee information.
Correct enrollment of eligible employees and correct reporting of payroll information are
necessary for the accurate computation of a member’s retirement allowance.

The District was formed in 1927 and has been protecting the public health by reducing
the spread of diseases by controlling the proliferation of insects and animals that are
known to host disease vectors. Funded through tax dollars, the District serves a
community of more than a million residents covering 736 square miles in Contra Costa
County. The District entered into the CCCERA retirement system on May 20, 1953.

(X \T‘([H.\C C
COSTA E
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District

Scope

The 2013 Pension Reform legislation granted CCCERA the authority under Government
Code Section 31543 for CCCERA to conduct audits of employers to ensure that employee
and payroll information used in the calculation of Retiree pension benefits is correct and
verifiable. The scope of these on-site reviews include:

Correctness of retirement benefits;

Reportable compensation;

Enrollment in, and reinstatement to the system (GC 31543);

Pensionable compensation (GC 31461 and 7522.34);

Determine if employees convicted of certain felonies have forfeited benefits
earned or accrued from the commission of the felony (GC 7522.72(g) and GC

7522.74(8));

Evaluate whether MOUs are being complied with (i.e. EE Contribution Rates,
Vacation Sales etc.);

Determine if compensation is paid to enhance a member’s retirement benefit (GC
31461(b)(1) and 7522.34(c)(1)).

The on-site review of the District was conducted between October 28th & 29th, 2014.
The review period encompassed active employee records for 2013 through 2014 and
retired employees from 2010 through 2014.

CONTRA
COSTA E
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District

The following review activities were performed:

>

>

Reviewed the District’'s “Employee Handbook”

Interviewed key staff members to obtain an understanding of the District’s
personnel and payroll procedures;

Reviewed the payroll transactions and compared the District’s payroll register
with the data reported to CCCERA to determine whether the district correctly
reported employees’ compensation;

Reviewed the District’s payroll information reported to CCCERA for all employees
to determine whether pay-rates were reported pursuant to public salary
information;

Reviewed the District’s process for reporting payroll to CCCERA to determine
whether the payroll reporting elements were reported correctly;

Reviewed the District’s employer and employee retirement contribution
calculations for accuracy;

Reviewed the District’s enrollment practices pertaining to temporary/part-time
employees, retired annuitants, and independent contractors to determine

whether individuals met CCCERA membership requirements;

Reviewed the District’s tracking and calculation of unused sick leave balances for
retired members;

Reviewed timesheets and payroll data for retired employees.

CONTRA
“"CCCERA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District

Findings & Observations

Accuracy of Payroll
information provided to
CCCERA

The review included the reconciliation of payroll data
provided during the on-site field work with the
compensation and contribution reports submitted to
CCCERA for the 2013 - 2014 time periods. The
reconciliation included a review of the methodology used
by the District’s administrative staff to calculate monthly
compensation amounts and the application of the
appropriate contribution rates.

The District had thirty-five (35) active members at this
time of the review. Payroll and contribution records for
a sample of thirteen (13) active members were reviewed.

It was observed that for the 2013 year contribution
reports for a six month period (February through July)
had to be revised for one member to reflect corrected
employee contribution and subvention percentage rates.
CCCERA accounting worked with the District payroll to
correct and reconcile the contribution records. In
addition it was also observed that the basic and COLA
contribution amounts had been transposed for one
member which was detected through a reconciliation
process and was subsequently corrected through revised
contribution reports.

A reconciliation was performed which compared the
pensionable compensation amounts indicated on the
District’s Retirement Contribution Report for November
2013 including its raw [30 differential compensation
detail against the 2013 CPAS Actuarial Extract report.
For current active members no variance or exception
was noted between the actuarial extract and District’s
contribution report.

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review




Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District

Salary Reported in
accordance with
published salary
schedules

District maintains published, publicly available salary
schedules that are available on demand.

Review of thirteen (13) payroll histories indicated that
the salaries fell within the published scales for position
and steps. It was also noted that the salary schedules
included other compensation components such as
straight time and overtime for the specified position
classifications that are eligible to receive these additional
compensation elements.

Enrollment of all eligible
employees

The District has three employment categories:

e Regular Full Time;
e Regular Part-Time;
e Temporary.

Regular Full-Time employees are defined as those
individuals that are scheduled for and do work forty (40)
hours per week.

Regular Part-Time employees are defined as those
individuals that are scheduled for and do work for less
than forty (40) hours per week.

Temporary employees are individuals hired for short-
term assignments for periods of up to three months or
less.

Review of the District’s employee roster and
employment status of each individual indicated that all
eligible employees had been enrolled in the retirement
system.

Accuracy of employee
sick leave accrual
balances

Reviewed sick leave accrual procedures and balances
and no exception or variance was noted.

CONTRA
“"CCCERA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review




Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District

Accuracy of employee
vacation accrual balances

The District transmits its active employee vacation
accrual balances to CCCERA on its [30 compensation and
contribution reports. A reconciliation of the 130 reports
against thirteen (13) employee timesheets for the 2013
and 2014 years revealed that the District had recorded
“OT/CT” accruals from ten (10) of the thirteen active
employees’ timesheets as “Admin Leave” on the 130
reports for the period. This mischaracterization in
accrual type has led to an overstatement in the Admin
Leave accrual balances for the effected employees in
CCCERA’s pension administration system.

Forfeiture of benefits
earned or accrued from
the commission of a
felony

At the date of this review there were no known retirees
with felony convictions pursuant to GC 7522.72(g) and
GC 7522.74(g).

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review




Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District

Follow- Up Items

The following items were noted during the course of the review and require follow-up by
the District and CCCERA:

> Ensure that accrual items are accurately reflected in the District’s 130 report when
submitted to CCCERA. OT/COMP accruals should not be reported as Admin Leave
on the 130 report and should be reported as a separate advice item on the report.

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District

District's Response

Items that appear in the “Follow-Up” section of this report require a written response
from the District to acknowledge each of the points indicated that pertain to the District
and provide CCCERA with feedback on how the District may propose to address the items
noted. CCCERA received the District’s response to the follow up items noted in the
Preliminary Report dated 2/20/2015 on 3/27/2015 and is as follows:

o) | e 55, M
,«6*71 § | Mosauito Conco
. / § | «VECTOR phon
/N | cONTROL feix ¢

March 26, 2015

Wrally Dutkiewicz, CFE!

Retirement Compliance Officer

CCCERA

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221

Concord, CA 94520

RE: Preliminary Findings Report - Employer Review

Dear Mr. Dutkiewicz,

In regards (o the request for a written response on the follow-up item(s) listed below;

Foliow- Up Items

The following items were noted during the course of the review and require foliow-up by ithe
District and CCCERA:

Lnsure that accrual items are accurately reflected in the Disirict's 130 report when submitted to
CCCERA. OT/COMP accruals should not be vepovted as Admin Leave on the 130 repovt and

showld he reported as a separate advice item on the repori.

The district has reviewed its internal process and as OT/COMP are not pensionable in any form,
we will no longer report these hours on the 130 report.

Sipcere, ,-
el
’/‘}_&1 A P

Craig Downs

Prestocting Poblic Howlth Sinee U227

HBOARD OF TRy

b %

Vb AEH g
Pieals % 4 1o Walint Crock o IS and el

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Meeting Date
04/08/15

Agenda Item
#14

CENTRAL CONTRA
COSTA SANITARY
DISTRICT

Final Findings .
Report Dated

Employer ReVIEW 3/2:3 /205

Prepared by:

EAU2014100 — CCCSD




Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Table of Contents

BACKEIOUNG.....oiieeeceiitctrt ettt e e st st ss s e et see e e s eesen et esaesssras s s 2
BCOII vsesmsnssrssssvmsssins osssnises s yasvoeississ i sis s 45653338348 955858 4493538 794350 e ne s mssoasa pensemabsssabsbasssssenssassr serersnsnss 3
FINAINGS & ODSEIVALIONS....cccvivieeiveisiesisss e sse st ettt sts s e see e seesesessesesss s sesaes 5
FOIGW D TECTIIS civeunissimissssinnnsasnsssisssassssssssssssssissasii i3 518553948 s arense s onesw sarsamn e desssnsemernsase ineensas sasasisas 11
DiISTIICE RESPONSE.cxsussussismsmmusssssrmssisssssonenssmsssosssiisississsisssinmmmnnsrnsessrssesssasesss sssssssessssssssasssasrnrns smssenstsssoses 12
Appendix A: DiStriCt EArn COOE LiSt....ccmmuminiieiiineereeseeeressisere et sessssesssesses e sesseeseseesesesessessasessssens 18

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Background

The Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association is a public employee
retirement system that was established by the County of Contra Costa (County) on July 1,
1945, and is administered by the Board of Retirement (Board) to provide service
retirement, disability, death, and survivor benefits for County employees and 16 other
participating agencies under the California State Government Code, Section 31450, et.
seq. (County Employees Retirement Law of 1937).

The agencies contract with CCCERA to administer retirement benefits for its employees.
Participating agencies within the CCCERA retirement system transmits payroll
information and contributions to fund the benefits for their employees. CCCERA sets up
retirees’ accounts, processes applications, calculates retirement allowances, prepares
monthly retirement benefit payment rolls, and makes adjustments to retirement benefits
when needed.

Retirement allowances are computed using three factors: years of service, age at
retirement, and final compensation. Final compensation is defined as the highest average
annual compensation earnable by a member during the last one or three consecutive
years of employment depending on the member’s Tier, unless the member elects a
different period with a higher average.

The employer’s knowledge of the laws relating to membership and payroll reporting
facilitates the employer in providing CCCERA with appropriate employee information.
Appropriately enrolling eligible employees and correctly reporting payroll information is
necessary to accurately compute a member’s retirement allowance.

The Central Contra Costa Sanitation District has been serving residents and businesses in
Contra Costa County since 1946 by providing the collection and treatment of wastewater.
The District maintains 1,500 miles of underground sewer pipelines which deliver the
wastewater to its treatment plant in Martinez. The District entered the retirement
system May 18, 1949.

. CCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Scope

The California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) and related
County Employees’ Retirement Law (CERL) created the authority under GC§31543 for
CCCERA to conduct on-site reviews of employers to ensure that employee and payroll
information used in the calculation of Retiree pension benefits is correct and verifiable.
The scope of these on-site reviews include:

e (Correctness of retirement benefits;

Reportable compensation;

e Enrollment in, and reinstatement to the system (GC 31543);

e Pensionable compensation (GC 7522.31 (c)(1), (c)(11), (c)(12);

e Determine if employees convicted of certain felonies have forfeited benefits
earned or accrued from the commission of the felony (GC 7522.72(g) and GC

7522.74(g));

e Evaluate whether MOUs are being complied with (i.e. EE Contribution Rates,
Vacation Sales etc.);

e Determine if compensation is paid to enhance a member’s retirement benefit (GC
31461(b)(1)).

The on-site review of the District was conducted October 8t through 10th, 2014. The
review period encompassed active employee records for 2013 through 2014 and retired
employees from 2012 through 2014.

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

The following review activities were performed:

>

>

Reviewed the District’s “Employee Handbook, 2011 Edition”
Reviewed the District’s “Human Resources Procedures”

Interviewed key staff members to obtain and understanding of the District’s
personnel and payroll procedures;

Reviewed the payroll transactions and compared the District’s payroll register
with the data reported to CCCERA to determine whether the district correctly
reported employees’ compensation;

Reviewed the District’s payroll information reported to CCCERA for all employees
to determine whether pay-rates were reported pursuant to public salary
information;

Reviewed the District’s process for reporting payroll to CCCERA to determine
whether the payroll reporting elements were reported correctly;

Reviewed the District’s employer and employee retirement contribution
calculations for accuracy;

Reviewed the District’s enrollment practices pertaining to temporary/part-time
employees, retired annuitants, and independent contractors to determine

whether individuals met CCCERA membership requirements;

Reviewed the District’s tracking and calculation of unused sick leave balances for
retired members;

Reviewed timesheets and payroll data for retired employees.

CONTRA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Findings & Observations

Accuracy of Payroll
information
provided to
CCCERA

The review included the reconciliation of payroll data provided
during the on-site field work with the compensation and
contribution reports submitted to CCCERA for the 2013 - 2014
time periods. The reconciliation included a review of the
methodology used by the District’s administrative staff to
calculate monthly compensation amounts and the application
of the appropriate contribution rates.

Active Members:

The review was comprised of a comparison of salary data
transmitted to CCCERA from the District for thirty-five (35)
active members against the District’s payroll reports for the
2013 and 2014 years. Employee and employer contributions
recorded in CCCERA’s pension administration system (CPAS)
were reconciled against the District contribution and 130
reports. It was noted that the District transmits salary
information to CCCERA as a grossed up number which appears
in CPAS as “Base Earnings” and is inclusive of all pensionable
compensation including differentials. The District currently has
thirty-three (33) earn codes [see Appendix A] of which thirteen
(13) have been deemed non-pensionable by statute and Board
of Retirement policy.

Retirees:

Thirty-five (35) retirees were randomly selected for review for
the 2012 through 2014 years. The review consisted of a
comparison of the District’s payroll information against the
Retirement Verification Form & Reporting Worksheet submitted
to the retirement system for each of the sample retirees at the
time of their retirement. Items that were compared included
employee and employer contributions, base pay, differentials,
vacation sales, and terminal pay items as allowed per the date
of the individual’s retirement. Payroll items were further
reconciled against the retirement pension benefit calculation
worksheets.

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review




Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Observations

o Although the District reported its employee’s

compensation on the 130 report including adjustments,
it was noted that the 130 reports did not have the
differential earn code detail broken out.

With respect to retirees, the retirement system requires
all pensionable salary components to be disclosed in
order to verify and validate that the compensation
reported does not include items determined by the
Board of Retirement that have been paid to specifically

enhance a member’s retirement benefit.
(Policy Regarding Assessment and Determination of Compensation Enhancements
Adopted 1/9/2013)

Through the submission of [29 reports employee
demographic information is submitted to the retirement
system. Items that are to be transmitted on the 129
reports include:

o Position changes;

o Bargaining unit changes;
o Leave of absences;

o New hires;

o Terminations;

o Name Changes;

Items that were noted during the review:
o Position changes were not consistently reported;

o Temporary and provisional appointments were
not indicated.

CONTRA
< CCCERA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review




Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Salary Reported in
accordance with
published salary
schedules

In accordance with GC §7522.34(a), salary schedules are to be
publicly available.

Reviewed the District’s Code of Laws governing personnel.
Under Title 4, Chapter 4.12 - Classifications, it sets out the
standards under which a class of employment is established,
maintained, and changed within the District. There were 120
position classifications as of the date of review including
management and management support (MSCG Group)
classifications which are recorded in the Districts salary table
asof 7/17/2014.

The salary tables are maintained in hard and soft copy and are
publicly available via the District’s website and upon request in
the administrative office. Approval of salaries and
classifications are evidenced through archived Board of
Directors meeting minutes indicating approval resolutions.

It was noted that when an active member works “out-of-class”
for a short duration, or receives a temporary upgrade to meet
District staffing needs, a “Personnel Action Form” is completed
indicating the specific classification, salary rate, and duration of
the classification change. The District has three classes of
appointment:

e Temporary Appointments which are limited to periods
of up to twelve months;

e Special Emergency Appointment of up to ninety days in
duration;

e Provisional Appointments to fill a vacated position
generally for not less than thirty days and no more than
one year.

The District maintains a “Temp Tracking Roster” which only
tracks the District’s temporary employees and does not include
provisional appointments and out of class assignments as these
are monitored separately. The roster is broken out by
department indicating the name of the employee, the position
title, anticipated completion date of the upgrade, and
cumulative hours worked in the appointed position.

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review




Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Observations:

e The payroll records reviewed for the period for
employees that had received additional compensation
for temporary, provisional, and emergency
appointments had corresponding payroll adjustments
back to their original classification.

e The review of payroll records for both active members
and retirees indicated that the District followed its
classification and salary policies during the review
period. No exception or variance was noted.

Enrollment of all
eligible employees

The District had two hundred and seventy-five (275)
employees in active membership within the retirement system
as of the review date. There are four different types of
employment statuses within the District:

Regular Probationary;
Regular;
Regular Part-Time;

e Temporary.
(CCCSD Human Resources Procedures Manual Chapter 4.12.050)

Temporary employees are hired to perform seasonal work and
are not to exceed 2,080 hours (unless explicit permission is
received from the District’s bargaining units) or twelve months
from the first date of hire and are not eligible for benefits or
entry in to the retirement system. (Employee Handbook, 2011 Edition, p. 10)

Regular Part-Time employees are those employees that work
up to thirty-hours per week and are eligible for participation in
the retirement system when twenty hours per week or more

are worked. (CCCSD Human Resources Procedures Manual Work Status and Benefit
Application, Revised 12/20/1999)

District retirees can be rehired on a temporary basis subject to
a statutory limitation of 960 hours per fiscal year. Additional
rules governing the re-employment of retirees include:

CCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review




Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

O

Reinstatement from retirement requirement if rehired
by an employer in the same public retirement system
from which the retiree receives the benefit; PEPRA
§7522.56(b)

Waiting period of 180 days between retirement date and
rehire of retiree CERL §31641.04(b)(f)

Twelve month exclusion from re-employment if the
retiree receives unemployment insurance CERL
§31680.2(b)(2)

Compensation limits.

Observations:

A review of the District’s work schedules and time-
sheets did not reveal any retirement system eligible
employees had not been enrolled. It was noted that the
District had three retirees that had been re-hired post
retirement and the District was monitoring the hours
worked via its “Temp Tracking Roster” to limit the hours
worked to the 960 hours per fiscal year statutory limit.

The District, in its “Policy and Procedure for Hiring
District Retirees” (Revised 9/14/2010), provides
guidance with respect to the conditions under which a
retiree can be rehired on a temporary basis. The policy
limits retirees to working up to 960 hours per fiscal
year. In addition, the policy provides guidance when the
employment of a retiree may exceed the 960 hour
statutory limit and indicates that the retiree has two
options:

o Independent Contractor which is defined in the
policy as an individual who “....establish her/his
own working hours, provide his/her own vehicle,
equipment, and tools, not be supervised by District
Staff, contract for a project or number of hours,
etc.)

o Contract Employee through a third party
provider where that third party is providing a
service to the district and the retiree is the
employee of that vendor and then is

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review




Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

subsequently assigned to do work for the District
by the vendor.

Government Code Section 7522.56 provides that a retired
person cannot serve, be employed by, or be employed through
a contract directly by, a public employer in the same public
retirement system from which the retiree receives benefits
without reinstatement from retirement, except as permitted.
The key word in the statutory language is the term “serve”. In
both of the retiree options indicated in the District’s policy the
retiree would be serving the District.

Accuracy of
employee sick
leave accrual

Reviewed sick leave accrual procedures and balances for both
active employees and retirees. A reconciliation was performed
between the sick leave accrual balances indicated on the 130

balances reports transmitted to the retirement system and the hard copy
timesheets and schedules maintained by the District. No
exception or variance was noted.

Accuracy of Reviewed vacation accrual procedures for both active

employee vacation | employees and retirees. A reconciliation was performed

accrual balances between the vacation accrual balances indicated on the 130

reports transmitted to the retirement system and the hard copy
timesheets and schedules maintained by the District. No
exception or variance was noted.

Forfeiture of
benefits earned or
accrued from the
commission of a
felony

At the date of this review there were no known retirees with
felony convictions pursuant to GC 7522.72(g) and GC
7522.74(g) that require the District to notify the retirement
system.

The review of the District’s human resources policies indicated
that these had not yet been updated to incorporate the
requirements set forth in GC 7522.72(g) and GC 7522.74(g).

CONTRA
COSTA E
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review

10




Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Follow- Up Items

The following items were noted during the course of the review and require follow-up by
the District:

» Update 130 report preparation procedures to report all pensionable differentials
as separate earn code items;

> Update 129 report preparation procedures to report all employee position
changes including temporary and provisional upgrades;

» Review District policy on hiring District retirees and update to reflect the
statutory limitations for post-retirement employment;

» Update District policy to reflect retirement benefit forfeiture by retirees that
commit an employment related felony including a notification procedure to
inform the retirement system when a covered felony event and case disposition
occurs.

11

CONTRA C
COSTA E
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

District’s Response

Items that appear in the “Follow-Up” section of this report require a written response
from the District to acknowledge each of the points indicated that pertain to the District
and provide CCCERA with feedback on how the District may propose to address the items

noted. CCCERA received the District’s response to the follow up items noted in the

Preliminary Report dated 2/10/2015 on 3/19/2015 and is as follows:

Pre

D Cen

heanh

necting pubiic and the environiment

March 17, 2015

CCCERA

Attention: Wrally Dutkiewicz
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

Dear Mr. Dutkiewicz,

tral Contra Costa Sanitary District

439

019 lmhost Place, Martinez (A 94553

PHONE: (9235) 228-9500
FAX: (925) 335-7744

wuecentralsan

org

JOMGHTES. HANLEY
Cenvrol Mangger

NENTON L
Comase

148

LA AINE R B RS,

Neceaterey of the (0

As instructed in your letter dated February 10, 2015, this letter s=rves as Central Contra
Costa Sanitary District's formal response to the preliminary findings in the “Employer
Review" that was conducted by the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement

Association (CCCERA).

Four items were noted during the course of the review that requ red follow-up and a
response from the District. Each of the findings and the District's corresponding

responses are detailed in the table below:

[ CCCERA Finding

| Update 130 report preparation procedures
to report ail pensionable differentials as a
separate earn code items

|

vl

District Response
The District is currently revising its 130
report preparation procedures. The District
will provide CCCERA, by April 25, 2015, a
template of the revised 130 report prior to
implementing the final changes to the
report so as to ensure all conditions
outlined in the finding have been met.

Update 129 report preparation procedures
to report all employee positions changes
including temporary and provisional
upgrades

With the exception of‘temporary (Out of

Class and Provisicnal assignments) and
Personnel Advancements, all employee
position changes are reported in the
current 129 report. The District is currently
revising its 129 report procedures to now
include both Provisional assignments
(more than 30 days) and Personnel
Advancements. However, due to the very
limited duration of Out of Class
assignments (less than 30 days) and after
consultation with you on March 12, 2015,
the Out of Class assignments will be
reported on the 130 report. The District will

CONTRA
CQOSTA
COUNTY

CCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review

12



(
—

apel

Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

provide CCCERA, by April 25, 2015, a
template of the revised 129 report prior to
implementing the final changes to the
report so as to ensure all conditions
outlined in the finding have been met.

Review District policy on hiring District
retirees and update to reflect the statutory
limitations for post-retirement employment

The District has updated its policy on the
hiring of District retirees. A copy of the
revised policy is attached to this letter.

Update District policy to reflect retirement
benefit forfeiture by retirees that commit an
employment related felony including a
notification procedure to inform the
retirement system when a covered felony
event and case disposition occurs.

The District has drafted a policy that
details the forfeiture of retirement benefits
for those District employees that commit
an employment related felony and a
notification procedure. A copy of the draft
policy is attached to this letter.

Please contact me, if after review, the District's responses to mitigate the issues set
forth in the preliminary “Employer Review" are not sufficient.

Sincerely, B . _
Teji O'Malley

Human Resources Manager

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

CCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review

13



Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

HUMAN RESOURCES PROCEDURE

Effective Date: May 18, 2006
Revised: March 13, 2015 Sheet 1 of 2

Subject: POLICY AND PROCEDURE FOR HIRING RETIREES

Established by: Randall M. Musgraves, Director of Administration
Revised by: Teji O'Malley, Human Resources Manager

The District occasionally may hire a retired employee for legitimate business reasons.
The District may hire, without reinstatement to the retirement system, a former District
employee if the retiree is needed due to an emergency situation that has the potential to
halt critical public services or if they possess a skill set needed to perform specialized
work of a limited duration. The intent of the District in hiring any District retiree is to
address a shori-term need and not as a means for providing on-going employment or
income to the retiree.

The Contra Costa County Employee Retirement Association (CCCERA) and Section
7522.56 of the California Government Code dictate many of the rules governing the
hiring of District retirees. The District may hire District retirees subject to the following
conditions:

The retiree cannot work more than 960 hours per fiscal year. The 960 hour limit is
inclusive of any service(s) performed by the retiree for any employer that is governed
by the County Employees’ Retirement Law (CERL).

The retiree’s hourly rate of pay cannot be less than the minimum or exceed the
maximum of the published salary range for the job classification for which they are
hired.

The retiree will receive no service credit or retirement rights for the temporary
assignment.

If the retiree received any unemployment insurance compensation in the 12 months
preceding the appointmant, he or she is ineligible to be reemployed by the District.

The retiree must wait 180 days following the effective date of retirement in order to be
reemployed at the District UNLESS the District certifies that the appointment is
necessary prior to conclusion of the 180 day waiting period and the action is approved

14

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

HUMAN RESOURCES PROCEDURE Sheet 2 of 2

in a public meeting, by the Board of Directors. If the retiree received any retirement
incentive from the District, he or she is ineligible to be hired prior to the 180 days.

The Department Director must submit, in writing, justification tc the Human Resources
Division as to why the services of the retiree are needed.

The Human Resources Division will determine if the justification warrants the hiring of
the retiree and contact the retiree to complete CCCERA Form 213 (copy attached) to
determine eligibility for reemployment.

If the retiree is eligible far reemployment, Human Resources w Il process the
appropriate hire paperwork

The Human Resources Division is responsible for ensuring that all of the above-
mentioned conditions have been met prior to the hiring of the retiree.

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review



Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

HUMAN RESOURCES PROCEDURE

Effective Date: March 15, 2015 Sheet 1 of 2

Subject: FORFEITURE OF PENSION BENEFITS AS A RESULT OF A FELONY
CONVICTION AND REPORTING OF SUCH FELONY

Established by: Teji O'Malley, Human Resources Manager

After the passage of Public Employers Pension Reform Action (PEPRA) of 2013, all
public employees, which includes District employees, are subject to the provisions set
forth in California Government Code, Sections 7522.72 and 7522.74 which specifically
speaks to the forfeiture of pension benefits which are governed by the Contra Costa
County Employees' Retirement Association (CCCERA).

These sections state that if a public employee is convicted by a state or federal court of
any felony for conduct arising out of or in the performance of his or her official duties as
a public employee or in connection with obtaining salary, disability retirement, service
retirement, or other benefits, he or she shall forfeit all accrued rights and benefits in any
public retirement system in which he or she is a member and shall not accrue further
benefits in that public retirement system, effective on the date cf the conviction.

The rights and benefits shall remain forfeited notwithstanding any reduction in sentence
or expungement of the conviction following the date of the emp oyee’s conviction.,
Rights and benefits attributable to the service performed prior to the date of the first
commission of the felony for which the member was convicted shall not be forfeited.

Any contributions made by the employee convicted of the felony shall be retumed,
without interest, to the employee upon the occurrence of a qualifying distribution event
unless otherwise ordered by a court or CCCERA.

An employee must notify the Human Resources Division within 60 days of the
conviction and provide the following information:

1. The date of the canviction
2. The date of the first known commission of the felony

The District and the employee must notify CCCERA of the felony conviction within 90
days of the conviction.

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

CCCERA

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review

16



Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

HUMAN RESOURCES PROCEDURE Sheet 2 of 2

If an employee's conviction is reversed and that decision is final, the employee shall be
entitled to do either of the following:

1. Recover the forfeited rights and benefits as adjusted for the contributions
received.

2. Redeposit those contributions and interest that would have accrued during the
forfeiture period, as determined by a CCCERA actuary, and then recover the full
amount of the forfeited rights and benefits.

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review

17



Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Appendix A:
Compensation Earnable (§31461) Pensionable
Prior to Implementation Compensation
of AB 197 (§7522.34)
After Membership

Earnings Code Earn Membership before Membership on or | Implementing on or after
Description Code 1/1/2011 after 1/1/2011 AB 197 1/1/2013
REGULAR HOURS 1 YES YES YES YES
SYSTEM SA YES YES YES YES
ADJUSTMENT
LONGEVITY PAY LP YES YES YES NO
REGISTRATION RD YES YES YES NO
DIFFERENTIAL
PROVISIONAL 1 YES YES YES NO
APPOINTMENT
CLASSA/B AB YES YES YES NO
LICENSE PAY
CAFETERIA PLAN | C1/C YES YES YES NO
CASH 2/C3
CAFETERIA PLAN C4 YES YES YES NO
BENEFIT
OUT OF CLASS oC YES YES YES NO
VACATION Vv YES YES(® YES®@ NO
PAYOUT
SALARY RA YES YES YES YES
ADJUSTMENT
(RET)
TERMINAL RA YES YES™ YES® NO
COMPENSATION
MEAL MA YES YES YES NO
ALLOWANCE
SWING 4 YES YES YES NO
NIGHT 5 YES YES YES NO
STANDBY 12 YES YES YES® NO
(Mandatory)
SCHEDULED 24 YES YES YES NO
HOLIDAY OT
SCHEDULED 25 YES YES YES NO
HOLIDAY SWING
0T
SCHEDULED 32 YES YES YES NO
HOLIDAY NIGHT
oT
SCHEDULED 31 YES YES YES NO
HOLIDAY DT

Note (1): Only included to the extent it is earned and payable in each 12-month period during the final average salary period. (Gov. Code §3146(b)(2)).

Note (2): The Board of Retirement on April 10,2013, that AB 197 requires the exclusion for services rendered outside of normal working hours (standby pay, on call pay). Only scheduled, employer required,
and performed by all similarly classified employees is pensionable. (Gov. Code. §31461(b)(3)). This was reaffirmed by the Board of Retirement in its “Policy On Determining “Compensation Earnable” Under
Assembly Bill 197 for purposes of Calculating Retirement Benefits for “Legacy” (Pre-PEPRA Members) Adopted 9/10/2014.

18

CONTRA
““CCCERA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review




Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Non-Pensionable Earn Codes

Pensionable Pensionable
Compensation Earnable (§31461) Compensation | Compensation
(§7522.34) (§7522.34)
Prior to Implementation :
of AB 197 After Gom e
Membership before Membership on or | Implementing (1"/11(72?) 1§r
1/1/2011 after 1/1/2011 AB 197
OVERTIME AT 22 NO NO NO NO
100%
REGULAR 2 NO NO NO NO
OVERTIME
CALL OUT 27 NO NO NO NO
OVERTIME
CAPITAL co NO NO NO NO
OVERTIME AT
150%
COMP EARNED 13 NO NO NO NO
SWING 14 NO NO NO NO
OVERTIME
NIGHT OVERTIME | 15 NO NO NO NO
DOUBLE 3 NO NO NO NO
OVERTIME
CAPITAL CD NO NO NO NO
OVERTIME AT
200%
HOLIDAY COMP 20 NO NO NO NO
EARNED
COMP OVERTIME CP NO NO NO NO
PAID
MANUAL SALARY MS NO NO NO NO
ADJUSTMENT
STANDBY 28 NO NO NO NO
(Voluntary)
19

CONTRA
COSTA
COUNTY

Employees’ Retirement Association

2014 Employer Review




1 a8egq

510'212332'MMM  [1/S9¥9'ST6 XV 096E°LTS'ST6 0ISH6 VD Pioduc) Lzzauns Kem mojjim SSEL

Ieok Jorid
JNL$ 9213[BQ | WO 95BIOD AP 10 %6¢€- ArunmroddQ 193IeA
JNTS$ uIpered JN8$ AdSN-A1d ALIS Pund Tea4 Jo11d woxy
Ambyq eory Aeg N61$ Aemyied SNTTS 10908 swepy oseaIouI JNGT$ 10 %L €+ SOANRUWIRN Y

‘suonngrysiq

‘SUAJIED 03 WAISAS S, VDD Yol oym s1d401durd 950y} s109[J1 AN[Iqer]

uo |, S1oMmSI( syuswiAed uonnqgLuos AI[Iqer] papunjun enuue (HS1$) S IOMSI 1B
O[qeI( pue (J6TES) WMSI ATejrues O[qer( )3( SI99[Ja1 I9qUId0S( N E TS JO UONNqLIu0d
Anqiger] papunjun s, 3mqspid Jo A1) se [[om se 87§ Jo juswiked fenuue uosined feur DDD
syoopje1 A[n[ 100K J011d WOIJ 9SBAIOUT O}, “AJIJIGDIT ULi2 ]  SIOLASI(] 2 UOSIADJ [DUL] D))
“S¥$ Jo uswked

ueg 03poy pue M Jo wawhed 0DV SSLES Jo wowhed (SSHI) S1AIS 2antoddng

QWIOH U S109[Fa1 Junowre dn-oniy, “1eok 1011d WoIJ 9,86 JO 9SBAI0IP Y SdN-on.A] LoA0]duULy]

NS T$ 10L0SI( 911 A9[[e A UOWIEY UeS PUe JJTTS SIL PIIepHosuo) D ‘INITS

ues [eNud) SNZHIS DDD :rom sjuswikedard 1s93reT 1eak 1eosyy mau ay) 10y JuswAedard 1oy)
SOUTULIO)OP pue saje[nofed reAojduwe yoey "1eak 1oud Ut UOI[[TW €[ 7§ SNSIdA 107 A[nf JO Yjuow
oy} ur uoI[Iw §0€$ Jo syuowkedard wAojdwry s)09[F1 pouad YIuowW XIS “STUaUADds1J 12A0]duly]
TVV S premoy juswkedard NGS S J0MSI( ATejiues

[eNUI)) SI09[JI 1qQUId(] "S- 10TAJ weidord yuswiedard ay) SULIDIUS-1 11, AJ[[BA UOWERY
ueg JO J[NSa1 oY} SI 3Sn3ny Ul 9s8aId9p Y[, "Tedk J011d WoJ 9,8 | UMO(] “SUOINGLIUO,) JoA0]duly
"1ST A[N[ 9ATI09JS

S9SBAIOUI 9JBI UONNGLIIUOD 0} PAINQLIPE 9 ULd ISN3Ny Ul 3seaIou] ‘TeordAje ST yorym Yosen

UI Je[J PAUTBIAI SJUSWIINY "Jedk Jo1xd woij o/ Jo asearour W3S “SUonqLiJuo)) aaAojduls]
moguy yse)

[ 98e{ - 3a10day Mol yse)

:OWIOWI ST} 0} payoeye
woday Mo[ yse) Y} WOoIJ PaZLreuwruns SIYSIYSIY oY} JO SWOS oIe MO[dg "SOOUIJIP Surwir} 0}
onp Apjsour ST pue Jeak 1011d IOA0 POsBIOUI (7 ‘1€ QU0 Jo se uonisod Ysed s, VIdDDD

MIIAIIAQ

PI0T ‘T€ 19qUIdI( - 110day MO[] Yse) :109[qng
Io3eueA SuNUNOOOY JUSWRINY ‘Ue[de’y] SIOIA oL
JusuRIMIY JO preoyd VId4OD0 o

S10T ‘g udy -ored

= WrNanNnvyowdin/
wia1] bpuaby

S1/80/t0 UOIIBID0SSY/ JUdWaINAY ,sdakojdwy

21pd buliioop <mm ﬁm%w
O O VIINOD



Z 93ed

Broe1e333'mmm  [/S9¥9°'ST6 XV 096€'LIS'ST6 0ISH6 VI Pioduo) Lzzanns Aem mojimssel

“1sATeue Mou e Jo Sury oy} 03 onp Ieak I011d WOL 9SBIOUI O,/ | “SILID[DS JIDIS JUSULISIAU]
‘s8urpeacoid [e39] pue MOIASI JOBRIIUOD O} PAIB[II SOIIAISS

[£59] JUSUMSIAUT SSI] JO NS & St TedA JOLd WOoIj 9sea1dap %t,G 529, AoULO] TUTUISIAU]
‘s3ururen 99jsnuy pue sdir} 90Ua3IIp

onp s309[Ja1 Junowry 'JeaA J01d WOy ISeOIOUI 9 | | SISO)) UOLDINDH/[oADL] JUIUWISFAT]
SOLIB[BS/SI9,] AQULI0})V/S)SO)) UONBINPH/[FABLY, PIIB[IY JUIWISIAU] JO [NPIYIS

‘1894 Jo1id UT 3IMSMme] /61 gV Y} pue 2ouerduiod

Viddd mim spaau [e3o] 10y31y JO J[NSAI © S 9SBAIOIP %97 (JUIWIISIAUI-UON) §93,] AoUIO
"S107 ATTed ul passacoid

juowAded 1oyrenb pi€ JO YNSAI B SB TeoA Jorid WOIJ 9SBAIOUT 9, ()| © AUO S)00[JY 79240 2ID]S
‘pourad yyuow x1s Jo11d 9y} UI pIjou Sk

‘TRWIIA A4q (JTpne [elrenoe -o'1) pauiofied Iom [BUOTIIPPE 0} Paje[al AJIsour oseorou] -Joday]
Mo[] yse) Jo ¢ 93ed uo popraoid umopealg "Teok J0L1d WOIJ 9SAIIUL 97| “§29] SULJJASUO))
"S]OSSE JO

SN[EA 19NIEW 0] PoT} I8 S39] 1SOJN “Teok Jorid WOIJ 9SBSIOUl 9,()| 558, JUPMASDUD)Y JUIWISIAU]
$99,] A9U.10))y/)UR)[NSUO))/IISCUEIA JUIUI)SIAU] JO A[NPIYDY

7 93¢ - 110day mopq yse)

"SOOUQISIJIP SuUTWT) 0} aNP A[ISOUI ST 9SBIIOUT ST,
*9SBAIOUT 9,0} B I0J “Teok J011d Ul UOT|[TW ¢ § SNSIOA JeoK JUSLIND UT MOTJUI UOT[[TW 81§ [[BI2AQ

MOpINQ/AMO[U] YsED) JON

"TeaK JULLMO UT 9SBIIOUT 9181 UONNGLIUOD B JO JNS2I B ST MO[JINO UI ISBAIOIP ST], "9SLIIOP %S6
® 10] ‘TeoA 1011d UT MO[JINO UOI[[IWI 67§ SNSISA TeoA JUOLINO I UOI[[TW $ JO MO[JINO [BUISIXS JON

MOIPNQ/MOPU] YSE)) [BUINXF 1IN

"Joon§ 9181S 01 IO
$ Jomseol], AJuno)) 9y} WOIJ JUSWSAOW Ysed AqIuowt s, VYD) St [[om se Sny/A[nf pue
gag/uef ut OrD £q suop Juroueeqay “Ieok IoLd WIOIJ 9SLOIOUT %y, SISDUDJY/UOLDIO]] §SD.)

JALLS TIT 09SoAT]
‘IN6$ Jreq M SuoT ST$ UopIoD O[a3uy ‘NBIS$ Teak xorrd
Jno 1omIIS LTS [TA N6TS SPINEQ N6ES OI[BSET | WO 358103 NS 10 %9~ ojeIsy [eay
W8S XI 5901n0say 1294 Joud woxg
BeN dep) punjuowrno)) SAET$ S10SSY 2Oy JoUIeV SSBAIOUT NP 1$ 10 94817+ §10SSY 189y [BqO[D
S Wpeled TA8S AdSN-AIH NI I§ 2AY B0 TNLIS Teak Jorxd woxy
Jmo 1em3Is SN 7§ Femyied SNCTS 10908 sWepY 9SBOIOUL JAILE$ 10 %[+ SOATIBWID Y

“SJIPD [ppan)

"spunjar Surye) pue Suneurus) ojdood arowr

0} panqIuje 3q Ued 9SBIIOU] "YedA J0LId WOIJ SSBIIOUL O, [T “SYIDI(] A2GUIBJN 2A1JO B SPUNjay
"TeaA xoud Woly o,y | UMO(] “STIJoUaq YIDa(] JUawa 1oy 1S0g

“reak 1o1xd wWoIJ 9,6 JO 9sea1oul WSS [[eIoAQ) “7j04ADd 224117y

:MoInQ Yse)

*1051§ 91B1S 01 9OIJO

§ Jomseal1], AJuno)) 9Y) WO JUSWIAOW Ysed A[IUoW S VYA St [[om se Sny/A[n[ pue
qo/uef ur Q1) Aq suop Junue[eqey “Iedk I0Ld WOIJ 9SeaIoul 0,9 “SU2[SUDA] 2 SUIDUD]DGaY

JAY$ UOPIOD O[SFUY A8S 1A INOTS 11771 09S3AT] Teak Jorid wog
‘N61$ STRO ‘NTT$ DT TNSES IO 1omSIg 0SBA100p JNTT$ 10 %1 - oje1s [e9Y




Month Ending:

Receipts:

Employee Contributions

Purchases/conversions - "EE" & "ER"

Employer Contributions

Employer Prepayments

Employer True-ups

CCC Final Paulson & Districts' Term Liability
SUBTOTAL CASH INFLOW

Interest/Dividends

Distributions - Alternatives

Distributions - Market Opportunity

Distributions - Global Real Assets

Distributions - Real Estate

Distributions - Domestic Fixed (Torchlight)

SUBTOTAL INTEREST/DIVIDENDS & DISTRIBUTIONS

Liquidate assets-cash needs
Rebalancing & transfers (MOVEMENT)

TOTAL CASH INFLOW, INTEREST/DIVIDENDS &
DISTRIBUTIONS, LIQUIDATION & MOVEMENT

Disbursements:

Retiree payroll

Post Retirement Death benefits

Refunds & Active Member Deaths (including taxes)

Administration expense

Invest related travel/educ/atty/salaries*

Professional (Mgr/Consult/Atty) fees*
SUBTOTAL CASH OUTFLOW

Capital calls - Alternatives

Capital calls - Global Real Assets

Capital calls - Real Estate

Capital calls - Domestic Fixed (Torchlight)
SUBTOTAL CAPITAL CALLS

Cash Allocation/Managers (MOVEMENT)

TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW,
CAPITAL CALLS & MOVEMENT

NET EXTERNAL CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW)
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW)

*see attachment for detail (page 2 of 2)
KEY TO CASH FLOW 2014
Receipts

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

CASH FLOW 2014
2014 2013

01/31/14 02/28/14 03/31/14 04/30/14 05/31/14 06/30/14 07I31/14 08/31/14 09/30/14 10/31/14 11130114 12131114 JanthruDec  Jan thru Dec
5,787,668 5,799,969 5,851,617 5,907,671 6,074,009 5,923,289 5,893,237 6,473,593 6,707,331 7,011,488 6,669,649 6,908,887 75,008,498 69,960,740
517,320 50,909 169,572 99,004 232,628 257,205 264,309 103,263 39,408 419,416 81,853 343,333 2,578,220 2,813,211
2,115,166 1,325,112 1,977,941 1,881,124 1,925,830 1,927,300 1,901,766 1,256,734 1,922,854 873,339 1,378,282 6,543,493 25,028,941 30,634,514
B N - - . = 308,493,573 . = - . - 308,493,573 213,070,096
= = - - = = = 44,887 = = - - 44,887 1,900,360
329,438 5 e - = 5 5,102,458 E = = - 483,499 5,915,395 2,903,227
8,749,592 7,175,990 7,999,130 7,887,799 8,232,557 8,107,794 321,655,343 7,878,477 8,669,503 8,304,243 8,129,784 14,279,212 417,069,514 321,282,148
5,595,183 6,257,960 8,105,447 6,501,062 7,213,746 10,329,495 5,444,860 5,393,561 10,419,287 5,830,431 7,800,857 8,895,138 87,787,027 85,243,327
3,636,525 4,229,036 5,235,878 3,768,178 4,896,038 5,421,970 3,509,986 17,136,359 1,159,458 7,699,002 3,052,863 8,929,354 68,674,737 50,205,164
- = 3,304,673 - - - - = 1,753,192 - - 1,681,308 6,739,173 11,040,066
202,128 219,530 815,650 467,072 167,348 946,047 172,488 199,311 1,235,351 469,571 197,059 3,403,464 8,495,019 8,098,946
1,140,090 19,310,536 4,042,938 11,142,705 - 9,532,103 13,070,375 = 22,146,359 6,816,027 - 11,921,498 99,122,631 110,740,777
5,881,264 = = 21,760,078 1,270,495 5,392,866 8,284,815 - = 9,881,970 < - 52,471,488 55,235,763
16,455,190 30,017,062 21,504,586 43,639,095 13,547,627 31,622,481 30,482,524 22,729,231 36,713,647 30,697,091 11,050,779 34,830,762 323,290,075 320,564,043
- 32,000,000 13,035,908 45,000,000 - 27,000,000 22,000,000 31,000,000 - - 14,000,000 54,000,000 238,035,908 239,000,000
190,500,000 7,600,000 7,700,000 7,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 11,500,000 10,200,000 - 24,200,000 8,000,000 7,600,000 290,300,000 251,100,000
215,704,782 76,793,052 50,239,624 103,526,894 29,780,184 74,730,275 385,637,867 71,807,708 45,383,240 63,201,334 41,180,563 110,709,974  1,268,695497  1,131,946,191

(30,725,065)

(31,152,098)

(31,051,996)

(31,078,634)

(31,980,015)

(32,339,086)

(32,587,017)

(32,271,269)

(32,408,728)

(32,839,299)

(32,869,158)

(32,647,386)

(383,949,752)

(366,601,153)

(69,000) (47,000) (81,084) (59,000) (91,000) (73,667) (67,167) (65,500) (85,000) (57,000) (60,000) (124,000) (879,417) (1,018,334)
(145,623) (202,604) (305,808) (656,344) (311,812) (550,860) (434,773) (486,948) (512,121) (285,847) (677,771) (368,895) (4,939,408) (4,074,986)
(526,844) (590,933) (516,127) (645,486) (471,441) (483,776) (487,608) (501,203) (508,440) (609,725) (656,579) (591,221) (6,589,385) (6,264,345)
(51,592) (54,682) (57,237) (59,939) (69,558) (58,565) (67,362) (64,313) (67,385) (79,919) (69,185) (69,723) (769,461) (720,886)
(1,227,705) (2,362,847) (2,426,353) (501,514) (3,369,954) (1,457,798) (1,728,402) (3,875,001) (1,264,474) (505,745) (1,587,583) (3,406,462) (23,713,838) (21,633,387)
(32,745,829) (34,410,165) (34,438,605) (33,000,917) (36,293,780) (34,963,752) (35,372,328) (37,264,234) (34,846,148) (34,377,535) (35,920,278) (37,207,687)  (420,841,260)  (400,313,090)
(2,570,788) (1,921,313) (1,213,000) (4,375,155) (6,533,243) (11,644,323) (11,063,684) (4,391,220) (3,954,864) (9,167,844) (13,419,010) (17,325,460) (87,579,904) (50,284,034)
(1,500,000) : (750,000) (9,330,965) (1,000,000) B (3,845,957) (1,250,000) : (2,232,754) % (750,000) (20,659,676) (6,500,523)
(16,202,166) (19,866,706) (14,222,129) (20,306,021) (3,000,000) (1,617,676) (16,593,085) (8,281,574) (11,646,654) 2 (4,800,000) (27,973,993)  (144,510,004)  (152,964,715)
5 5 = (5,929,306) (6,000,000) (6,000,000) = : (6,000,000) = g 5 (23,929,306) (23,927,710)
(20,272,954) (21,788,019) (16,185,129) (39,941,447) (16,533,243) (19,261,999) (31,502,726) (13,922,794) (21,601,518) (11,400,598) (18,219,010) (46,049,453)  (276,678,890)  (233,676,982)
(170,500,000) (7,600,000) (7,700,000) (7,000,000) (8,000,000) (8,000,000) (263,500,000) (41,200,000) 5 (24,200,000) (8,000,000) (7,600,000)  (553.300,000) = (485.219.827)

(223,518.783) (63.798.,184) (58,323,734) (79.942.364) (60,827.023) (62,225,751) (330,375,054) (92,387,028) (56,447,666) (69.978.133) (62,139,288) (90,857,140)  (1.250,820.150) = (1,119,209,899)

(23,996,237)

(7,814,001)

(27,234,175)

12,994,868

(26,439,475)

(8,084,110)

(25,113,118)

23,584,530

(28,061,223)

(31,046,839)

(26,855,958)

12,504,524

286,283,015

55,262,813

(29,385,757)

(20,579,320)

(26,176,555)

Subtotal Cash Inflow shows outside funds coming in to CCCERA.
Liquidate assets shows funds generated from sales of investments by CCCERA staff direction to managers - cash requirements.
Rebalancing & transfers shows movements of funds from Managers initiated by CCCERA staff (see cash allocation/Managers).

Employer Prepayments are booked in July of each year; Employer True-ups are booked in August of each year.

Disbursements

Subtotal Cash Outlfow shows funds leaving CCCERA.

Capital calls shows funds requested by Investment Managers.

Cash Allocation/Managers shows funds distributed to managers for rebalancing
and transfers initiated by CCCERA staff (see rebalancing & transfers).

Page 1 of 2

(11,064,426)

(26,073,292)

(6,776,799)

(27,790,494)

(20,958,725)

(22,928,475)

19,852,834

(3,771,746)

17,875,347

(79,030,942)

12,736,291

Prepared by Vickie Kaplan ~ 4/1/2015

%
Change

7.2%
-8.4%
-18.3%
44.8%
-97.6%
103.8%
29.8%
3.0%
36.8%
-39.0%
4.9%
-10.5%
-5.0%
0.9%
-0.4%

15.6%

12.1%

4.7%
-13.6%
21.2%
5.2%
6.7%
9.6%
5.1%
74.2%
217.8%
5.5%
0.0%
18.4%

14.0%
11.8%
-95.2%

40.3%



Schedule of Professional (Manager/Consultant/Attorney) Fees as of Dec 31, 2014

Current year Prior year %
Month ending:  1/31/2014  2/28/2014 3/31/2014 4/30/2014  5/31/2014  6/30/2014  7/31/2014  8/31/2014  9/30/2014 10/31/2014  11/30/2014  12/31/2014 2014 2013 Change
Investment Management Fees 1,105,029 2,086,093 2,126,072 315,000 3,194,948 1,288,575 1,542,447 3,578,111 1,208,781 352,512 1,561,147 3,290,288 21,649,002 19,620,685 10.3%
Consulting Fees (see detail below) 104,007 7,298 11,750 133,036 141,170 100,237 130,938 29,046 - 83,438 - 43,424 784,345 698,035 12.4%
State Street Custodian Fees - 230,444 247,283 - - - - 246,771 - - - - 724,497 660,753 9.6%
Attorney Fees (Non-investment) - 19,971 22,207 34,436 14,795 49,944 35,966 650 35,270 49,900 6,814 53,127 323,080 435,649 -25.8%
Attorney Staff Salary (Non-investment) 18,668 19,041 19,041 19,041 19,041 19,041 19,051 20,423 20,423 19,896 19,623 19,623 232,915 218,265 6.7%
TOTAL: 1,227,705 2,362,847 2,426,353 501,514 3,369,954 1,457,798 1,728,402 3,875,001 1,264,474 505,745 1,587,583 3,406,462 23,713,838 21,633,387 9.6%
Consulting Fees
Milliman 100,007 7,298 - 81,536 82,500 20,737 79,438 - - 79,438 - - 450,955 325,582  38.5%
Segal 4,000 - 11,750 51,500 58,670 59,000 51,500 29,046 - 4,000 - 43,424 312,890 342,141 -8.5%
ISS* - - - - - 20,500 - - - - - - 20,500 30,313 -32.4%
104,007 7,298 11,750 133,036 141,170 100,237 130,938 29,046 - 83,438 - 43,424 784,345 698,036 12.4%
* Institutional Shareholder Services Inc - proxies

Schedule of Investment Related Travel/Education Costs/Attorney Fees/Salaries as of Dec 31, 2014
Investment Travel/Education Costs 2,175 3,411 5,223 3,465 21,124 4,514 2,815 2,906 886 13,846 6,149 2,818 69,333 62,586 10.8%
Attorney Fees (Investment) - 583 2,597 3,286 4,664 10,282 11,660 - 3,657 3,392 - 3,869 43,990 95,824 -54.1%
Attorney Staff Salary (Investment) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 0.0%
Investment Staff Salaries i 49,417 50,688 49,417 53,188 43,769 43,770 52,886 61,407 62,842 62,682 63,036 63,036 656,138 562,476 16.7%
TOTAL: 51,592 54,682 57,237 59,939 69,558 58,565 67,362 64,313 67,385 79,919 69,185 69,723 769,461 720,886 6.7%

Page 2 of 2 Prepared by Vickie Kaplan ~ 4/1/2015



Meeting Date

04/08/15
CCCERA Board Meetings 2015 | Agendaem
Eff. 4.1.15
January February March
Su|(Mo|Tu|We| Th | Fr | Sa Su (Mo | Tu |We| Th | Fr | Sa Su|Mo| Tu [We| Th| Fr | Sa
1 2 3 1 2 314|567 1 2 3| 4 5| 6 h
4 15 6| 7| 8 10 8 10| =112 ] 13| 14 112113 | 14
1M1 112 113 | E | 16 16 | 17 15116 | 17 =B 191 20 | 21 1516 | 17 | 18 =B 20 | 21
18119 ] 20 23 | 24 22 | 23 | 24 | el 26 | 27 | 28 22 123 |24 | = | 26|27 | 28
25126 (27| =129 | 30| 31 29
NN bl T i Bl
April May June
Su|[Mo|Tu |We|Th | Fr | Sa Su|Mo| Tu (We| Th | Fr | Sa Su|Mo| Tu |We| Th | Fr | Sa
m 2|34 1] 2 1123456
51| 6 71 E ]9 [10] 11 8 9 71 8 91 & |[11]12]13
1213 (14|15 16| 17 | 18 10 & 16 14 (15|16 |17 | 18| 19 | 20
19202112223 |24 | 25 17 1181191202122 | 23 2112223 & | 25| 26 | 27
26 24 |1 25| 26 | 27 29 | 30 28 | 29| 30
31
H-Memorial Day
July August September
Su|Mo|Tu |We|Th| Fr | Sa Su|Mo| Tu |We| Th | Fr | Sa Su|Mo| Tu |We| Th | Fr | Sa
1 3|1 4 1 1 2 31415
516 /&l B 10 | 11 2 34|56 ]|7]8 6|7 8 [ 5|10 11]12
12113 (14 |15 16 | 17 | 18 10 (11 & |13 |14 | 15 1314|1516 |17 | 18 | 19
IR TIR 03 | 24 | 25 16 20 (21 22| = |24 |25 26
26 | 27 | 28 [ 29 | 30 | 31 23 27 [ 28| 20 [
H - Independence Day 30 H - Labor Day
October November December
Su|Mo| Tu |We| Th | Fr | Sa Su|Mo|Tu |We|Th| Fr | Sa Su |Mo | Tu (We| Th | Fr | Sa
3 1 2 3| 567 1 2 314165
4 15 6 | = 8 9 110 12113 | 14 6 |7 8 | B [10|11]12
11 (12|13 | 14 =N 16 | 17 15| 16 S| 21 13 (14|15 |16 |17 [ 18 [ 19
1819|120 = | 22|23 ]| 24 22 | 23 | lel| 25 | 26 | 27 | 28 20211222324 25| 26
2526 |27 | 2829 | 30 | 31 29| 30 27 1 28 1 29 | 30 | 31
=) Board Meeting CII EPepperdine University: Principles of Pension Management
Quarterly Meeting (688 CALAPRS SACRS: Public Pension Investment Management
‘Special Board Meeting I NCPERS Wharton: Portfolio Concepts
I SACRS IFEBP




Meeting Date
Timothy Price 04/08/15
Agenda Item
From: Sean Sandbach <ssandbach@milkeninstitute.org> #17a
Sent: Tuesday, January 20, 2015 4:08 PM .
To: Timothy Price
Subject: Invitation to the 2015 Milken Institute Global Conference | April 26-29 | Los Angeles

View web version »

GLOBAL

CONFERENCE

Dear Timothy,

Please join us for the 2015 Milken Institute Global Conference (April 26-29 in Los Angeles).
You may register online at globalconference.orq. Plan to arrive no later than the morning of
Sunday, April 26 to attend our invitation-only CEO fireside chats — last year we had Mark
Weinberger of EY, Tidjane Thiam of the FTSE 100's Prudential Plc, Bill Simon of Wal-Mart U.S.,
as well as many more. In the meantime, please click here for a preview of chief research officer
Ross DeVol's take on the global economy.

The Global Conference draws more than 3,500 of the world's leading decision-makers from
more than 60 countries. Among the participants are investors with more than $18 trillion in
assets under management, CEOs from Fortune-100 companies, Nobel laureates, high-level
executives in the international capital markets, senior international and U.S. government officials,
academic experts and leaders in energy, education, health, telecommunications, technology and
philanthropy.

In addition to 160 sessions over the course of 4 days of programming, there are many private
meetings and roundtable discussions, two of which convene our Global Capital Markets Advisory
Council (GCMAC). The GCMAC is made up of senior leadership of large funds from around the
globe who represent more than $18 trillion in assets under management. These curated
roundtable discussions are designed to help investors understand immediate and long-term
macroeconomic trends.




2015 Milken Institute Global Conference - Agenda (Tentative) | Online...

1ofl

The agenda for the 2015 Global Conference has yet to be finalized.

http://www.cvent.convevents/2015-milken-institute-global-conference...

But to help you plan arrival/departure schedules,

here's a draft schedule of the activities during the Global Conference.

Sunday, April 26
3:00 PM -8:00 PM

Registration opens

5:00 PM - 7:00 PM

Welcome Reception

Monday, April 27
6:00 AM

Registration Opens
6:00 AM - 8:30 AM
Continental Breakfast
6:30 AM ~ 7:45 AM
Private Breakfasts
8:00AM - 9:15 AM
Breakout Sessions
9:30 AM — 10:45 AM
Breakout Sessions
Roundtables

11:00 AM - 12:15 PM
Breakout Sessions
Roundtables
12:15 PM — 2:00 PM
Lunch Panel
(Doors Open at 12:00 PM)
2:30 PM - 3:40 PM
Breakout Sessions
Roundtables
3:50 PM - 5:00 PM

Breakout Sessions
Roundtables

5:15 PM - 6:15 PM
Plenary
6:30 PM - 7:30 PM
Speaker & Sponsor Reception

General Reception
Private Receptions

7:30 PM - 9:15 PM
Dinner Panel

Tuesday, April 28
6:00 AM
Registration Opens
6:00 AM - 8:30 AM
Continental Breakfast
6:30 AM - 7:45 AM
Private Breakfasts

Breakout Sessions
Roundtables

8:00 AM - 9:15 AM

Breakout Sessions
Roundtables

9:30 AM - 10:45 AM

Breakout Sessions
Roundtables

11:00 AM - 12:15 PM
Breakout Sessions
Roundtables
12:15 PM - 2:00 PM
Lunch Panel
(Doors Open at 12:00 PM)
2:30 PM - 3:45 PM

Breakout Sessions
Roundtables

4:00 PM - 5:15 PM
Breakout Sessions
Roundtables

5:30 PM - 6:45 PM
Speaker & Sp Reception

General Reception
Private Receptions

Wednesday, April 29
7:00 AM

Registration Opens
6:00 AM - 8:30 AM
Continental Breakfast
6:30 AM - 7:45 AM
Private Breakfasts
8:00 AM - 9:15 AM
Breakout Sessions
Roundtables
9:30 AM - 10:45 AM
Breakout Sessions
Roundtables
11:00 AM - 12:15 PM
Breakout Sessions
Roundtables
12:15 PM - 2:15 PM
Lunch Panel
{Doors Open at 12:00 PM)
2:30 PM - 3:45 PM
Breakout Sessions
Roundtables
4:00 PM - 5:15 PM
Breakout Sessions
Roundtable
5:30 PM - 6:30 PM

Closing Reception

3/30/2015 4:23 PM



SACRS SPRING

CONFE

—AMAY 12-15, 2015 »-

PRELIMINARY AGENDA Anane

» Tuesday, May 12,

R ENUCE

2015

Golf Tournament

*

Meeting Date

04/08/15
Agenda Item

#17b.

CONTACT: Contact Crystal Stokey, StepStone Group for sponsorship opportunities and to register. Crystal Stokey at cstokey@stepstoneglobal.com

3:00 PM - 6:30 PM

Registration

3:00 PM - 5:00 PM

New Trustee Breakout
SPEAKER: Graham Schmidt, Cheiron

3:00 PM - 5:00 PM

Ethics Training

SPEAKERS:

Ashley Dunning, Nossaman, LLP
Michael Toumanoff, Nossaman, LLP

3:00 PM - 5:00 PM

Disability/Ops Breakout
Mutual Assistance

5:30 PM - 6:30 PM

SACRS Reception

» Wednesday, May 13, 2015

6:45 AM - 7:45 AM

SACRS Yoga

7:30 AM - 8:30 AM

Breakfast

7:30 AM - 6:00 PM

Registration

8:30 AM - 9:00 AM

General Session
Welcome & Awards

9:00 AM - 10:00 AM

General Session - Keynote
SPEAKER: Bob Zoellick, World Bank

10:00 AM - 10:30 AM

Networking Break

10:30 AM - 11:45 AM

General Session
Cyber Security

Noon - 12:45 PM

General Session
California Economic Update
SPEAKER: John Chiang, California State Treasurer

12:45 PM - 1:50 PM

Lunch

*Please check sacrs.org for updates

wec=n—— AGENDA 1



SACRS SPRING

CONFE

{MAY 12-15, 2015 )0—

RENUCE

PRELIMINARY AGENDA ARane arro

4 Wednesday, May 13, 2015 conmnuen

2:00 PM - 3:00 PM

General Session
Saving Public Defined Benefit Plans
SPEAKER: Ronald Payton, Callan Associates

3:15 PM - 5:00 PM

Administrators Breakout

Affiliate Breakout

Attorney Breakout

Disability Breakout

Accounting/Internal Auditors Breakout

Investment Breakout

Ops/Benefit Breakout

Safety Breakout

Trustee Breakout - GIPS
SPEAKER: John Meier, SIS

4:30 PM - 5:30 PM

SACRS Legislative Committee Meeting
SPEAKER: Richard Stensrud, Committee Chair

5:30 PM - 6:30 PM

SACRS Reception

P Thursday, May 14, 2015

6:45 AM - 7:45 AM

SACRS 5K Fun Run/Walk

7:30 AM - 8:30 AM

Breakfast

7:30 AM - 6:00 PM

Registration

8:30 AM - 9:00 AM

General Session
Welcome

9:00 AM - 10:00 AM

General Session
The Magic-Magnitude-and Memories of the Olympic Games
SPEAKER: Al Beata, US Olympic Track and Field Coach

10:00 AM - 10:30 AM

Networking Break

*Please check sacrs.org for updates

AGENDA 2




SACRS SPRING v,

{MAY 12-15, 2015 » -7/

PRELIMINARY AGENDA ANane arro Anahne a

C ONFE

» Thursday, May 14, 2015 conmueo

10:30 AM - 11:30 AM

General Session
Asset Allocation in a Geopolitically Uncertain World: An Alternate Perspective on Risk
SPEAKER: Brian Singer, William Blair

11:40 AM - 12:40 PM

General Session

ESG Responsible Investment: Challenging Misperceptions;

Creating Value

The panel will focus on how environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors can be
integrated into investments to enhance investment returns while also creating benefits for
society. Investment examples will be shared, from across different asset classes, that illustrate
clearly the different ways in which ESG factors can be relevant - for creating additional value
and mitigating investment risks. The panel will also consider how responsible investment is
compatible with trustees’ fiduciary duty.

SPEAKERS:

Adam Frost, Partners Group

Sonal Mahida, PRI

Louis Fiorino, San Bernardino CERA

12:40 PM - 2:00 PM

Lunch

2:15PM - 3:15PM

Concurrent Session A
High Frequency Trading

Concurrent Session B
Obesity Wellness
SPEAKER: Robin Rager, Keenan

Concurrent Session C
Emerging Managers
SPEAKER: Victor Hymes, Legato Capital Mgmt.

3:15PM - 3:45 PM

Network Break

*Please check sacrs.org for updates

—mgeime—e— AGENDA 3



SACRS SPRING ¥, "~ /)2

CONFE

{MAY 12-15, 2015 » W

R ENTCE ) |

PRELIMINARY AGENDA Anane Arro Anane A

» Thursday, May 14, 2015 conmnue

3:45 PM - 5:00 PM

Concurrent Session A
SACRS Legislative Update
SPEAKERS:

Richard Stensrud, Sacramento CERS
Jim Lites, SACRS Consultant

Trent Smith, SACRS Lobbyist

Mike Robson, SACRS Lobbyist

Concurrent Session B

SACRS Movie
Frontline

4:30 PM - 5:30 PM

Education Committee Meeting

5:30 PM - 6:30 PM

SACRS Reception

) Friday, May 15, 2015

7:30 AM - 8:30 AM

Breakfast

8:30 AM - 9:30 AM

General Session

Will Your Retirement Money be Spent on Medications or Vacations?

Consumers, union health and welfare funds and local governments, spend millions of dollars
each year on prescription drugs. When pharmaceutical companies unlawfully block generic
versions of brand-name prescription drugs from entering the market, everyone is forced to pay
higher prices - up to 80% more. With a total annual cost to consumers of over $3.5 billion, will
you be able to afford a vacation or will your retirement be filled with expensive medications.

SPEAKER: Peggy J. Wedgworth, Milberg, LLP

9:30 AM - 9:45 AM

Break

9:45 AM - Upon Adj

SACRS Business Meeting
SACRS Board of Directors

Upon Adj

SACRS BOD MEETING
SACRS Board of Directors

*Please check sacrs.org for updates

AGENDA 4



	agenda 4.08.15
	THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING:

	Item #3
	Item #4
	Item #7
	Item #8
	Item #9
	Item #9
	Addition

	Item #10
	Item #11
	Item #12
	Item #13
	Item #14
	Item #15
	Item #16
	Item #17

